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ITEM NO. 1: FY 2006 BUDGET (C.C. 04-287, C.C. 05-19,
and C.C. 05-63)
CHAIR KANE: (Gavel.) Call to order

14 the Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting
15 for March 31st, 2005. For the record, we have
16 Committee Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Mateo,
17 Anderson, Carroll. Excused from this morning's
18 meeting is Member Johnson and Member Hokama. Our
19 Vice-Chair will be in the meeting a little bit later
20 this morning. He is excused for the time being.
21

Members, this morning we have a full plate

22 of items to be discussed, including the presence of
23 Ms. Lynn Krieg from the Department of Personnel
24 Services, and we will have that discussion but before
25 we do that, we do have people signed up to testify

4
1 this morning, so the Chair would like to jump right
2 into that.
3

Those of you signed up to testify, we will

4 provide you with a total of four minutes to provide
5 us comments. At three minutes, Staff will notify you
6 of that three-minute mark, and that will give you the
7 chance to conclude your comments with an additional
8 minute of time. If you reach four minutes and you
9 are still going, I will politely interject myself at
10 your next breath and -- and thank you for your
11 comments. And if there are any questions, Members
12 will have that chance to ask questions of your
13 testimony.
14

If you have a cell phone or pager, ladies

15 and gentlemen here in the gallery, including Members
16 and Staff, if you can please turn it to off or silent
17 mode, and that way we can avoid any unnecessary
18 distractions. No names are mentioned.
19

With that, if -- when you do come up to

20 testify, please state your name for the record, and
21 if you represent an organization, we would like to
22 know that as well.
23

With that, we have Mr. Rick Zeleaka,

24 Zeleaka -- forgive me.
25

5
. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

1
2

MR. ZELEAKA: (From the Audience:)

3 The second one was better.
4

CHAIR KANE: Zeleaka. In Hawaii, it's

5 Zeleaka, so you have to live with that one, Rick.
6

And following Mr. Zeleaka, we will have

7 Jeanne Skog.
8
9

Please come forward, sir.
MR. ZELEAKA: Good morning. I am Rick

10 Zeleaka. I represent Boeing Maui, and specifically
11 240 employees here on Maui. I also am the senior
12 executive for the Boeing Company across the Hawaiian
13 islands.
14

I really appreciate the opportunity to give

15 you a few thoughts this morning on behalf of the Maui
16 Economic Development Board. I am lucky enough to be
17 a member of the Maui Economic Development Board, just
18 to make sure you understand that.
19

My responsibilities with the Boeing Company

20 here is to make sure that our employees here are -21 are working well and in a good business environment,
22 making sure that they are growing and thoughtful
23 citizens of Maui.
24

What we have been doing here on the

25 islands, and specifically also in Maui, is really

6
1 trying to do our best to help out organically to grow
2 new employees here. Specifically, we have been
3 involved in some initiatives with Maui Community
4 College and Kauai Community College and also UH
5 Manoa, and look forward to doing that in the future.
6

In terms of Maui Economic Development

7 Board, specifically Jeanne and her team have
8 continued to be very helpful to the Boeing Company.
9 I myself have been in this position only four months
10 and moved over here with my family four months ago,
11 in -- just before Thanksgiving. In terms of
12 welcoming to us but then also long-term things that
13 Jeanne has done for us, specifically, Jeanne is very
14 involved in the local -- local fabric of the
15 community and is able to tie us in with future
16 partners, in particular Hawaiian companies that we
17 can do work with.
18

While the Boeing Company is very proud of

19 its background and its large employee base,
20 particularly on the Mainland, we very much recognize
21 that we need to involve ourselves with partners here
22 locally. And so she's been very excellent about
23 tying us up with local partners so that we can work
24 on jobs together across the islands and specifically
25 on Maui.

7
1

The other item that's been very important

2 for us is connecting us in with Mainland and also
3 island-based activities, both Senator Inouye's folks
4 and things like the Center for Adaptive Optics, where
5 I was lucky enough to speak about ten days ago at a
6 forum for Maui High Technology that they had locally
7 up the road at a hotel in Kahului.
8

She's also been very helpful when we have

9 questions, confusing questions at times, for me, as
10 to how we might continue to perform our business here
11 on Maui, from mundane things, like parking issues,
12 all the way through to how do we grow and make sure
13 that we have a sustainable high technology base here,
14 Jeanne is always there with a thoughtful answer.
15

I think that's about four minutes, so I

16 hate to spread it all the way to four minutes. So I
17 appreciate your time, again; really do appreciate and
18 depend on the Maui Economic Development Board and
19 Jeanne's team to help us going forward.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Zeleaka.

20
21

Members, any questions for the testifier

22 this morning?
23

Member Tavares.

24
25 Good morning.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have one.

8
1

MR. ZELEAKA: Good morning.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You said you

3 have 204 employees on this island?
4

MR. ZELEAKA: Actually, we are lucky

5 enough to have 240 -6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 40.

7

MR. ZELEAKA: -- and by the end of the

8 year, we hope to grow to about 250.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And where --

9
10 where are they?
11

MR. ZELEAKA: Approximately --

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: They are not

13 all at the R and T park, right?
MR. ZELEAKA: They are not, no. At

14

15 any given time, we have about 80 employees on the top
16 of Mt. Haleakala, supporting the Air Force and the
17 observatory. We are the prime contractor for the Air
18 Force running the observatories on the top of
19 Mt. Haleakala.
20

And then -- then the rest of the employees,

21 nearly all of them are at the tech park, roughly 110
22 at Premier Place, there in Kihei, and then
23 approximately 25 supporting University of Hawaii at
24 the Maui High Performance Computing Center.
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, thank you.

9
1 Okay.
2

MR. ZELEAKA: Absolutely. Thank you.

3

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

4

MR. ZELEAKA: I meant to say that. I

5 apologize for not saying what our employees actually
6 do on our island. Thank you.
7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's okay.

8

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for

9 Mr. Zeleaka?
10
11

Kane, Kane, Zeleaka, Zeleaka.
MR. ZELEAKA: I like the second. I'll

12 see if my kids and the wife like it, too.
13

CHAIR KANE: Force -- force-feed them

14 on that one. Thank you for your testimony this
15 morning.
16

MR. ZELEAKA: Thank you very much.

17

CHAIR KANE: Next to testify, we have

18 Jeanne Skog, and following Ms. Skog we have Jocelyn
19 Bouchard.
20

MS. SKOG: Good morning. Good

21 morning, Council Chair and Councilmembers. Thank you
22 for this opportunity. I am Jeanne Skog, President
23 and CEO of the Maui Economic Development Board. And
24 I -- I know you have been hearing testimony on other
25 pieces of our County support over the past year, and

10

1 I wanted to give you a very quick update on Focus
2 Maui Nui, because the County -- County has been a -3 a great partner on that.
4

Overall, we have been able to leverage the

5 County funding on that almost four to one from
6 private foundations. And I am really happy to say
7 that the foundation support is continuing. In fact,
8 we just received an award, a second award from the
9 Case Foundation to continue our work in that effort.
10

Focus Maui Nui, on the Phase II, has been

11 about awareness. We came up with the report last
12 year, as you know, and the whole idea of this -- this
13 past year has been to penetrate the community with
14 the information so it can really become a guide post,
15 a kind of guiding piece for planning and
16 implementation.
17

Secondly, it's been about getting the

18 community, once they hear about it, to own it, as we
19 call it, to make it part of their -- part of
20 themselves, part of their organizations, and make
21 those cultural values really live within their
22 organizations.
23

And thirdly, it's been about

24 accountability, getting back out to community,
25 especially to those who participated to let them know

11

1 that their participation was worth it, that there are
2 things happening that are aligning with Focus Maui
3 Nui and the vision and priorities that came out of
4 it.
5

So in terms of awareness, we have reached

6 over 2700 people in the community with the
7 information through presentations, meetings,
8 exhibits, and -- and so forth.
9

And thanks for the presentation I made to

10 you, I got the advice go to the boards and
11 commissions, and we have met with about 15 boards and
12 commissions so far, and there's about another dozen
13 or so already slated, and we are going to basically
14 try to hit every single one of them because that was
15 really, really great advice. They are definitely
16 planning and advisory bodies, so it's really
17 important for them to hear about it.
18

We have done even more outreach in terms of

19 news articles, Akaku radio ads, mailings, our
20 website, and so forth. And the latest was in this
21 week's paper, another story about, you know, a group
22 taking action as result of Focus Maui Nui and aligned
23 with the principles of that. And those will continue
24 throughout the year. We will have a monthly column
25 in the Maui News.

12
1

In terms of residents owning it and really

2 taking action, it's -- it's been wonderful. I mean,
3 it's hit public, private, and nonprofit as far as
4 doing something about the information that they have.
5 It's been particularly important and gratifying to
6 hear these groups talk -- talk about putting it into
7 their strategic planning processes because that's
8 where it's really going to live and really be
9 sustained.
10

In terms of nonprofits, we have heard that

11 a number of nonprofits have referred to it in their
12 grant seeking because they had the comfort of knowing
13 that this was a broad-based effort and articulation
14 of values, so it was useful for them to go after
15 grants referring to it.
16

In terms of Department of Planning, they

17 are definitely using it as the beginning piece for
18 the update of the general plan, and we are in regular
19 contact with them about helping to do that.
20

In terms of accountability, obviously,

21 through these ads and so forth, we have been trying
22 to get the word out. In -- sometime in the summer
23 our plan is really -24

MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.

25

MS. SKOG: -- our plan is to get an

13
1 annual report out, like a progress report back out to
2 the community on what's been happening and, you know,
3 triggering more action, hopefully.
4

So I thank you very much for the support,

5 and if you have any other ideas on how else this can
6 be -- engender more action, we are very, very open to
7 it. I really like the suggestion of the boards and
8 commissions. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Skog.

9
10

Members, any questions?

11

Hearing none, thank you very much.

12

MS. SKOG: Okay.

13

CHAIR KANE: Jocelyn Bouchard. She

14 will be followed by Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond.
15

MS. BOUCHARD: Good morning, Budget

16 Chair Kane and Councilmembers. My name is Jocelyn
17 Bouchard, and I am the Executive Director of the Maui
18 Humane Society.
19

The Maui Humane Society is extremely

20 grateful for the support of the County Council, and
21 we are proud of the partnership that we share with
22 our County government.
23

Last year, the administration did not

24 support our request for increased ACO salaries and
25 other needs in our budget. Thankfully, you, the

14
1 Councilmembers, did, and we were so grateful to
2 receive the much-needed increase from you last year.
3

This year, I spent considerable time with

4 the administration and past Budget Director Danny
5 Agsalog impressing on them the value of our services
6 and programs and the need for us to be funded
7 appropriately. We also discussed at length the need
8 for us to reopen seven days a week.
9

It was a wonderful surprise to see that

10 almost the entire cost projected to fulfill our
11 contractual obligations with the County, including
12 reopening seven days a week and increases associated
13 with officer safety and professionalism, was included
14 in the Mayor's proposed budget.
15

Frankly, when I saw that it had been

16 included, I felt funny at then coming to you, who had
17 been so generous last year, to ask for this
18 substantial increase to be maintained. But then I
19 thought, why? Why should I feel funny? This money
20 is not for me. It is for an agency that I and all of
21 Maui County can be proud of. It is legitimate costs
22 incurred to meet the increasing demands of
23 administrating our animal management program.
24

And so now I stand here before you to

25 justify and stand behind this request in hopes you

15
1 will continue your phenomenal support and maintain
2 this line item at its proposed level.
3

Last year, the Council -- the Council,

4 creatively I thought, obtained $100,000 of our
5 increase from the Animal Management Fund; however,
6 Danny Agsalog and the staff at Housing and Human
7 Concerns were not quite as enthusiastic. They
8 cautioned me that depleting this fund would disable
9 our ability to cover the cost associated with any
10 emergency needs or unanticipated expenses throughout
11 the year. Sadly, they are right, and I believe this
12 fund is better used to cover one-time costs and/or
13 emergency use.
14

Please note, our budget has only increased

15 about 137,000; however, even with the Council's
16 outstanding generosity last year, we operated in
17 existing deficit of over 117,000. This line item
18 would all but correct that deficit, in addition to
19 our extra funding request such as reopening seven
20 days a week.
21

Being closed two days a week has actually

22 increased our animal care costs, caused confusion
23 with the Police Department, delayed responses on the
24 days we are closed, and had a negative effect on our
25 services to the public.

16
1

This year has been a difficult one for our

2 Animal Control Department despite starting the year
3 on such a high note, with the long-anticipated salary
4 increases. In October, the jury found a local man
5 not guilty of undisputed charges that he swung a
6 pickaxe at one of our officers heads and shoved
7 another one to the ground. The jury found it was
8 reasonable to know that our officers were -- it was
9 reasonable to not know that our officers were law
10 enforcement officers despite the undisputed facts
11 that we identified ourselves as such, we traveled in
12 marked vehicles -13

MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.

14

MS. BOUCHARD: -- wore uniforms and

15 badges. The jury also felt we acted too aggressively
16 by picking up one of his animals.
17

Only two months later, a pit bull Up

18 Country mauled a woman, causing potentially fatal
19 injuries. The public was outraged. Why had we not
20 done more? Why did not take the dog? Et cetera.
21

Our officers need you again. They need to

22 have better training, recognition as law enforcement
23 and public safety professionals, and more protection
24 when they go into these extremely volatile
25 situations.

17
1

We have also -- I know I am going to run

2 out of time, so we are also running out of money from
3 our SNIP program. We have ran out of funds for that.
4 Last year, the Council awarded the same amount, but
5 more to Molokai, which we absolutely support.
6 Molokai has a lot of challenges. So we have asked
7 for an increase there so we could still get the same
8 amount and Molokai could maintain their increase.
9

I have got packets of information for you

10 folks with our proposed budget, and also there's some
11 fee increases we are proposing this year that -- that
12 go with the Animal Management Fund. So I am always
13 available for any further testimony, written or
14 verbal. And thank you again for the impossible job
15 that you do, and the opportunity to speak to you here
16 today.
17

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Bouchard.

18

Members, questions for Ms. Bouchard?

19

Ms. Bouchard, I have one question.

20

So your packet will contain specifically

21 your folks' position on what we have before us as the
22 Mayor's prosed budget?
23

MS. BOUCHARD: It has -- it has last

24 year's budget compared to this year's, and then a
25 justification for each increase, and a brief -- a

18
1 brief explanation and justification for each
2 increase. So -3

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let me ask you

4 this way.
5

MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.

6

CHAIR KANE: You are supportive of the

7 current proposal that's in front of us. Are there
8 any -- are you asking today, or within your packet,
9 increases over and above what the Mayor's proposed?
10

MS. BOUCHARD: No. No. We are just

11 asking to maintain that -- that item.
12

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very

13 much for that clarification.
14

Members, again, any questions?

15

Hearing none, Ms. Bouchard, thank you very

16 much for your testimony.
17

MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.

18

CHAIR KANE: Next to testify, Lisa

19 Schattenburg-Raymond. She will be followed by David
20 Tester.
21

MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha,

22 Council members. I am Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond, the
23 Executive Director of the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens.
24 I am here to testify on behalf of the Office of
25 Economic Development under the direction of Lynn

19
1 Araki-Regan. We have been working with this office
2 for a couple of years now, and they have just been a
3 dream to work with. Very professional, they have
4 handled our grant so quickly and are so responsive,
5 and I really appreciate working with them. And I
6 just want to let you know, they are doing a fabulous
7 job. We work with Tina Silva in -- in that office
8 and she just is always available and always so
9 helpful, and I really appreciate being with them.
10

We have asked for an increase in our budget

11 this year. Last year, we asked for $100,000 of
12 support from the County, and I don't know if you
13 remember, but 25,000 of that got put into the Water
14 Department budget. So there was 75,000 left in the
15 Economic Development budget.
16

This year, we are asking for 125.

17 That's -- that's an increase over last year's to
18 help, to support our maintenance with the garden.
19 And I would prefer if, you know, because we have such
20 a good working relationship with Economic
21 Development, that our -- that that money stay intact
22 in that budget rather than get split off like it did
23 last year. You know, it just seems like it would be
24 a lot easier with the paperwork and things like that
25 also.

20
1

The garden had increased so quickly that

2 our maintenance got to be much more than we had
3 anticipated. And so we just hired two part-time MCC
4 students that -- that are helping us, and they are
5 helping us catch up, and things are moving along
6 really well.
7

I do have an update on what I testified on

8 the other night with the Water Department funding.
9 We heard that that had been spent. I did speak
10 yesterday with Holly and Ellen, and that they assured
11 me that they were going to try and find moneys
12 elsewhere in the budget to cover that $25,000 that
13 have taken from Economic Development and put into the
14 Water Department budget.
15

So I am still waiting to hear back on that,

16 but they have said that they were going to try and
17 find that for us, and I will let you know how that
18 goes. Thank you.
19

CHAIR KANE: Thank you,

20 Ms. Schattenburg-Raymond.
21

Members, any questions for our testifier?

22

Hearing none, thank you very much for your

23 testimony.
24

David Tester. And Mr. Tester will be

25 followed by Dr. Clyde Sakamoto.

21
1

MR. TESTER: Good morning, Chair Kane

2 and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee. My
3 name is David Tester, and I oversee the Residential
4 Efficiency Water Heating Program at Maui Electric.
5

This morning, I am providing testimony in

6 support for funds in the amount of 1,000 -- $100,000
7 to further advance our joint venture, Maui Solar Roof
8 Initiative. Let me start by providing a little
9 background information on this program.
10

The program began in October of 2002 in

11 order to increase the use of renewable energy in the
12 County of Maui by encouraging the use of solar water
13 heating systems. The program allows low-income
14 families the ability to participate and benefit from
15 the savings derived by using solar water heating
16 systems. The County of Maui provides the financing,
17 and MECO administers the zero-interest loans to
18 enable families for the installation of a solar water
19 heating system, which significantly reduces their
20 electricity bill by as much as 40 percent.
21

The program has already impacted -- excuse

22 me.
23

To date, the County has provided a total of

24 $450,000 to finance the revolving loan fund. In
25 addition, MECO offers a $1,000 rebate towards the

22
1 system and the State of Hawaii offers a 35 percent
2 tax credit to eligible participants.
3

Currently, we have installed about 200

4 systems throughout the County of Maui with an average
5 loan amount of $2,300 per system.
6

The program has already had impacts on

7 people's lives by allowing them to benefit from the
8 savings generated by renewable energy systems.
9 Without these -- this program, these families may not
10 have been able to cover the cost required to install
11 these solar water heating systems.
12

An additional $100,000 for the 2006

13 financial -- Fiscal Year would allow roughly 43 more
14 installations and increase the loan payments to the
15 fund. Currently, the program is open to resident
16 homeowners with good credit. We are working with the
17 Office of Economic Development in order to reach the
18 rental market in addition to homeowners.
19

The Maui Solar Roofs Initiative is a

20 flourishing program that will continue to benefit the
21 residents and the county -- the community for many
22 years. This program supports our common goals:
23 Encourage the use of renewable energy sources,
24 thereby reducing our demand on fossil fuels, enabling
25 more Maui County residents to install solar water

23
1 heating systems, provide opportunity to low-income
2 families to purchase these systems, allow for the
3 rental market to participate and benefit.
4

I would also like to mention that this

5 program was initiated by the Maui County and serves
6 as a successful model for the rest of the State of
7 Hawaii, including City and County of Honolulu.
8

Thank you for your time and continued

9 support. If there's any questions, I will be happy
10 to answer them.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tester.

11
12

Members, any questions?

13

Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank

14
15 you very much.
16

Good morning, Mr. Tester.

17

MR. TESTER: Good morning.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just as

19 follow-up information, on the written testimony you
20 provided us, the reference to the revolving loan
21 fund, those individuals that have purchased the
22 system through this program, what percent of moneys
23 that they are paying back for the system do you have
24 available to continue working with additional
25 families who are interested in the purchase of the

24
1 systems?
2

MR. TESTER: Let me just make sure I

3 understand your -- your question. You are wondering,
4 on the revolving part, the payments that are going
5 into the -- the loan from the systems that were
6 already purchased, about $88,000 a month goes into
7 the loan. So out of that, we can do -- it is about
8 $2,300 a system, so we can do roughly, maybe, three
9 or four systems a month.
10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And those

11 individuals who have purchased, their repayment of
12 the loan, can you give us an idea of, like, what kind
13 of moneys you are looking at?
14

MR. TESTER: Exactly. The repayment,

15 we try to keep it to what they would have been paying
16 the utility company, Maui Electric. So an example
17 might be $35 a month. So they don't really notice a
18 difference because it offsets their -- their normal
19 cost of electricity.
20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the payback

21 factor for those individuals, with the moneys coming
22 back from the loans, you are able to help -- do you
23 have a number of the amount of people you are able to
24 help with the payback principal itself?
25

MR. TESTER: I guess right now we are

25
1 able to help about two to three people a month on it.
2 We would like to eventually expand that principal so
3 we can be eventually self-sustaining, where the money
4 coming in would allow for maybe 10 or 15 new loans a
5 month, and that's where we want to get to.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And then

6

7 finally, Mr. Chair, if I may, your delinquent factor.
8 Is there a problem with these -- some individuals not
9 being able to pay the low-cost loan?
MR. TESTER: I don't have that

10

11 information for you today. I can get back to you and
12 let you know what it is, if we do have one indeed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you,

13
14 Mr. Tester.
15
16
17

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you Mr. Mateo.
And before I recognize you, Ms. Anderson,

18 if you could please, Mr. Tester, forward that
19 information directly to our staff, the Budget and
20 Finance Committee, we'd appreciate that.
21

MR. TESTER: Okay.

22

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

24 Mr. Chair.
25

Thank you, Mr. Tester, for coming. You say

26
1 that you are be -- you are able to service two to
2 three people a month. How -- how many requests do
3 you get a month? How many people do you have to turn
4 down?
5

MR. TESTER: Okay. Excellent

6 question. I think right now, the way we do it, we
7 try to break up the -- the moneys that we have,
8 50 percent going to low-income families, and the rest
9 going to people who just want to apply for the -- the
10 funding.
11

Now, we don't give out -- we wait for the

12 people who have low income, and they get the first
13 priority. And to my knowledge, no one is on a
14 waiting list for those funds. I can double-check on
15 that to see if there is anybody waiting at this point
16 for those funds. We are going to try to do some more
17 marketing to let people know that the funds are
18 available.
19

I know in the past that people have been on

20 waiting lists, but I don't believe that there is a
21 waiting list right now for low-income families.
22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what

23 about the others?
24

MR. TESTER: The others, yes. Because

25 we won't release funds until we have a one-for-one
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1 match, where we have one family that's low income and
2 then one family that's, you know, not low income, so
3 the -- the people who can afford the systems can -4 have to wait until there's a low-income family to get
5 the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So how many

6

7 people are on that list?
MR. TESTER: Again, I don't have that

8

9 number for you. I can -- I can follow up and check
10 to see how many people are on that list. I will get
11 back to you.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So based on

13 what -- on your two to three people a month, you are
14 serving 24 to 30-some people a year?
15

MR. TESTER: That's only on the

16 revolving -- that's only on the payment portion.
17 There's -- there's two portions to how this works.
18 One is you have the principal amount, which you are
19 going -- the $100,000, for instance, for -- that's
20 budgeted this year. And we use that money. We split
21 it up.
22

Now, when they make payments to their

23 loans, we use those funds as well so we can help out
24 more people. So there's funds from the initial
25 100,000, and there's funds coming in from the
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1 payments of those loans.
2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And -- and

3 you said that this is a model program?
4

MR. TESTER: Correct.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do any of the

6 other counties have a similar program?
7

MR. TESTER: They do. They are a

8 little bit different. I believe City and County of
9 Honolulu, have the -- the City and County does the
10 administration work as far as issuing out the loans
11 and that sort of thing. And there might be, even, an
12 interest rate tied to that; whereas, our program is
13 set up a little bit different, where Maui County
14 provides the financing, but we provide the
15 administration work on getting the moneys out to the
16 people.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

18 you.
19

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And

20 Mr. Tester, if you can please incorporate the
21 additional information into your response from the
22 information that Mr. Mateo requested, we would
23 appreciate that.
24

MR. TESTER: Sure.

25

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions?
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2

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

3 Chair.
4

I just was wondering, we do have a housing

5 project that's coming up in Hana, and one of the
6 items that we discussed was solar water heating for
7 14 homes. This is being done through Self-Help
8 Hawaii.
9

Have you folks ever worked with any of

10 these nonprofit organizations in trying to support
11 affordable housing here on Maui? In this case, these
12 are all affordable homes that are being built by a
13 nonprofit organization at a very, very low interest
14 rate.
15

MR. TESTER: Well, I am fairly new to

16 this program. So the best of my knowledge, I would
17 say that we haven't. I can follow up to see if
18 there's any projects that we have done in the past.
19

We are currently working with MEO. They

20 have a weatherization program. And that's not new
21 construction; that's going in and retrofitting solar
22 onto an existing system. But I would be happy to
23 work on a joint partnership with any nonprofit that's
24 willing to do that, yes.
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, if
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1 you could follow up on that, we would appreciate it.
2

MR. TESTER: Okay.

3

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member

4 Pontanilla.
5

And again, Mr. Tester, I guess I can

6 blanket the request -7

MR. TESTER: Yeah.

8

CHAIR KANE: -- that all of the

9 questions that are being asked of you, if you can
10 incorporate them into your responses.
11

MR. TESTER: I will.

12

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

13
14

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank

15 you.
16

And I know we chatted just briefly before

17 the meeting, Mr. Tester, and I realize that you are
18 new to this program, and welcome.
19

MR. TESTER: Thank you.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In your

21 report, as the list is getting longer, I will just
22 verbally ask what I asked at the -- informally, and
23 that was to give us an update on the cumulative
24 installations, the number of installations since the
25 program was initiated.
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1

And on the wait list that you have now, the

2 number I think that was mentioned earlier, what I
3 wanted to know -- and I think maybe Ms. Ide could
4 answer this question -- is the 50 percent that you
5 are setting aside for the low income and you have
6 fewer applications there, who imposed that
7 50 percent?
8

Because I think our initial one only had a

9 graduated, you do, you know, advertise for so long,
10 and you could only do low-income for the first three
11 months or whatever. It was graduated.
12

And I thought that that period was over,

13 and that it was just open 100 percent to anybody, and
14 it was first application in, first considered.
15

MR. TESTER: I will have to defer to

16 Ms. Ide.
17

CHAIR KANE: Please come forward. And

18 if you can, please identify yourself for the record.
19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you,

20 Chair.
21

CHAIR KANE: No problem.

22

MS. IDE: Good morning. I am Joanne

23 Ide, Maui Electric, supervisor of integrated resource
24 planning.
25

To answer your question, Ms. Tavares, is
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1 what we did was -- excuse me.
2

Okay. In the very beginning, if you

3 remember, we had a staggered recruitment period of
4 which we would say, you know, those with a certain
5 percentage from low income would be allowed to apply
6 first. And then after I think it was three months,
7 we increased that income level until after six
8 months, we then made it open to all.
9

Okay. What we did move towards, and I

10 believe it was from maybe like last year, was we did
11 this -- we reserved at least 50 percent to low-income
12 applicants. And we chose to do it that way because
13 it did still allow for us to set aside moneys
14 specifically for low-income applicants.
15

And what Mr. Tester was mentioning is in

16 order to make sure that we keep these 50 percent to
17 low income, we've administered the program such that
18 we sort of do a one-for-one. We don't release funds
19 for someone without restrictions until we have like a
20 matching person with a low-income application.
21

Of course, we keep that check and balance,

22 right, because sometimes the systems aren't
23 necessarily the same size and cost, and we want to
24 make sure that the funds, at least $50,000, is
25 appropriated to low-income applicants. So we kind of
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1 do this one for one. We have one that's low income;
2 we can release funds for one that is not low income,
3 and so forth, until both sides fill up. And that's
4 how we have just been doing it as far as
5 administration-wise.
6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's --

7 that's been -- excuse me, Mr. Chair.
8

CHAIR KANE: No, go ahead.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's been a

10 policy that you folks have adopted; it's not where
11 anybody has told you to do this.
12

MS. IDE: Right. No, no. And we can

13 always move it -- at least when we have -- we start
14 to build up the waiting list on the no restriction,
15 the no income restriction, we can always cap it at
16 not releasing funds greater than 50,000. And if we
17 get to that point, we can stop releasing the funds
18 with, you know, that -- that are not income
19 restricted, and hold off the balance for low income.
20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So have you

21 got knowledge right now of how many you have on the
22 wait list of each type?
23

MS. IDE: I -- I don't think we have

24 any on the wait list for the low-income applicants.
25 I do think that there is a wait list on the

34
1 nonrestricted income applicants. And I would need to
2 double-check, but I think it's like about eight to
3 ten applicants right now.
4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: As you are

5 looking at the allotment for this year, this Fiscal
6 Year, which ends June 30th -7

MS. IDE: Yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- can you

9 folks maybe take a look at that policy, and if you
10 don't have applications -- you know, I hate to see
11 eight to ten people waiting and, you know, not being
12 able to install these systems because there isn't a
13 low-income application. So maybe you could look at a
14 formula over the year -15

MS. IDE: Sure.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- which goes

17 50/50 down to 0/100 in the last quarter, perhaps, of
18 the Fiscal Year, so that you can move those funds out
19 to help more folks get installations. Maybe that's
20 something you folks could look at.
21

MS. IDE: Sure, we can do that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

23 you.
24

MS. IDE: I can answer the question

25 about the delinquency rate. To date, we have zero
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1 delinquents, payments.
2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Great.

3

MS. IDE: There are times where they

4 are a little behind in payment, but we have yet to
5 have a low-and-go delinquent.
6

CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that. Any

7 further questions?
8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Terrific.

9

CHAIR KANE: The Chair has a

10 follow-up. Member Tavares and I, I guess, are on the
11 same wavelength.
12

The intent, I think, was to take care of

13 the low-income, but it wasn't intended to not get
14 systems on roofs.
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

16

CHAIR KANE: I mean, I think that's

17 the -- that's the overall picture.
18

MS. IDE: Yes, that's correct. Right.

19

CHAIR KANE: So I think the

20 administrative thing you set up may pose a concern.
21 It poses a concern because you may end up with
22 carryover.
23

MS. IDE: Right.

24

CHAIR KANE: You may end up with

25 moneys that's not spent or not get -- gotten out
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1 there.
2

MS. IDE: Right.

3

CHAIR KANE: So it's hard for us to

4 justify giving you another $100,000.
5

So you need -- my question will be you need

6 to provide us with what is sitting there. Here it
7 is, you know, coming up on April 1, so you have
8 almost three months more. And if you have no
9 applications in front of you for low income, the
10 eight to ten people are sitting there who won't get a
11 system based on what you have set up as an
12 administrative rule. You know, it poses -- it makes
13 me pause. So you need to provide that information.
14
15

MS. IDE: Yes. Absolutely.
We haven't had, in the past, any year that

16 we weren't able to spend the full funding. In fact,
17 we have run out of the funds and just had to depend
18 on the revolving loan portion. So every single year,
19 including this year, I believe the answer is there
20 has been no problems to actually spend the total
21 funds.
22

And what we are hearing also from our solar

23 contractors, who, you know -- they are pretty much
24 are our marketing arm into the community, they
25 actually are asking for, "Can't you get more
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1 funding?"
2

CHAIR KANE: Is there -- is there a

3 balance right now that you would be able to provide,
4 in writing -5

MS. IDE: Sure.

6

CHAIR KANE: -- of course, give us a

7 balance of where you are at as of, you know, today,
8 at the end of the day today -9
10

MS. IDE: Right. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: -- so that we know, you

11 know, where you are at.
12

MS. IDE: Yeah.

13

CHAIR KANE: And again, you know I

14 will be straight. It may impact what you are asking
15 for.
16

MS. IDE: Absolutely. We -- we are

17 preparing, I guess -- the quarter closes at the end
18 of this month, which is today.
19

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

20

MS. IDE: And we are going to be

21 providing to the Committee the -- the status of the
22 quarter.
23

CHAIR KANE: Third quarter report.

24 Yeah.
25

MS. IDE: Exactly.
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1

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.

2

MS. IDE: That will have.

3

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.

5 What do you consider low income?
6

MS. IDE: We go according to HUD

7 standards. I don't have the number in front of me
8 right now. But usually, because, you know, the
9 Fiscal Year for the County is a split year, I believe
10 we are going off of HUD, what they consider to be low
11 income as -- I think we take like 80 or 85 percent of
12 median for 2003 for this particular Fiscal Year 2005.
13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

14 Fine.
15

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further

16 questions?
17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could they

18 provide that in writing?
19
20

CHAIR KANE: Yes.
Could you provide that in writing, please.

21

MS. IDE: Yes. Sure.

22

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Tester and

23 Ms. Ide, thank you very much.
24

And Council Member or Committee Member Kane

25 appreciates your comments. We have a sense of humor.
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1

Dr. Clyde Sakamoto. And, Members,

2 Dr. Sakamoto is here, and he will be testifying. So
3 he's provided the same time frame; however,
4 obviously, you know, there is a grant in front of us
5 and an interest of this body seemed to be apparent.
6 So please, if you can, provide your time for
7 questions, and if we need him as a resource, we will
8 check to see his time because I know he is very busy.
9 And if he needs to remain for further discussion, we
10 will try to make that arrangement.
11

But this morning, he will provide us with

12 his overview, Dr. Sakamoto, and if you have
13 questions, please, now is your opportunity to at
14 least initiate those. Thank you.
15

MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you, Chair Kane,

16 Members of the County Council.
17

I have had an opportunity to speak with

18 most of you about what the nature of our request is,
19 and this is an endorsement of the Mayor's proposal to
20 develop a four-year college on Maui. And so I am
21 delighted to be here, first, to thank you for all of
22 the support that the County of Maui has given us over
23 the years. As some of you may be aware, you have
24 helped us very early on establish our nursing
25 program, helped us with our student housing

40
1 initially, and also assisted us in developing the
2 University Center. And so it is a tremendous track
3 record that the County has with the college and
4 higher education.
5

And what we are looking to do is to

6 continue that, but at a much more significant level.
7 And this level involves creating, eventually, a
8 four-year college over the next six years. And it
9 will take some time. As you know, creating a
10 baccalaureate institution is a huge endeavor, and it
11 will require a tremendous amount of collaboration,
12 co-responsibility, among not simply the County but
13 the state, the Federal government, students, and the
14 private sector in our community as well.
15

And so I am delighted to be here to speak

16 with you about the nature of our request. It is to
17 establish a minimum of three baccalaureate programs
18 over the next six years, and our intent is, when I
19 say "at least," is to go through the accreditation
20 process, which requires us to move from the Junior
21 Commission, which we are in now, into the Senior
22 Commission, which we will have to do as we proceed.
23

The intent in moving in this direction

24 coincides with our fundamental mission of serving
25 this community, and that -- that mission involves
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1 providing the kinds of educational opportunities that
2 connect with the economic development needs and
3 opportunities in Maui County.
4

We all are aware of situations where,

5 within our own high tech health kinds of professional
6 opportunities, that our own community members have
7 not been able to access these opportunities for lack
8 of higher education opportunities. Our own
9 challenges with respect to teacher preparation are
10 large, looming, and about to be exacerbated by more
11 teachers retiring. And what we are suggesting is
12 that our college could play a significant role in
13 addressing some of these issues for Maui County
14 residents in a remote rural community that has
15 difficulty accessing baccalaureate programs.
16

The University Center strategy that we have

17 adopted and that you have endorsed and assisted us
18 with over the years has been effective from the
19 standpoint of moving people -20

MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.

21

MR. SAKAMOTO: -- in a very methodical

22 fashion through a process that has resulted in a
23 number of graduates from about, now, in excess of ten
24 baccalaureates and over ten master's degree programs.
25

However, what we require going forward is a
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1 kind of infrastructure at our higher education level
2 where we have faculty, professoriate on island to
3 deal with some of the applied research kinds of
4 agendas that we have to understand better what our
5 needs and opportunities may be for economic
6 development, diversification, and strengthening the
7 kind of higher education infrastructure that will
8 ensure a stronger future for residents in our County
9 of Maui.
10

I would be pleased to answer any questions

11 that you may have and would be available as a
12 resource person later in the morning if that's
13 appropriate.
14
15

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Dr. Sakamoto.
Members, the floor is open to any

16 questions.
17
18

Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

19 Chairman.
20

Good morning, Dr. Sakamoto.

21

MR. SAKAMOTO: Good morning.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Could you show

23 what the State is -- how much money the State is
24 funding your program and how does the funding compare
25 to, say, Kauai, the Big Island, and Oahu.

43
1

MR. SAKAMOTO: That's an excellent

2 question. We get approximately $9 million from the
3 State this current year. The State has been, as you
4 know, very generous on the capital improvement side
5 of the equation. Over the last 12 years, we have
6 received over 77 million and have been approved
7 recently for another 7 million to renovate our
8 student center building. We have requests to
9 construct a science building, and are in the
10 legislative session this -- this term for another
11 3.4 million for design.
12

The comparison between and among all of the

13 other islands is very, very interesting. If you can
14 imagine, the Big Island -- well, let's start off with
15 Kauai. Kauai has approximately 60,000 residents.
16 Kauai Community College enjoys approximately
17 6.5 million or so of dollars. And so with a
18 population of less than half of Maui's, they receive
19 two-thirds of what Maui receives. We are getting 9,
20 and them getting 6.5 or so.
21

The comparison with the Big Island is even

22 more stark. The Big Island, as you know, has two
23 institutions, the University of Hawaii at Hilo and
24 Hawaii Community College. UH Hilo receives
25 approximately $23 million or so; Hawaii Community
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1 College receives a little over 7 to 8. So in total,
2 it's about 31 million, again, compared to our 9. Big
3 Island's population is about 143,000, compared to
4 ours, approximately 138 or so, probably closer to 140
5 now.
6

But you see that our support from the State

7 is about less than a third of what the Big Island
8 receives. And so for rural Hawaii, on a per capita
9 basis, in terms of counties in rural Hawaii, Maui
10 receives least. Maui County receives the least in
11 terms of higher education per capita expenditure
12 except for the kinds of capital contributions that
13 have come to us, and we have been very grateful for.
14 The kind of legislative and gubernatorial leadership
15 that has manifested for us.
16

On Oahu -- on Oahu, as you can imagine,

17 there are four institutions at the two-year level,
18 four community colleges, the University of Hawaii at
19 Manoa, and West Oahu College. And so the resources,
20 by and large, for Honolulu are again very, very
21 significant and much larger than the rural per capita
22 expenditures when you compare the different counties
23 on a per capita basis in terms of higher education.
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
Chairman, one more question.
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1

Dr. Sakamoto, you mentioned to fully

2 implement a four-year program here, it would take six
3 years. So are you looking at this as a yearly
4 request on average of 2 million from the County?
5

MR. SAKAMOTO: We are -- we are moving

6 what we -- at what we feel will be a realistic level.
7 There may be actual opportunities that may accelerate
8 this process. But what we want to be careful to do
9 is to give our County Council and our County
10 administration an idea of how complex the process is.
11

I had thought about bringing six pounds

12 worth of material that we have submitted recently to
13 the Western Association of Schools and Colleges
14 Accrediting Commission for our first baccalaureate
15 degree. And that team visited us last week, or the
16 week before last, and we understand informally,
17 because their recommendation will have to go to the
18 Commission, that their word will be either good news
19 or extraordinary news regarding a review of our first
20 applied bachelor's degree. It will be an applied
21 business and information technology degree.
22

The volume of the material that is being

23 requested by the Accrediting Commission is not simply
24 weight. What they are looking for is -- is the
25 substance of how it is that institutions describe
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1 what learning outcomes, what programs are going to be
2 able to do in order to serve needs that exist in
3 order to sustain themselves in order to provide the
4 kind of appropriate professoriate and research that
5 would be comparable to other institutions around the
6 country. So it's that that's contained in all this.
7

In terms of the pace of our development,

8 the -- we are hoping that it will go much faster, but
9 realistically, it may take us that long. We had
10 anticipated that our first baccalaureate courses
11 would be offered in '04, back in '01, and indeed,
12 they are being offered this term, as we speak, this
13 spring. But the full, formal candidacy for our first
14 baccalaureate degree, we won't learn about until June
15 of this year.
16

So it's taken about four years to get even

17 our first baccalaureate degree off the ground, but we
18 feel that, having done our first, that subsequent
19 degrees will come more easily.
20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, Chairman,

21 one last question.
22

The university system is proposing a

23 tuition increase. Do you know at this time, should
24 that tuition increase proposal pass, do you know
25 proportionately how much of that increase will be
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1 used towards four-year programs at, say, for example,
2 here at MCC, should that happen, as well as the other
3 neighbor islands?
4

MR. SAKAMOTO: Well, clearly, clearly

5 the tuition increases would make an overall
6 contribution to the overall cost of higher education
7 in all of the different institutions. So on Maui, I
8 think that it will depend upon the numbers of
9 students that we are attracting, and as we have
10 talked about, part of our tuition strategy is to
11 advance a nonresident tuition differential that is
12 currently six times higher than our resident tuition
13 rates. We want to continue that, and it's in that
14 nonresident tuition contribution arena that our
15 sustainability resides in terms of -- if you can
16 imagine, Kapiolani Community College today has about
17 400 nonresident students contributing about
18 2.4 million per year.
19

And so, going forward, if we take some kind

20 on approximate estimation of where we might be, say,
21 six years down the road, and say at a very modest
22 level, say 500 students paying what -- what students
23 are currently paying in terms of nonresident tuition,
24 that would be $3 million.
25

And so it's that kind of contribution that
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1 we feel nonresident students will be making to the
2 overall quality, expansions, strengthening of our
3 institution; at the same time, recognizing what the
4 contributions of our local tax-paying residents has
5 been in terms of the CIP contribution, in terms of
6 the ongoing state tax dollar contribution from the
7 General Fund into the operations of the institution.
8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.

9 Thank you, Chairman.
10

CHAIR KANE: Thank, Mr. Molina.

11

Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

13 Chair.
14

Good morning, Dr. Sakamoto.

15

MR. SAKAMOTO: Good morning.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: One

17 question. I am looking at your handout that was
18 given out to us this morning on the proposal
19 highlights. I am reading one of 2 million, I guess
20 dollars from County must be matched by MCC or the
21 University of Hawaii.
22

MR. SAKAMOTO: Correct.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: As far as

24 your match, how will that funds be raised?
25

MR. SAKAMOTO: We -- we will look at
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1 everything from requesting the president, the
2 university's assistance, in coming up with a portion
3 of that match, matching it with Federal resources to
4 support baccalaureate development specifically. We
5 will also be looking at the private sector
6 contributions to create a match for that second
7 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

8
9 Thank you.
10

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

11
12

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank

13
14 you.
15

Thank you, Dr. Sakamoto, for being here.

16

We used to work together at the college.

17

MR. SAKAMOTO: It was a pleasure then,

18 pleasure now.
19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pleasure to

20 see you.
21

On the same handout that Mr. Pontanilla was

22 referring to -- excuse me -- there's a second
23 two-page thing that has a spreadsheet.
24

MR. SAKAMOTO: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Over the 2005
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1 year all the way out to 2011. The second
2 baccalaureate program -- I am sorry if I missed it -3 but what is the second baccalaureate program?
4

MR. SAKAMOTO: Well, we are looking at

5 a number of different possibilities. We are looking
6 at teacher preparation. We are looking at the social
7 worker demand that's in the community. We are also
8 looking at the diversifying our current ABIT proposal
9 into a business possibility. Another vector would be
10 an IT potential. We are also looking at
11 sustainability in terms of not only technology but
12 sustainability as a science, wanting to match the
13 environmental kinds of concerns that we have as a
14 county community with economic development and
15 balancing both.
16

And so there are a number of different

17 areas that we are looking at, wanting to anticipate
18 the advanced technology solar telescope that is about
19 to be constructed over the next six years and wanting
20 to understand what these opportunities might present
21 in terms of having our students move into the arena
22 of adaptive optics, as an example. We are doing some
23 work now with adaptive optics with the University of
24 California at Santa Cruz, and the Center and
25 ourselves may be pursuing that particular vector more
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1 aggressively if the pace of the telescope develops in
2 the way that we hope.
3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So if you are

4 thinking of those areas for the second baccalaureate
5 program, is the third and fourth baccalaureate
6 program then built on what you are identifying as
7 possibilities for your first -- for the second one?
8 Or do you have already specifically in mind different
9 programs for the third and fourth baccalaureate?
10

MR. SAKAMOTO: Well, as I mentioned,

11 there are about five different options, so we are
12 going to take them as they appear to be most
13 feasible. We have a conversation going on with
14 Chancellor Peter Englert, at Manoa, to discuss some
15 of his strategies relative to the University of
16 Hawaii at Manoa becoming a research-oriented
17 institution and wanting to, then, redirect some of
18 the students currently coming to Manoa to other
19 institutions like West Oahu, UH Hilo, and he's
20 mentioned specifically Maui. And so that's a
21 prospect that we are actively discussing.
22

There is a paper related to mission

23 clarification that describes what the different
24 institutions' directions may be. It's still in draft
25 form, and we are hoping to have that publicly
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1 available in a short while.
2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: There was some

3 talk some time ago about the CTAHR, College of
4 Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources, moving away
5 from UH Manoa and going a neighbor island. Has any
6 of that conversation come into this picture?
7

MR. SAKAMOTO: Not -- not into this

8 picture directly. There was a very active discussion
9 around the land grant mission of the university and
10 how the land grant mission was a university-wide
11 responsibility, and as a result, we have had
12 conversations with all of the participants, but the
13 major ones have been Hilo, Kauai, Manoa, and
14 ourselves, in wanting to assure the availability of
15 tropical ag resources at the extension level and at
16 the research levels to our respective county
17 communities and agriculture interests.
18

So we have been assured that that will

19 materialize from both deans at Hilo and Manoa, and so
20 we are prepared to move in this collaborative
21 direction.
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My last

23 question, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
24

In the amount of $2 million, you know, what

25 if it was 1 million? How would that impact what your
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1 program -- what you are trying to do with your
2 program?
3

MR. SAKAMOTO: I think that it

4 would -- it would slow the pace. Certainly, we would
5 have to look for other kinds of resources to see if
6 we could mount this effort and my -- I think our
7 general concern is that we are in a -- what we
8 characterize as sort of a pivotal period, currently.
9 We know that the teacher preparation challenge is -10 is upon us. It's not imminent, it is upon us.
11

We know that in the healthcare, and nursing

12 is one of the areas we are looking at as well, we
13 know in the healthcare arena, given the demographics
14 that we are facing, it's very clear to us that unless
15 we have the healthcare professionals, even as we are
16 talking about creating different kinds of hospital
17 alternatives, if the nurses aren't there, if the
18 radiology technicians are not there, if all of the
19 folks who support these kinds of healthcare systems
20 are not present, are not qualified, are not
21 sufficiently prepared, we -- we will not experience
22 the kind of healthcare service that I think people
23 have been talking about.
24

And so all of that is before us, and so our

25 concern is that we respond as quickly as possible and
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1 as aggressively as we are able.
2
3
4
5
6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

7 Mr. Chair.
8
9
10

Thank you, Mr. Sakamoto for being here.
MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This handout

11 you gave us, for the next six years, does this
12 encompass the total cost of the program per year?
13

MR. SAKAMOTO: It -- this is simply to

14 give the Councilmembers and ourselves an idea of what
15 our first baccalaureate program required in terms of
16 cost and in terms of support.
17

Depending upon the nature of the content of

18 whatever program baccalaureate we select as the next
19 baccalaureate degree, those numbers are going to
20 change. The more science-based a program may be, the
21 more expensive it's going to be.
22

The business and information technology

23 degree that we have submitted as a proposal to the
24 Accrediting Commission is one that leverages our
25 current infrastructure, so the amount of investment
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1 that we have needed in terms of the first degree has
2 not been immense. We have leveraged available
3 resources. And that's what we want to continue to
4 do, leverage as much as we can of resources that are
5 not only on the campus but in the community itself.
6

And so I would suggest that what you see a

7 spreadsheet to give an approximate idea of what the
8 landscape ought to look like going forward, but there
9 will clearly be challenges in terms of different
10 programs requiring different kinds of resources, some
11 will require more equipment, others will require more
12 personnel. If we get into teacher preparation, that
13 will require some different kinds of designs,
14 particularly if we are wanting to serve, and we do
15 want to serve, places like Molokai, Lanai, and Hana.
16 So it's complicated to say definitely what those
17 numbers will be, but that gives you an idea.
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you do

19 have all three baccalaureate programs on here. So -20 and I do realize that you are only going to start
21 with one first. But in this first year, '05-06, you
22 show a total of 1 million 5 for the program. Is -23 have you -- have you requested funding from anybody
24 else besides the County to support this?
25

MR. SAKAMOTO: We have. Indeed we
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1 have. We have resources that have come to us over
2 the past few years from the Federal government. We
3 have persuaded the U.S. Department of Labor
4 Secretary's Discretionary Fund for pilot and
5 demonstration projects, and this is with Senator
6 Inouye's active assistance, to earmark funds for
7 community college, infrastructure, and baccalaureate
8 development.
9

So over the past three years now, we have

10 gotten a million for our first degree, and then
11 another 400,000, and then another 400,000 after that.
12 So 1.8, to get our first degree started and funded.
13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.

14

MR. SAKAMOTO: And we are -- we are

15 continuing to pursue those kinds of resources to
16 support and complement that County contribution that
17 we have spoken of earlier.
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If the first

19 year needs are 1 million five, why are you asking for
20 two million from the County?
21

MR. SAKAMOTO: Well, the -- let me ask

22 that -- part of the rationale for what it is we are
23 doing is that there are faculty requirements and then
24 there are other kinds of requirements as you see
25 further down the sheet. So there are faculty
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1 requirements that we are estimating, and there are
2 also student support services kinds of requirements
3 and there are other lower division kinds of
4 requirements as well.
5

For the 1.5 -- this is at the baccalaureate

6 level -- there are lower division kinds of needs as
7 well that we have identified. And let me tell you
8 why, because I think that it's critical to the
9 success, ultimately, of our four-year program.
10

We are a community college and our

11 community college does not, by philosophy and
12 practice, apply admission standards, SAT scores, the
13 kind of national admission requirements that you see
14 in four-year colleges and universities around the
15 country. Community colleges, by philosophy, are
16 second-chance institutions. And so students who may
17 not have done well in high school, or earlier in
18 school, have an opportunity to recover and reconnect
19 with their careers and with their interests.
20

And we find that, given a strong lower

21 division -- in some cases, we are even talking about
22 remediation. And given those kinds of efforts, the
23 success of remediation and development is much
24 greater. So part of the investment is into the lower
25 division as well.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that is

2 not listed on this.
3

MR. SAKAMOTO: I believe it is.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Lower

5 division? I mean, I see student services support.
6

CHAIR KANE: Excuse me.

7

MR. SAKAMOTO: Janet, you want to come

8 up here? Janet -- I want to introduce a former
9 student to you. Janet Six is a '95 graduate from
10 Maui Community College. She got her bachelor's from
11 New York University, transferred all of her 60
12 credits to NYU, then got a master's both from
13 Columbia and from Penn, and is working on a doctorate
14 and is in our office currently as a special projects
15 assistant.
16

Janet.

17

MS. SIX: I worked with Clyde --

18

CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, ma'am.

19 Before -- you need to step to the mic.
20

MS. SIX: Sorry.

21

CHAIR KANE: We are on record. So

22 that way we all can hear you. If you can identify
23 yourself for the record and then if you can respond
24 specifically to the question.
25

MS. SIX: Okay. My name is Janet Six,
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1 and I worked on the spreadsheet with the faculty, and
2 we built it based on the ABIT program. So the
3 numbers start at 1.5, but as you see -4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me.

5 Could you explain what the ABIT program is.
6

MS. SIX: Applied Business Information

7 Technology. I'm sorry. Our first baccalaureate
8 program.
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. SIX: So working with the academic

11 senate chair, Dan Cruise, as well as with Clyde, and
12 our Executive Committee, we tried to get together the
13 numbers that we thought, because we haven't
14 identified that first program, if it's education,
15 like it might be, future preparation. So we tried to
16 build in everything we would need. And as you look
17 at the spreadsheet over time, that number gets
18 larger. It ends up at 2.5 million.
19

So the first year startup would be bringing

20 in some -- bringing in faculty, starting to develop
21 curriculum, and then moving forward to actually
22 getting the program up and running.
23

So it starts off kind of at a lower level,

24 but that probably doesn't represent every single cost
25 that's going to be incurred. It was just something
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1 that we needed to get together based on what we have
2 done with the Applied Business Information Technology
3 program.
4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So my

5 question was if the first year startup costs are
6 estimated to be 1.5 million, and I am not sure, but I
7 think I heard Mr. Sakamoto say that the difference
8 between that and the 2 million is for lower division
9 needs.
10

MR. SAKAMOTO: Some of that will be

11 going to lower division.
12

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Again, we need you

13 folks to use the microphone.
14

MR. SAKAMOTO: Some of that will be

15 going to the lower division requirements.
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have a

17 couple of other questions, Mr. Chair.
18

CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, I would

19 like to provide everybody with some opportunity, so
20 if you are going to change the line of questioning,
21 if we can yield, and I will come right back to you.
22 But that way, we have everybody a chance -23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In regards to

24 financing?
25

CHAIR KANE: Okay, go ahead. Move
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1 forward.
2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no, If

3 you want to go on with financing, that's fine. I am
4 done on that part.
5

CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, I'll just

6 provide -- and we will come around again because I
7 know a lot of people have questions.
8

Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank

9
10 you very much.
11

Dr. Sakamoto, good morning.

12

MR. SAKAMOTO: Good morning.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Following up

14 where -- in the area where Ms. Anderson was at,
15 Doctor, the part of the six-year plan, and we start
16 from the first request, the first $2 million, yeah,
17 as the baccalaureate programs start to be developed
18 and implemented, the more technical the program, the
19 more costly, apparently, it will be.
20

The County's participation in the creation

21 of the four-year system, if you take a look at the
22 initial request of $2 million times the six years,
23 the initial comes out in there to $12 million. Is
24 that something that you are really looking at as part
25 of the entire creation of your program or is this
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1 just the starting point? Because with the increase
2 of the baccalaureate programs, and the additional
3 cost, it seems like this is just the low end of what
4 the college actually needs.
5

MR. SAKAMOTO: I think that what would

6 be fair and realistic to do is, and we understand
7 that the County would only be able to commit a year
8 at a time. And so we would be prepared to come back
9 to report on what our progress has been, to identify
10 what kinds of challenges we faced, and to give you an
11 idea of what kinds of costs specifically have been
12 incurred.
13

At the point that we have the signal to

14 proceed, we would then mount the effort. We already
15 have, to some extent, but we would accelerate that
16 effort; we would clarify which kinds of priorities we
17 have, definitely; and then by early next year, what
18 we would do is go before the Accrediting Commission
19 and our own Board with proposals to -- to support
20 these additional programs.
21

But you are correct, from the standpoint of

22 overall, an overall requirement, we are looking at
23 about 12 million. Again, it is an estimate. But we
24 do want to talk about it as a long-term kind of an
25 effort because a four-year college will not
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1 materialize without consistent, considerable support.
2

But as you see, from our financial plan, we

3 also have in mind the contribution of student
4 nonresident tuitions as part of the mix to help us
5 continue over and beyond the County's contribution,
6 the kind of early investment that's been made.
7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So with the

8 increase of that -- with the inclusion of your new
9 housing facility, that will take 400 more foreign and
10 out-of-state students, plus the increase in tuition,
11 would that at any point help in the reduction of the
12 County's participation for your program?
13

MR. SAKAMOTO: It -- it might,

14 depending upon -- depending upon how fast we ramp up
15 additional student housing. It may. So three or
16 four years down the road, if we put up another 400
17 beds or so, if we get up to 1,000, you know, then I
18 think that we will be in much stronger position.
19

We are assuming that the students coming

20 from all parts of the world and the Mainland would be
21 there. We have good indications that there's
22 considerable interest out there. A few years ago, we
23 had over 200 students on our waiting list for student
24 housing that we couldn't accommodate. And that's
25 without even having advertised.
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1

And so we are guardedly optimistic about

2 what our prospects are with respect to nonresident
3 student tuitions contributing to our financial plan.
4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you

5 very much, Doctor.
6

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

7 And the Chair was remiss in asking, is there any
8 other question specific to Ms. six. I'm sorry if
9 that's not the correct way of pronouncing your name.
10 If not, then I could ask you to have a seat.
11

Member Hokama, good morning.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.

13

CHAIR KANE: Any questions at this

14 time?
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you

16 Chairman.
17

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Member Anderson, I

18 will provide you one more chance.
19

And Members, the Chair's intent is we have

20 received a lot of information. I'd like the
21 opportunity for all of us to kind of absorb that, and
22 I think we can work towards having Dr. Sakamoto come
23 back again if there's additional questions for
24 clarification on the request. And then prior to
25 letting Mr. -- Dr. Sakamoto go, I have a few
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1 questions and most likely will be a requirement of
2 getting responses in writing. And then we will cut
3 you loose, Dr. Sakamoto.
4

But at this time, Member Anderson, please

5 continue with your line of questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

6
7 Mr. Chairman.
8

Dr. Sakamoto, you mentioned that you will

9 be seeking program accreditation early next year.
10

MR. SAKAMOTO: The first -- the first

11 degree, the Applied Business and Information
12 Technology, Bachelor of Applied science, we've
13 already submitted all of the documentation. We've
14 been reviewed two weeks ago. And that team will send
15 its recommendation to the Commission this June, and
16 the Commission will act this June.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.

18

MR. SAKAMOTO: So we will know this

19 June whether our first degree will be approved, and
20 we are very hopeful.
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.

22

MR. SAKAMOTO: But then, over and

23 beyond that, I will just share this additional detail
24 with you, that in the western region, we have two
25 commissions, one for two-year institutions and
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1 another for four-year colleges and universities. So
2 there's a -- there's a community college two-year
3 commission and then there's a college four-year
4 commission.
5

We have had to straddle both commissions in

6 mounting our first degree. As we move into the
7 second degree, we will be required by their policies
8 to move into the Senior Commission environment, and
9 so that will entail a different set of requirements.
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.

11 When -- when do you anticipate making a decision
12 about the second baccalaureate program and/or the
13 third and fourth, what will it be?
14

MR. SAKAMOTO: I think that as soon as

15 we receive funding, we already have scheduled a
16 discussion with Chancellor Englert at Manoa. So my
17 hope would be if we get an indication that the
18 funding will materialize, as soon as we get that
19 indication, we will begin. And I would say that we
20 would like to move within a few months after that to
21 determine which kind of degree we are going to be
22 developing. So I would say a couple of months after
23 we get a definite sort of word as to -- and that's
24 even before June.
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then the
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1 other question I had was in this handout, you say
2 that one of the 2 million from the County must be
3 matched by MCC/UH. What is that based on, that
4 matching requirement?
5

MR. SAKAMOTO: We thought that the --

6 the principle of how the University Center was
7 started, and this was in Mayor Lingle's
8 administration, where the County of Maui required a
9 contribution from the university and the college to
10 assure that the County's investment was matched and
11 was recognized as significant, and that it would then
12 ask for not exactly in this case a corresponding
13 amount, but a significant return on the university
14 side and on the college's side, recognizing that the
15 college also needs to find ways to create sufficient
16 resources to -- and we have not detailed all of the
17 other kinds of requirements that would be needed for
18 a four-year kind of experience.
19

We have not -- and down the road apiece,

20 you know, we are going to have to deal with the
21 student life dimension that has to do with potential
22 recreational life, athletics, those kinds of things
23 that the University of Hawaii at Hilo provides. We
24 don't want to prematurely take on those kinds of
25 tasks. But, clearly, students will have those kinds
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1 of expectations of four-year institutions, so we have
2 got to have a plan.
3

So the college will need to find ways in

4 which to take advantage of and leverage facilities in
5 the community, initially, but then eventually come up
6 with resources to support all of the fuller,
7 four-year college experience that are provided, that
8 gets provided in other four-year colleges and
9 universities around the country.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the

10

11 one-to-two match is just based on your recommendation
12 based on past practice?
13

Okay. Thank you very much.

14

MR. SAKAMOTO: Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

16 Mr. Chairman.
17
18
19

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

20 Chairman.
21

Dr. Sakamoto, I have a two-part question.

22 It seems like we are giving you a college exam, here,
23 or something. But my first question is looking down
24 at Kauai, I know they are somewhat similar to Maui
25 County in that they have a two-year college. Is
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1 there any movement that you know of the island of
2 Kauai as far as are they looking at establishing a
3 four-year program, and have they, I guess, inquired
4 about County assistance towards their proposed
5 four-year program if they are?
6

MR. SAKAMOTO: I don't believe that

7 Kauai has moved in this direction, as a matter of
8 fact, Kauai's enrollment over the past ten years has
9 declined. And so Kauai has adopted a different
10 strategy. They have employed distance education in a
11 very significant way, and so, we on Maui are
12 supporting some of Kauai's students and Honolulu
13 institutions also support some of Kauai's needs.
14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And the

15 other part of my question, do you have any historical
16 background regarding the Big Island and Oahu County
17 as far as their county governments' assisting the
18 four-year programs for those universities?
19

MR. SAKAMOTO: My impression is

20 that -- and I have mentioned this among the other
21 chancellors -- Maui County has clearly led the way.
22 There has been in -- there's some support given to
23 Kauai Community College from the County, but it's -24 it's not compared with the magnitude and consistency
25 of support that Maui County has delivered to higher
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1 education. So I don't believe that there's any other
2 county in the state that is moving in this kind of
3 direction or has had any kind of a history in this
4 direction.
5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank

6 you.
7
8
9

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
Member Pontanilla, and again, the Chair --

10 before you speak, Member Pontanilla, the Chair
11 reminds you that I would like to go ahead and wrap up
12 the line of questioning. And if you have additional
13 questions we would love to get that information in
14 writing, and the Chair does intend to make, have some
15 questions available for Dr. Sakamoto to respond to,
16 and that way we can make arrangements for him to come
17 back. But if you can -- because we have a big agenda
18 today, Members, so we need to -- we need to move,
19 yeah. So Member Pontanilla.
20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

21 Chair. Just one question.
22

Again, looking at your handout, in 1997,

23 the local economic impact study for University of
24 Hawaii Hilo created a $90 million -- $90 million in
25 economic impact.
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1

MR. SAKAMOTO: Right.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Did you

3 folks do any projection for Maui?
4

MR. SAKAMOTO: We are looking for that

5 data as we speak. We know that the university has a
6 recent publication on university-wide economic
7 impact. We don't have specific numbers for Maui,
8 unfortunately. But, if you can imagine the kind of
9 80, $90 million impact back in '97 on the Hilo
10 community and the Big Island today, that was like
11 eight years ago. And so I would expect that the
12 impact today would be much larger.
13

And we're -- our college, the size of UH

14 Hilo's. UH Hilo is, as I mentioned at about
15 23 million, about two and a half times the size in
16 terms of resources that our college enjoys. And so
17 the -- I believe that the impact eventually in Maui
18 County would be even more dramatic.
19

The -- and I will just say this, that in

20 the past, we pursued the University Center track
21 primarily because of our concern for the University
22 of Hawaii at Hilo's development. Now that they have
23 matured, developed in a fashion that appears to be
24 very, very stable, we feel very comfortable in going
25 ahead and developing our own programs and essentially
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1 offering another alternative.
2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fine.

3 Thank you, Chair.
4

CHAIR KANE: Thank you,

5 Mr. Pontanilla.
6

Dr. Sakamoto, what I will do is I will go

7 ahead and we will reiterate the questions that I have
8 as one of the nine Members of this Committee. I will
9 send those in writing, but I will give you, I guess,
10 a peek at what my thoughts are going on right now.
11

I would like to know, first and foremost,

12 what specifically is the financial support relative
13 to the mission of your pursuit for developing a
14 four-year college from the State level, specific to
15 the development of the four-year college? And I need
16 to know that coming from is the -- does the UH system
17 have a specific plan that they are going to do to
18 help you with this endeavor?
19

And I also want to know what the State

20 legislature and the Governor's office, specifically
21 to financial support and moving forward towards this,
22 if there's been any discussions that this body I
23 think could use to help determine what type of
24 support this body can provide for you.
25

I think another question that was asked by
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1 Member Molina, if I am not mistaken, it would be good
2 for us to understand what the support of the rela -3 of the respective counties have been giving to their
4 colleges with respects to pursuing those goals that
5 they have had.
6

I think Member Molina made a point of going

7 from two to four years on Kauai is not a goal, but
8 because it is here, it comes right back to, well,
9 what is the State doing to help you achieve that? Is
10 that the goal of the State to see this -- this -11 this campus here on Maui develop into a four-year
12 college? And if so, we need to understand what that
13 plan is and how they are going to go about achieving
14 it, and how we fit in it. I would hate to see us
15 leading it, and then not getting the support from the
16 State, and then it just sets things up for failure.
17 So I need to understand that and how we are going to
18 be a very proactive partner with that -- with that
19 pursuit.
20

The other thing I would like to pose to you

21 is, because this is multiple year, you are asking us
22 basically for six years of commitment. And realizing
23 that, as you said, it's on a yearly basis. And so
24 what happens this year may not happen next year or
25 three years from now, and how that may -- what --
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1 what ramifications will there be if, again, the State
2 is or isn't on board, how will that impact the local
3 taxpayer, the County taxpayer?
4

Because then we are taking on a

5 responsibility with the only way of getting revenue
6 is property tax, you know, and taking on some
7 responsibility that really, by HRS, you know, is a
8 State obligation and responsibility to move forward
9 on what they want to achieve.
10

So I -- you know, there's a few things

11 there that I think I need to get clarified before I
12 can feel comfortable with moving forward.
13

So if you could please, and I will make

14 sure that -- focus those thoughts with our staff, and
15 we will get those questions to you along with any
16 other questions that we receive from the Committee,
17 and we hope to get a response. And we will make
18 arrangements to suit the schedules, so if you need to
19 come back, we can have you further the discussion.
20

Members, so if you could please get those

21 questions to the Committee if you have any further.
22

Thank you, Dr. Sakamoto.

23

MR. SAKAMOTO: Thank you all.

24 Appreciate it.
25

CHAIR KANE: Members, it's 10:30. A
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1 few things. Is there anybody else here in the
2 audience that has not testified that would like to do
3 so?
4

Seeing nobody approaching, Members, without

5 objection, we will close public testimony for today's
6 meeting.
7 COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So we will

8
9 close that up.
10
11

. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .
CHAIR KANE: Members, we do have

12 Ms. Kreig here. What we will do is we will go ahead
13 and take a 15-minute recess. We are right at 10:30,
14 so I think we are on schedule in that respect. At
15 10:45, we will open up. Director Morrison will give
16 us some comments, and then we will proceed with
17 Ms. Kreig. And then move on, hopefully, with the
18 time allotted to Mr. Moto to have a further
19 discussion. Then we will break for lunch. So that's
20 what we are anticipating.
21
22

We are in recess until 10:45. (Gavel.)
RECESS: 10:30 a.m.

23 RECONVENE: 10:52 a.m.
24

CHAIR KANE: (Gavel.) To reconvene,

25 Members, slight change. The intent is -- well, we
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1 will make it very simple. We do have Ms. Kreig here
2 this morning. We will be speaking about
3 reallocations and the hiring process and the
4 questions that you folks have will be acknowledged.
5

We will not be meeting with Corporation

6 Counsel at this time. The Chair, after having a
7 discussion with Corporation Counsel, feels that it is
8 not necessary for us to have a discussion on that
9 until a later point in time, and that is because the
10 judicial component of that issue has still not been
11 finalized. And so until we get that, we would not
12 have a firm number to be talking about financially.
13 So we will wait until the appropriate time to have
14 that discussion, so we are going to defer on that
15 discussion.
16

At this time, we have Ms. Lynn Kreig from

17 the Department of Personnel Services. Prior to
18 recognizing her, I know that Ms. or Director Morrison
19 wanted to share a few comments, but I have also had a
20 discussion with her, and at this time, we will go
21 ahead and defer on those comments, unless we see a
22 need to bring forward some issues. So we will go
23 ahead and give the floor to Ms. Krieg.
24

Good morning, Ms. Krieg. And thank you for

25 your patience. I know you were sitting from
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1 9:00 listening to the discussion, so thank you for
2 your patience.
3

MS. KRIEG: Okay. Good morning,

4 everyone. This morning, I was asked to -- at first I
5 was asked to do a presentation which would add to
6 your understanding regarding such actions as are
7 allocations, reallocations, et cetera. And then as I
8 was leaving yesterday, it was added to the task to
9 give you an overview of the hiring process.
10

So I would like to begin this morning,

11 first of all, by making sure that everyone has the
12 handout that I prepared late yesterday afternoon.
13 The front page has -- it starts with the heading
14 Definitions. And I would like to start there first
15 by going over some basic definitions and some terms
16 of -- terms that we use in personnel. And if I go
17 through those and work through the definitions that I
18 presented, maybe we can come to an understanding of
19 some of the questions that you have.
20

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

21

MS. KRIEG: Okay. First of all, the

22 definition of a position. A position means a
23 specific job, whether it is occupied or vacant,
24 consisting of all the duties and responsibilities
25 assigned or delegated by competent authority
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1 requiring full or part-time employment of one person.
2

There is a slight typo there where we

3 inserted position description before the example that
4 is given there.
5

But a position, for example, is PS0017 is a

6 position in the Department of Personnel Services
7 allocated to the training coordinator class. Okay.
8

A position description is the official

9 record of the duties and responsibilities assigned to
10 one position.
11

Now, the class means all positions which

12 are sufficiently similar with respect to their
13 duties, responsibilities, and authority, and level of
14 difficulty. They have the same title, the same
15 salary range, and the same minimum education and
16 experience requirements. The Secretary I, for
17 example, is a class. There may be 12 positions
18 assigned to this class. Seven of these may be in
19 Public Works, three in Parks, one in Police, one in
20 Liquor.
21

Initial allocation means a placement of a

22 position in a specific class and related pay range on
23 the basis of its duties and responsibilities and
24 qualification requirements when a new position is
25 first established. And an initial allocation is done
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1 based on the duties and responsibilities assigned.
2 The final determination is made by the Department of
3 Personnel Services.
4

A reallocation means the movement of a

5 position from one class to another on the basis of
6 changes in the duties and responsibilities and
7 qualification requirements. Now, there are a number
8 of reasons why reallocations occur. And some of
9 these would be because a position is allocated to
10 what we call a career ladder series. And these are
11 series that progress from a trainee level to a
12 journey level worker and/or super-journey level or
13 even supervisory series.
14

And for example, your fire fighters, your

15 Fire Fighter series is a career ladder series that
16 progresses from Fire Fighter Trainee all the way up.
17 Your Ocean Safety Officers is another series that
18 progresses from Ocean Safety Officer I, II, III, to
19 Supervising Ocean Safety Officer, et cetera.
20 Planner I, II, III, okay.
21

So initially, when the Department comes to

22 request expansion positions, they may come to you to
23 request that the positions be established at the
24 trainee level. You don't expect the positions to
25 remain trainees throughout their 30-some-odd-year
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1 career. You expect those positions or the incumbents
2 to become trained and to progress throughout their
3 careers and to be reallocated as they progress.
4 Okay.
5

Another reason why reallocations may occur

6 is to facilitate recruitment. Now, if a position is
7 vacated, either through a promotion, a transfer, a
8 retirement, or a resignation, the position may be
9 down-reallocated to facilitate such a recruitment to
10 fill the position. So you may have a position
11 functioning at the journey level, and that person
12 either retires, transfers out, or takes a promotion
13 to a supervisory or a managerial level. The
14 Department may attempt to fill that position at that
15 journey level, or they may decide to fill that
16 position at the trainee level. That is a managerial
17 decision. If they decide to downgrade -- to fill the
18 position, excuse me, at the trainee level, they will
19 reallocate the position downwards. Okay.
20

Other reasons for reallocating a position

21 is based on operational need.
22

Now, new functions may be added as a result

23 of changes in state law or administrative rules, or
24 technological advancements may require that new
25 skills be added to positions, and this may result in
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1 upgrading of a position or vice versa. Maybe because
2 of technological advancements, they may result in job
3 changes that subsequently result in lack of work
4 where you no longer need the number of positions that
5 you have, and therefore you will need to deploy those
6 positions elsewhere, change the nature of the work
7 that the people are doing. Again, these will be
8 reallocations.
9

Another reason for reallocation will be as

10 a result of reorganization. As departments go
11 through ongoing review and evaluation of operational
12 needs, determinations may be made that changes are
13 needed as the way work is accomplished. For example,
14 a determination may be made that the span of control
15 for a work group has become too large and a crew
16 needs to be split in two, and one position needs to
17 be upgraded to working supervisor; or vice versa,
18 that now you no longer need two crews, you are going
19 to consolidate them into one, and you are going to
20 downgrade a working supervisor position. Okay.
21

So you know, I guess the message here is

22 that the mechanics of reallocations, whether they be
23 upward reallocations or downward reallocations, these
24 are management tools. This is how management -- this
25 is one way, anyway, that management goes about making
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1 the best use of the manpower that they have.
2

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Krieg, before you go

3 any further, are you done with the definitions
4 portion?
5

MS. KRIEG: Yes.

6

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Great.

7

Members, because there was a lot of stuff

8 that was just told, I open it up for questions at
9 this time. Mr. Hokama.
10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you. I

11 think this is going to be very helpful for all of us,
12 Mr. Chairman, because while it's similar, it is still
13 yet different from how we have done it in the private
14 sector. And I am sure Ms. Krieg can also share with
15 us that some of these things may be impacted to
16 degrees regarding Collective Bargaining Agreements
17 and the specific union that we need to deal with
18 regarding certain departments.
19

My first question, which is interesting, on

20 the position description, Director Krieg, is the term
21 official record of the duties.
22

MS. KRIEG: Yes.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So my simple

24 question, on the reverse, then, is there unofficial
25 duties assigned to positions? I mean, why is the
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1 term phrased that way, official record? Is that a
2 legal thing, the position description?Krieg
3

MS. KRIEG: This is the official

4 record, so if the employee claims that or anyone else
5 claims that their job is such-and-such, it will
6 always go back to this record, which we have on file.
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And thank

8 you for explaining it that way. My other question
9 would be in the area of reallocation, please. Under
10 facilitate recruitment, I am assuming that the
11 position, such as our -- our understanding of the
12 difficulty regarding engineers, the position may be
13 also reallocated upwards to facilitate recruitment?
14 Is that -- does it go both ways, or is it only a
15 downward movement to facilitate recruitment?
16

MS. KRIEG: Krieg could go --

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Up.

18

MS. KRIEG: It could go up. If the

19 experience -- if the recruitment experience is such
20 that we are seeing that, you know, there is -- there
21 are a pool of applicants or candidates out there that
22 are at the higher level, then of course we would
23 encourage the Department to recruit at the higher
24 level. But that hasn't been the experience.
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And

84
1 regarding reallocation under operational need, the
2 next category, thank you for sharing this part
3 because we have heard testimony from certain
4 employees that they are going beyond their scope of
5 work, a job description, to perform as they see fit
6 regarding certain situations, which troubles me.
7 Because the charter, and whether it be by charter or
8 County ordinance, which is our law, it's been
9 assigned to another area, and another department.
10

So when those type of situations occur, who

11 is the responsible entity that needs to deal with
12 that? The Civil Service Commission? The Council?
13 Collective Bargaining?
14

MS. KRIEG: If an employee feels that

15 they are functioning outside of their assigned duties
16 and responsibilities, they need to bring that to the
17 attention of their supervisor and their department.
18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: First.

19

MS. KRIEG: First. That's the first

20 line. Because they have a right to what -- well,
21 first of all, every employee should have a copy of
22 their position description. Okay. Every employee,
23 during the annual performance evaluation, should have
24 the opportunity to go over their position description
25 because the evaluation as to their work performance
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1 should be based on their position description, the
2 duties and responsibilities assigned.
3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I

4 understand that.
5

MS. KRIEG: So at that time, if they

6 feel that they are working out of -- what we call out
7 of class or out of -- beyond the scope of their
8 position description, that is the appropriate time to
9 bring that to the attention of their supervisor, and
10 at that time, they should have the opportunity to
11 present it. If not informally, they can -- they also
12 have the opportunity to present it formally in
13 writing, what they feel their position description,
14 the changes or amendments should be.
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Now, I know

16 if it's part of a supervisor giving them a job or
17 it's, you know, normally potential grounds for
18 grievance, and we have a set grievance procedure
19 established by collective bargaining, the employee
20 voluntarily goes outside the scope of authority
21 and -- and description, job description, regarding
22 the official record of the employee's duties, does it
23 make a difference?
24

MS. KRIEG: Yes. Because the

25 supervisor at that time or -- not just at the annual
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1 review time, but at any time, it's the supervisor's
2 responsibility to know what the employee is doing.
3 And if the supervisor knows that the employee is
4 working beyond the scope of the duties and
5 responsibilities assigned, and that the added work
6 that the employee is assuming, whether it's voluntary
7 or not, may be such that it -- it warrants additional
8 compensation, working out of -- what we call working
9 out of class, it is the supervisor's responsibility
10 to put a stop to it.
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.

12 I am happy to relinquish, and I will let other
13 Members question regarding this area, Chairman.
14

CHAIR KANE: And the Chair feels that

15 we could take it a few steps further, but thank you
16 for -17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.

18

CHAIR KANE: -- yielding the floor on

19 that. You have compelled the Chair to ask.
20

Member Pontanilla followed by Member

21 Tavares.
22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

23 Chair.
24

Question on the career ladder series, let's

25 say, for instance, you have a Fire Fighter I, is
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1 there a base pay that they start off with, and I
2 guess a maximum pay for that particular job class?
3

MS. KRIEG: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: There is.

5

MS. KRIEG: KriegYes. Please don't

6 ask me what that is. I didn't bring the salary
7 range.
8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No. No. I

9 won't. But I see some of the other positions where
10 they start off, like, Class I and then, all of a
11 sudden, they are reallocated to Class II, III, or IV.
12 I am assuming that if that person was in class I, has
13 already succeeded the maximum that goes to the next
14 level, Class II, and so forth. And then what I see
15 here is that what's happening, you know, by the
16 system, is that we are looking at individuals', in
17 fact, positions that are now being created at a
18 higher level. In other words, you know, when we
19 down -- down-reallocate.
20

MS. KRIEG: Mm-hmm.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Reallocate.

22 Yeah, I know like Member Hokama says, in the private
23 sector, you do have like entry-level-type positions,
24 and then as you get promoted, the entry-type position
25 would be the one that is vacated because of
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1 promotions, retirement, and so forth. And rather
2 than have employees come in and have a lot of higher
3 classification, there's hardly any room -- well, I
4 hardly see, you know, those lower classifications,
5 which I assume would be the more entry level, and as
6 retirements occur, promotions to a higher
7 classification, then movement would be going on a
8 step basis, you know.
9

So what I see here is, as far as salaries

10 and wages, we just keep on increasing those numbers
11 on a yearly basis. Of course, you know, we do have
12 the yearly increases for the union members, and that
13 kind of puzzles me in the sense that whenever there's
14 a vacancy, it's, you know -- the promotion is made,
15 and the allocation is now for a lower position that
16 has been down-allocated. We don't see, you know,
17 like reallocate -- normally, we see reallocated from
18 blah, blah, blah, and the word reallocated, you know,
19 I think, should be changed to promoted, you know,
20 promoted from Class I. And that, you know, clearly
21 gives me an idea that a person had been promoted to a
22 higher classification rather than just moving up a
23 classification. That's one comment that I'd like to
24 make.
25

Let's see. I am assuming that -- that all
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1 of these examples that you show are negotiated or is
2 agreed upon with the various unions.
3

MS. KRIEG: No.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: They are

5 not?
6

MS. KRIEG: No.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.

8 Fine.
9

MS. KRIEG: Class -- these are

10 classification actions. When it comes to
11 allocations, reallocations, these are classification
12 actions, and classification actions are
13 nonnegotiable.
14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Non-

15 negotiable?
16

MS. KRIEG: Nonnegotiable. And as far

17 as your previous statements regarding the difference
18 between reallocation and promotion and stuff,
19 reallocations occur to a position. A position can
20 change classification, can change, you know -- it
21 can -- one day, it will be a Fire Fighter I, and as
22 the individual in that position progresses in his
23 years of service and earns more experience on the
24 job, the position is assigned more duties, and the
25 position progresses from Fire Fighter Trainee to Fire
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1 Fighter I, Fire Fighter II, but the person in the
2 position remains in that position.
3

For a promotion, you have two positions.

4 The person moves from one position to another, and
5 that's why we don't use the terms interchangeably
6 because they mean different things.
7

A promotion, when a promotion occurs,

8 there's actual movement of the incumbent from one
9 position to another. So when -- whenever we use the
10 term promotion, there's more than one position. When
11 we use the term reallocation, there's only one
12 position. It's just everything occurs around that
13 position.
14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And that

15 individual that's in that position.
16
17

MS. KRIEG: And the individual.
I mean, you know, the position can be

18 vacant, but everything -- the actions all occur
19 around that one position.
20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. So

21 let me get this straight. If I come in as a Fire
22 Fighter I, and through training, and whatever
23 requirements that I need to get to Fire Fighter II,
24 once I have done that requirement, automatically, I
25 move to Fire Fighter II?
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1

MS. KRIEG: If you are -- you know, if

2 the Chief feels that you are sufficiently -3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah,

4 yeah. You know, with that kind of, I guess, review
5 from the Fire Chief.
6

MS. KRIEG: Right.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Then you go

8 to Fire Fighter II -- Fire Fighter II, as well as,
9 later on, to Fire Fighter III.
10

MS. KRIEG: But after that, whether it

11 is at the I or II or the III level, after that, they
12 become -- there may be promotions. You may need to
13 be -- to change a position because not everybody
14 becomes a Fire Fighter III.
15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No. No.

16 That's understandable, yeah.
17

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So that's

19 the progression that each individual must go through,
20 then?
21

MS. KRIEG: Right.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

23 Fine. That's where I think I was getting so
24 confused.
25

MS. KRIEG: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

1
2 Thank you.
3

Thank you, Chair.

4
5

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank

6
7 you.
8

When the departments are formulating their

9 budgets, do they consult with you about reallocations
10 and positions and what they should look like when
11 they are presented in the budget, or is each
12 department kind of on their own?
13

MS. KRIEG: Not every department does.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think we

15 have been seeing, and the only reason I ask is
16 because we are -- we are seeing, I guess, an
17 inconsistency in the way budget requests regarding
18 expansion positions are coming to us.
19

Do you -- do you advise them on the

20 expansion positions? I know they have to go through
21 you for the reallocation, so that's a given already.
22 But on an expansion position, the initial what are
23 they going to -- what are they wanting, what should
24 it be called, what class, what kind of description or
25 whatever --
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1

MS. KRIEG: Not every department does.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I think

3 that clears up a lot of the questions we have been
4 asking about why does one department do one way and
5 another department do another way. Okay. And thank
6 you. And hopefully, from the next budget, we will
7 have a little more integrated approach and
8 coordinated approach to expansion positions so there
9 is a set approach to where they are going to put them
10 and how much they are figuring what the salary range
11 is going to be and stuff like that.
12

MS. KRIEG: I think --

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you check

14 the salary ranges that they put down for like when
15 they put eight-month funding and the salary that they
16 assign to that? Are you involved in that part?
17

MS. KRIEG: No.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

19 you.
20
21
22

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank

23 you.
24

Good morning. I would like to continue the

25 questionings that Mr. Pontanilla was referring to
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1 relative to a Fire Fighter I, just for the -- the -2 using an example. My interest is in the addition to
3 responsibilities for a Fight Fighter I to a point
4 where they are perhaps doing administrative or CIP
5 responsibilities. The question would be, like, how
6 is compensation addressed when you take a Fire
7 Fighter I, who's doing more administrative or CIP
8 developments for a specific department, and it is not
9 a long-term use of the individual or the position; it
10 is just a short-term use. How is compensation done
11 in that specific regard? Because the individual's
12 actual responsibility has definitely changed.
13

MS. KRIEG: Normally, if duties and

14 responsibilities are added to a position, then the
15 departments would submit a redescription review
16 request through channels, and it would come to us for
17 a review, and we would make a determination as to
18 whether or not the change is significant enough to
19 warrant reallocation.
20

There are instances where, if it's only a

21 temporary change, sometimes we have what we call
22 temporary reallocations, where we have higher level
23 classes that we establish or -- we can either
24 establish it, or we already have them established.
25 And if this assignment is not going to be permanent,
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1 we will temporarily reallocate the position for the
2 period of time that they will be performing that
3 function.
4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And therefore,

5 the differential in compensation would be based on
6 the greater responsibility that has been assigned
7 or -8

MS. KRIEG: Correct.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And not just the

10 classification?
11

MS. KRIEG: Well, it's -- it's a

12 new -- it's a different -- it may be a different
13 classification, but just for the period of the time
14 that the position will be functioning at that higher
15 level, the person will get an added compensation.
16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very

17 much.
18
19
20

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Before I recognize you, Mr. Hokama -- go

21 ahead. Mr. Hokama, go ahead.
22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick

23 follow-up.
24

Temporary reallocation, the employee is

25 willing to do the additional assignment, goes through
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1 you. Who is responsible to make sure there's enough
2 money, though, to pay for that differential? Or do
3 they have to make sure they have the money before
4 they should come to you and say we want to do this?
5

Because let's say they are on a tight,

6 tight budget because they spent their money different
7 ways within their program, or performance budgeting,
8 and they would like to do it, everybody is in
9 agreement, but they don't have the funds? It just
10 stops right there?
11

MS. KRIEG: Whenever the departments

12 make requests, we are not the department that looks
13 at whether or not they have money or not. We just
14 look at classification. They have to make
15 determinations as to whether they have money to
16 afford it.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So in the normal

18 processing of this personnel action, we go to Budget
19 Director first, to make sure there's sufficient
20 funds -21

MS. KRIEG: Correct.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- to do the

23 action if approved. Then they would come to you -24 not come to you but then go see Ms. Morrison, and say
25 Budget Director, we got it approved, but we no more
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1 the money, so what we can -- so that would be the
2 correct way to do it?
3

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.

5

MS. KRIEG: If I may, going back to

6 Ms. Tavares' question as to whether or not we check
7 the -- the department's entries, you know, at the
8 time or before they make their request for the
9 budget. The Department of Personnel Services, until
10 as recent as last week, did not even get the budget
11 details for other departments.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Geez. Okay.

13

MS. KRIEG: We only got our own.

14

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you mean

16 totally in the past, ever?
17

MS. KRIEG: I believe -- I don't know

18 at what point it stopped, but I did not get it -- we
19 did not get the budget details for years.
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But at one

21 time you did?
22

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

24

CHAIR KANE: Further questions

25 regarding the definitions, Members, and then we will
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1 allow Ms. Krieg to continue with her presentation and
2 getting into the hiring process. Okay.
3

Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla, before we

4 proceed.
5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a

6 quick one.
7

I guess, coming from the private sector,

8 again, when we do have engineers, you know, we have
9 different classification for engineers, like say we
10 have like, say, Engineer Classification V, which
11 would be the highest. Then we would have a number of
12 Engineer V for the engineering department; then IV,
13 you would have a number; III, you would have a
14 number; II, a number; and I, a number. That way, at
15 least you get a fairly good idea as far as your
16 personnel head count in that one particular
17 department as far as engineers.
18

Now, if there's a vacancy in any of these,

19 I to V, of course I, you know, you probably go out on
20 the street and hire somebody to fill in that
21 position. But if there's a vacancy in the higher
22 classification, then it becomes competitive for
23 everyone down below. And you select your person from
24 within, if possible, to fill in that vacancy, which
25 will create another vacancy on the lower level. That
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1 way you get a fairly good idea as far as the
2 classification, the number of employees which you can
3 really keep track as far as for budgeting purposes,
4 you know, how much each classification is going to be
5 making.
6

Over here, it is like when you come to the

7 budget, all of a sudden, you go, whoa, you know, this
8 guy got promoted, that guy got promoted, and it's
9 like fair game. So I don't know how you folks can
10 tighten up that, but that's one thing that we need to
11 look at.
12
13

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And you know,

14 before we move forward, just one more follow-up on
15 the response that Ms. Krieg gave to Ms. Tavares.
16

Ms. Krieg, can you state why it is

17 important that you would -- you would get the details
18 in your possession of the entire county and the -19 and the departments? What -- what's important about
20 your statement when you said that until even up as
21 far as last week, you haven't received it? So what
22 would receiving it do to enhance the performance of
23 the Department relative to the functioning of the
24 County?
25

MS. KRIEG: I would know what people
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1 are asking for.
2

CHAIR KANE: And so, to be clear, you

3 are saying that you don't know what people are asking
4 for in the other departments?
5

MS. KRIEG: No.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair,

7 clarification.
8

CHAIR KANE: Please, Ms. Tavares.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You are

10 talking about just the personnel portion.
11

MS. KRIEG: Right.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not the entire

13 operations.
14

CHAIR KANE: No, no, the personnel.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Personnel

16 only, right? Okay.
17

CHAIR KANE: And that's where my

18 question is personnel, and the importance of
19 receiving it so you -- so the Department knows the
20 personnel requests throughout the County.
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

22

MS. KRIEG: In fact, that's how I came

23 upon receiving a copy because I was asked, or I guess
24 there was an assumption that I had a copy, and I was
25 asked a question, and reference was made to pages of
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1 the budget details. And so my reply was, you know, I
2 don't have a copy of the budget details. I am never
3 given a copy of the budget details except for the
4 pages that relate to my department.
5

CHAIR KANE: And that -- and that

6 question, to be clear, was that question, was that
7 engagement in this Chamber, or was administratively
8 you are talking about, that interaction of the
9 question, and you responding saying I don't know?
10

MS. KRIEG: Administratively.

11

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. I will keep

12 it that general.
13
14

Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that was an

15 interesting question by my colleague from Upcountry,
16 because -- and what you've kind of entered into,
17 Chairman, regarding these definitions because I have
18 varied levels of confidence of our directors of
19 various departments in their understanding of the
20 Collective Bargaining Agreement. And I am assuming
21 that when they are asking for stuff, it is within the
22 current agreements and how we, as an employer, have
23 decided to move forward with appropriate collective
24 bargaining agents or unions on how to approach new
25 positions, and again whether or not they should be a
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1 civil service position, an appointed position, exempt
2 position, what. I expect it to have been checked out
3 and what is presented to us is the correct way to
4 approach it either by contract agreement or by law.
5

And what I am hearing is that not -- that

6 may not be so, and that concerns me greatly,
7 Chairman. And I just wanted to bring that up,
8 because I am assuming when I see all these Xs by
9 positions, where normally it is a recommended salary
10 range with that type of classification so we can put
11 the appropriate money, should we support it, now
12 questions to me whether or not certain departments
13 know what they are really asking for regarding
14 appropriate compensation for the responsibilities
15 they are asking in some of the expansions.
16

So thank you for letting me make that

17 statement.
18

CHAIR KANE: No. And before I

19 recognize Director Morrison, the Chair will ask Staff
20 to pose a question to Director Krieg, now that she's
21 stated that she just got her details, I think it
22 would be incumbent upon us to request a review of the
23 details of the departments with respects to what we
24 are discussing now, and have her provide response as
25 to the appropriateness of the requests, especially
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1 for the expansion positions, and have her come back
2 and let us know whether or not those requests are in
3 line with what you have just discussed, Mr. Hokama.
4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again,

5 Chairman, you know, I understand her restricted
6 areas, but that's something Department of Management
7 is supposed to be doing.
8

CHAIR KANE: That's right. That's

9 right. So Members, without objection, we will get
10 that question posed and sent to Ms. Krieg and provide
11 her the time she needs to respond to it, and it may
12 be a difficult task to take on, but we are going to
13 ask it, and we hope we can get a response relative to
14 the time that she has.
15

So thank you, Ms. Krieg.

16

Ms. Tavares.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah,

18 Mr. Chair. Can I ask your staff if a question has
19 already gone out to personnel regarding a review of
20 the expansion positions, or was I just dreaming about
21 that the other night?
22

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.

23

MS. KOLLER: We will take a check

24 through the letters now, and then we will respond
25 back.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

1
2 you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

3
4

Director Morrison, if you have comment,

5 please.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

6

7 I just felt Lynn was being hesitant so say that it
8 was me that had called her or e-mailed her with a
9 question about a position, and she e-mailed me back
10 and said I don't know because I don't know the page
11 number you are referring to. I don't have the budget
12 details, and she received them very shortly
13 thereafter.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank

14
15 you very much.
16

Okay. Members, without objection, we will

17 go ahead and proceed with the presentation. Hang on.
18

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, there was a

19 question that went out -20

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, I think this

21 is the answer to your question. I am sorry.
22

MS. KOLLER: It was in reference to

23 our meeting of March 29th. There was a question that
24 went out requesting the department's assistance in
25 reviewing the attached list of proposed expansion
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1 positions from the Mayor's proposed Fiscal Year 2006
2 budget. And then also to indicate how long it will
3 take to fill these positions.
4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I wasn't

5 dreaming. Thank you. Okay.
6

CHAIR KANE: So I guess the question

7 now becomes is that question specific enough to
8 respond to the discussion that we just had to get
9 clarification on the importance?
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't think

11 it addressed what Mr. Hokama wants.
12

CHAIR KANE: Exactly. So

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The question

14 already went up. We will probably have to follow up
15 with an additional question relating to those
16 positions. I guess that's whether or not it's legal
17 to have the position as described, either through
18 collective bargaining or State law or County law.
19

CHAIR KANE: And -- and in the

20 interest of time, I am going to ask staff, instead of
21 trying to reiterate, because I know it was kind of a
22 difficult question, I will ask that maybe we can get
23 the tape played back, and they can listen to the
24 discussion in the last -- in the previous five
25 minutes, and they can get a clear follow-up question
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1 to be sent for Director Krieg.
2

Ms. Koller, you okay with that? Okay.

3

Members, without objection, let's go ahead

4 and proceed.
5

Ms. Krieg, thank you. Go ahead regarding

6 hiring process.
7

MS. KRIEG: Okay.

8

CHAIR KANE: Boy, oh, boy, yeah? Here

9 we go.
10

MS. KRIEG: Now we are getting to the

11 interesting part. The hiring process.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Before lunch.

13

MS. KRIEG: I know. Okay. The hiring

14 process begins with the -- of course, after all of
15 these positions requests are approved, but it begins
16 with a request for position action or what we
17 commonly refer to as a manpower request, which the
18 department generates and submits with the position
19 description, and these are attached and submitted to
20 the Budget Director for approval.
21

After the Budget Director, the request goes

22 to the Managing Director. And when both approvals
23 are obtained, the request is routed to DPS.
24

This process takes anywhere from three to

25 four days to months, depending on the availability of
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1 the parties and the nature of the request. That is,
2 it normally -- normally expansion positions are not
3 questioned. A review is done by the Budget Office.
4 If the request is in accordance with the Budget
5 Ordinance. But out-of-the-ordinary requests may be
6 delayed.
7

Once the request is received by DPS, there

8 is an assignment to a personnel specialist -9 specialist for audit review and allocation of the
10 position. Routine requests will have a desk audit
11 done, and these are requests for additional positions
12 of the same class, like, for example, police radio
13 dispatchers. The specialist will review position
14 description that is submitted by the department to
15 check if the duties and responsibilities being
16 assigned are comparable to already existing
17 positions. And if there are no significant
18 differences, the position actions will be finalized
19 and routed to the director or deputy for approval.
20

The DPS classification action is based on

21 assigned duties and responsibilities and not
22 necessarily the title or salary as represented in the
23 budget details. And this action for routine requests
24 is -- usually takes about one to five days depending
25 on the work load. And this is one to five days after
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1 DPS receives it.
2

For nonroutine requests, and these are

3 requests for new functions not currently being
4 performed by any existing classes within the County.
5 Now, these requests require field audits, what we
6 call field audits. And these are in-depth interviews
7 with the supervisor. It could be also interviews
8 with department heads, division heads, and other
9 subject-matter experts. They may require research
10 into how functions are being performed in other
11 jurisdictions or in private sector. Information
12 needs to be collected as to how the work was being
13 performed before, or why this -- if it's totally new
14 work, why it's being required now.
15

Once action is taken, it must be routed to

16 the director and the deputy for approval. The
17 department is notified of the action, and the
18 department has 20 days to appeal the action if they
19 disagree.
20

Now, on these requests, what is requested

21 in the budget may not be what is approved by DPS or
22 what is created by DPS. It will all depend on the
23 duties and responsibilities contained in the position
24 description and the classification action that is
25 concluded by Department of Personnel Services.
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1

This may take anywhere from two to six

2 months depending on the class, the nature of the
3 class that's being requested. It may take even
4 longer if the department decides to appeal the action
5 that we take.
6

If they are in total disagreement, we will

7 have what we call an administrative review process
8 first. If we simply cannot come to terms, they have
9 the right to file an appeal before the Civil Service
10 Commission. This will take anywhere -- at least two
11 months.
12

If this request for establishment of the

13 position is part of a reorganization, the department
14 is required to enter into consultation with the
15 unions and submit their reorganization plans and
16 propose tables of organization to the Managing
17 Director and to DPS for review, comment, and
18 approval. The proposed position description should
19 be part of the proposed reorganization plan.
20

Once the reorganization plan is approved

21 and union consultation is completed, the department
22 requests the request for position action or manpower
23 as in Item 1 above, and then the process continues.
24 Now, the process to get the reorganization approved
25 and union consultation done may take one month to six
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1 months, depending on the type of reorganization.
2 Also, depends on the breadth and scope of the
3 reorganization.
4

The union is always concerned regarding the

5 effects on their current employees. Once approvals
6 are received and the department reaches the manpower
7 stage, the process is as listed above.
8

CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair is

9 going to stop there. Any questions to this point
10 regarding the first two steps of the process?
11
12

Mr. Hokama followed by Ms. Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What caught my eye

13 is a couple of quick things, nonroutine requests. Is
14 the Civil Service Commission, as directed by charter,
15 the final authority regarding a decision when a
16 department does not agree with your department -17 your decision? Is that the final appeal they can go
18 to, to the courts?
19

MS. KRIEG: They can go to the courts.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can they do only

21 one, or can they do both? Appeal to the Commission
22 and the courts, or just the Commission or the courts?
23

MS. KRIEG: They appeal to the

24 Commission and then they take the Commission's
25 decision to the courts.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Hawaii

1

2 State Labor Relations Board does not enter regarding
3 this type of personnel issue?
4

MS. KRIEG: Not initial

5 classification.
6
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
Reorganization, you help make a

8 determination whether or not it is to the degree that
9 the unions must be consulted? Who determines
10 whether, you know, adding one of this or taking one
11 of that, adding another group of this becomes a
12 reorganization requiring union consultation?
13

MS. KRIEG: Whenever there's a change

14 in function, whenever there is a change in lines of
15 authority, then there needs to be consultation with
16 the union.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So things like,

18 for example, that we have quickly reviewed, but not
19 completely yet, like Public Works and how they want
20 to adjust their divisions, to me, one of the
21 questions I was going to pose when we get into the
22 detail of the operations was have they gone through a
23 consultation, and whether or not by normal Budget
24 Ordinance they are required to present us with a
25 reorganizational chart.
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You don't -- have you been already

2 consulted for -- for comment whether or not -3 because a few years ago, that was the biggest problem
4 with Planning. They came out with these grand plans
5 and they never talked to the union, until we brought
6 it up. Have you done consultation? And the response
7 was no. And of course, eventually, they did, and we
8 supported most of the requests. But it -- I mean,
9 that's the kind of level, of what term shall I use,
10 competence we have got to deal with at budget time,
11 here.
12

MS. KRIEG: Okay. Are you referring

13 to Public Works or to Planning?
14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, my -- my

15 example of what was done poorly was Planning. But we
16 have big requests in this proposal, specifically,
17 like Public Works in multiple divisions, changing
18 authority lines, adding a working supervisor or
19 whatever it be, but changing the lines of the current
20 structure. Does that require union consultation?
21

MS. KRIEG: It will.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And at this point,

23 either the Budget Director or you cannot answer
24 whether that's been done in advance of what is
25 proposed to us?
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MS. KRIEG: I don't think that they

2 will begin the consultation process until they know
3 whether or not they are going to get approval for the
4 position.
5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So if

6 that's done, and let's say the budget takes effect
7 July 1, normally, how long does this consultation
8 take? And I am asking this as it relates back to the
9 amount of pay you want for the fiscal year, whether
10 it be eight months, six months, 12 months. It's
11 going to impact us how we budget. So do you have a
12 comment for us?
13

MS. KRIEG: Let me go back to my note

14 here.
15

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Krieg, if you are

16 unable to respond -17

MS. KRIEG: Anywhere from one month to

18 six months.
19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And if I can ask,

20 maybe some it might be simpler or not as complex as
21 others, but if again -22

MS. KRIEG: The only -- the only one

23 that I can think of, the only one that I know of was
24 the Highway's request to establish some supervisory
25 position.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Traffic signs

1
2 marker --

MS. KRIEG: Yeah, a superintendent or

3

4 something, yeah.
5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: With that as well

6 as changing how Solid Waste wants to operate with CIP
7 and how, you know, certain administrative function is
8 going down to now another level and what not. You
9 know, I am not too sure.
10

But when it comes to us, I expect a certain

11 level of the process completed, so that what we do
12 here is -- just continues or it is going to end here
13 because we won't agree to the expansion or the
14 funding request. But if there's more that you feel
15 you can share with us, then I would ask the Chair to
16 allow you to take the time to respond in writing,
17 please, Director Krieg.
18

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I am

20 done, Chairman.
21

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, and

22 before I recognize Ms. Anderson, are we clear on the
23 question that you would like a response to? I just
24 want to make sure that Staff has the question clearly
25 stated so Ms. Krieg can respond to what you are
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1 requesting.
2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I am open if the

3 staff has a question, Mr. Chair.
4

CHAIR KANE: Staff, you folks are

5 clear on what's being requested, or if you can ask
6 for clarity.
7

MS. KAWASAKI: Mr. Chairman, my

8 understanding is the question is clarification of how
9 long it takes to consult with the union on
10 reclassifications of positions?
CHAIR KANE: Is that fine for you,

11
12 Mr. Hokama?
13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's basically

14 it, Chairman. Because, again, you know, if it's
15 going to take, because it's complex, half a year,
16 then the department's request to have eight months
17 funding doesn't make sense to me. So I am going to
18 be willing to accept an adjustment in the next Fiscal
19 Year's financial request.
20

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

22

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

23

Ms. Anderson, you have the floor. And I

24 believe Ms. Tavares?
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
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CHAIR KANE: No? Okay, Ms. Anderson.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

3 Mr. Chairman.
4

In regards to reorganization, we have had

5 requests from the Ocean Safety Officers to -6 because, apparently, it's their understanding that if
7 they were under a division other than Parks, that was
8 a Public Safety division, that they would be -9 excuse me -- eligible for grants that they otherwise
10 are not eligible for.
11

So if -- if the Ocean Safety Officers were

12 to put -- were to be put under, say, a Public Safety
13 division or department such as Police or Fire, what
14 would that entail? A complete reorganization?
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Charter

16 change.
17

CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it comes down to a

18 charter change, basically.
19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A charter

20 change?
21

CHAIR KANE: Absolutely.

22

MS. KRIEG: They are effecting a

23 charter change, but that would be a reorganization.
24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So aside from

25 a change in the charter, what would you have to do
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1 internally? The same thing that you just discussed?
2 It would have to go to the union, and -3

MS. KRIEG: Right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we are

5 looking at a long-term process, sounds like.
6

MS. KRIEG: Right. Any time there's

7 changes in lines of authority, in which this would
8 definitely be a change in lines of authority,
9 although this may not -- if the entire division was
10 going, including the administrator, it may not be
11 that much of a change.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In what way?

13

MS. KRIEG: Because, you know, all the

14 internal lines of authority would be retained. It's
15 just that the entire division now would go to another
16 department.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you

18 happen to know if the other counties have their Ocean
19 Safety Officers under another -20

MS. KRIEG: The only county that

21 currently has the Ocean Safety Officers under -22

CHAIR KANE: Fire. Kauai County.

23

MS. KRIEG: -- under Fire is Kauai

24 County, and the City and County of Honolulu has a
25 separate Department of Public Safety.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then the

1

2 Big Island would be Parks also, or do you know?
MS. KRIEG: The Big Island still has

3

4 their Ocean Safety Officers under Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

5
6 you.

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further

7

8 questions under the first two components of the
9 hiring process, Members?
10

If not, Ms. Krieg, please.
MS. KRIEG: Okay. I think I left off

11
12 at recruitment.
13

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

14

MS. KRIEG: Now, once a position is

15 established and allocated to a class, the department
16 is notified of the need to submit an SF1 to DPS for
17 input into the computer system and to confirm
18 intentions of how the position is to be filled
19 because they have various options. They can either
20 fill it through transfer, whether it is internal
21 transfer, whether it is transfer from other
22 departments or from other jurisdictions.
23

They can choose to fill it through

24 promotion without exam, in which they would handle
25 everything themselves. Or through competitive
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1 transfer -- excuse me -- competitive exam, which
2 would require our recruitment.
3

If the department decides to fill from an

4 eligible list, then they would send DPS a request.
5 If the current list of eligibles exists for the
6 class, a certified list of eligibles is sent to the
7 department, which is good for 60 days. The
8 department has the option to request extension of
9 that list, or to have the list recertified if the
10 list expires, if for some reason they can't complete
11 the selection process within 60 days.
12

If a current list does not exist, DPS needs

13 to recruit. Ads are run in the Maui News or Honolulu
14 Advertiser every Sunday and run for two and a half
15 weeks. Applications that are postmarked on the
16 deadline day are accepted even if received after the
17 deadline day. All applications are input into our
18 applicant database and screened for basic
19 requirements such as signature, license requirements,
20 attached certifications, et cetera, and follow-up
21 notices are mailed out as needed.
22

Recruitment files are assigned to a

23 personnel specialist who screens the application for
24 minimum qualifications. Accept or reject notices are
25 sent out along with the notice of exam date and time,
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1 et cetera, and exams are scheduled for approximately
2 two to three weeks later. This process takes about
3 two months.
4

After the exam is given and scored, a

5 certified list of eligibles is established, and a
6 list can be sent to the department upon request. The
7 list is good for one year and may be extended. This
8 process takes about two days, two to three days,
9 unless there are outer island applicants or
10 rescheduled exams, which we need to wait for, or
11 rented exams which need to be sent away for scoring.
12 For example, our fire fighter exams are rented exams,
13 and our police promotional exams and fire fighter
14 trainee exams are all rented exams which are sent
15 away for scoring.
16
17

Now, the hiring department -CHAIR KANE: Before you go any

18 further, let's stop there just for a moment.
19

Members, any questions? The Chair has a

20 question there, but any questions here?
21
22

Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Talking about

23 recruitment, we hear that if we cannot come up with
24 eligible people within Maui County or the State of
25 Hawaii, at what point are you allowed to, or what law
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1 allows you to or prohibits you from recruiting
2 outside of the State of Hawaii?
3

MS. KRIEG: Basically, all -- there is

4 a residency requirement. There's a citizenship
5 requirement, and a resident -- state residency
6 requirement for all employment or filling all
7 positions within all government positions. Okay.
8 But if we experience difficulty in recruiting where
9 we cannot -- where there are no qualified applicants
10 for these positions, then we can waive the residency
11 requirement.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is that

13 waiving of the requirement done by you, as a
14 Director, or does it go to the Civil Service -15

MS. KRIEG: KriegBy me as the

16 director.
17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: By you as the

18 director.
19

MS. KRIEG: Right.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So in the

21 cases of police -- in what cases have you waived the
22 residency?
23

MS. KRIEG: For police, there was a

24 change in the HRS -25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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MS. KRIEG: -- actually, for police,

2 where they allow us to recruit for nonresidents, and
3 the nonresidents can apply, take the test, and be on
4 the eligible list. And for police, they have to be
5 residents at the time they accept the job.
6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. And

7 when you say that if there is no qualified candidate,
8 does one consist of a qualified candidate, and you
9 are forced to hire that one person? If you get -10

MS. KRIEG: Right now -- right now, we

11 say there's three is a bona fide list.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A modified

13 list?
14

MS. KRIEG: Bona fide list.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, bona fide

16 list. Okay.
17

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And normally,

19 is it still five that you send?
20

MS. KRIEG: We follow the rule of

21 five.
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

23

MS. KRIEG: It may be more because it

24 depends if there are tied scores.
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
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1

MS. KRIEG: If there's eight people --

2 because, say, the lowest score, there's three people
3 who tie for it, you will get all eight names.
4
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Right.
And Mr. Chair, you can stop me if I am

6 going way beyond this -7

CHAIR KANE: No, you are right on

8 point.
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- but, you

10 know, we keep hearing about the shortage of engineers
11 and recruiting engineering people and planners. So
12 are those two areas where this requirement has been
13 waived for residency?
14

MS. KRIEG: They have been waived for

15 certain levels.
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Certain

17 levels.
18

MS. KRIEG: Yeah.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So then that,

20 so when you are now doing recruitment on the
21 Mainland, how is it that you get word out outside the
22 State of Hawaii that the County of Maui is seeking
23 applicants for -24

MS. KRIEG: On our website. Right

25 now, our website is the main source, I think, that
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1 carries that message that the residency has been
2 waived. We are -- I think Department of Public Works
3 is also -- if I am not mistaken, they have done some
4 recruitment in engineering journals.
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

6

MS. KRIEG: We are also exploring

7 doing some recruitment in other professional
8 journals. We had a suggestion to do recruitment
9 in -- what do you call those -- windsurfing
10 magazines. But they have not -- you know, we
11 contacted them, we got information regarding the
12 costs and everything, and we sent them examples of -13 of, you know, the ad and everything, but we didn't
14 get any feedback.
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh.

16

MS. KRIEG: But we are still exploring

17 alternatives for that. We also just recently waived
18 the residency for planners.
19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

20

MS. KRIEG: SoKrieg that's another --

21 another area that we would need go out.
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you

23 looking not just at their journals and publications,
24 but also their websites, like the American Planning
25 Association has a website, and maybe some of those
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1 things can be put on there, their website. They
2 might have a recruitment section. I know we get it
3 in the -- I see it in the journals and the magazines.
4

And I guess my other question is are you

5 partnering with, like, MEDB and their Kama'aina Come
6 Home program and tagging up or combining with them as
7 they go out to the various areas where there's a
8 concentration of former Hawaii residents to do some
9 recruitment?
10

MS. KRIEG: No, we haven't, but we

11 can.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That might be

13 good outlet because they seem to be bringing folks.
14

MS. KRIEG: We will take any

15 information you can give us.
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. How

17 about recruiting in Las Vegas? That seems like the
18 majority of our residents have gone there. Or you
19 know, again, I guess they would know. They have
20 identified the areas in the country where there is a
21 concentration of Hawaii or former Hawaii residents
22 who may now want to come home because of when they
23 were first graduated from college, there was no work
24 here, and now that we have gotten into, I think,
25 being competitive, that might be a way -- and other
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1 people will read or hear about it, and if they want
2 to move to Hawaii.
3

The other places, at the conferences --

4 here I go again. I should just talk to her
5 separately.
6

The conferences that are held by the

7 National Association of Counties, and that's also a
8 good place to put publication notices, but to attend
9 those conferences or have something there at all the
10 different ones. And there's tons of them out there,
11 conferences. Thanks.
12
13

Sorry, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: No, thank you, Member

14 Tavares. The Chair apologizes. I was trying to be
15 subtle with my body language, though. Forgive me.
16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It wasn't very

17 subtle.
18
19
20

CHAIR KANE: I will work on that.
Member Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Very quickly, what

21 is the maximum period that a list may be extended
22 beyond the one-year period, please, Krieg you feel
23 that we really need to re-do the exam?
24

MS. KRIEG: I think the last fire

25 fighter list was two years.
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that would be

2 about the maximum?
3

MS. KRIEG: Yeah. And what we are

4 experiencing now, because we are coming up on the two
5 years, is that a lot of the people who are currently
6 on the list are not interested, they have -7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Made other

8 choices?
9

MS. KRIEG: They've made other

10 choices. Plus, we were having a discussion the other
11 day, and we were -- we were questioning the validity
12 of the performance exam at this point for the people
13 who are on the list.
14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You shared

15 with us that -- let me get, quickly, when you say
16 rented exams, that was kind of intriguing. What is a
17 rented exam, please?
18

MS. KRIEG: There are exam services

19 out there where we can purchase or rent examinations
20 from, instead of -- you know, putting together exams
21 on our own. Because these, like the Fire Fighter
22 Trainee, police promotions, are highly, extremely
23 competitive. So we are very reluctant to use the
24 same examinations every time we give the exam. We
25 prefer to use new exams every time. We use these

128
1 services to get new exams.
2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think that's a

3 great idea, but because, like with SHOPO's agreement,
4 or fire fighter's agreement, it is a statewide
5 agreement. All the counties do it the same way, they
6 all do rented exams when it comes to those specific
7 type of personnel?
8

MS. KRIEG: I can't say --

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I am

10 wonder -11

MS. KRIEG: -- for a fact, but I

12 believe so. We may be, because we were just
13 contacted by Hawaii County and received information
14 from them that they are -- they are looking at a new
15 vendor now, you know, another resource. So I know
16 that they are using rented exams.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And again,

18 you know, I am just trying to understand because, you
19 know, the situation we deal with is, you know, we
20 have to fund a statewide agreement, then is
21 recruitment done fairly if we are restricted to a
22 statewide Collective Bargaining Agreement. And
23 obviously, you know, that's one of my concerns is we
24 do it fairly and equitably as best we can.
25

The last one, the last question I had was
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1 on the certified list, when you say the certified
2 list that is sent there is good for 60 days, why is
3 that different between the last bullet point you
4 shared with us whereby the list is good for one year
5 or may be extended.
6

MS. KRIEG: Okay. The one that's good

7 for one year is the list of eligibles. This is the
8 list that contains all -- the names of all of the
9 people who applied and passed the exam. The
10 certified list of eligibles that is good for 60 days
11 is the certified list that's sent to the department.
12 So from that large list that contains all of the
13 names, these are the lists, that we would say refer
14 to as the top five.
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Top five, okay. I

16 just wanted to -17

MS. KRIEG: Yeah, so the department

18 has basically 60 days to contact the people, set up
19 their interviews, interview the people, make their
20 selection.
21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. After that,

22 then you take over? Let's say the department makes a
23 choice. Then your department goes back and takes
24 over again notifying who got accepted for the job, we
25 notify those that didn't make --
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MS. KRIEG: That's all the

1

2 department's responsibility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That is the

3

4 specific department's responsibility?
5

MS. KRIEG: Correct.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you,

7 Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

8
9

Mr. Pontanilla.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just a

11 quick one. The eligible list for Fire Department,
12 it's good for two years. As far as the performance
13 test, do they need to take -- retake the performance
14 test, I guess, prior to their interview?
15

MS. KRIEG: No.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: If they are

17 interviewed?
18

MS. KRIEG: No. In order to get on

19 that list to be interviewed, they had to take the
20 performance test as part of the qualifying to get on
21 that list.
22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So when the

23 person is hired, I guess we give them a medical exam
24 to find out if any injuries occurred at that time.
25

MS. KRIEG: Right. Right. Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

2 Thank you.
3
4
5

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

6 Chairman.
7

Ms. Krieg, on the subject of advertising,

8 are you bound to I guess only advertise in the major
9 daily newspapers, such as the Maui News and
10 Advertiser? And the reason I ask that is you have
11 people who don't subscribe to those papers and who
12 instead just receive the free publications, you know,
13 or tabloids in some cases, and because I have had
14 people say you know, why doesn't the County advertise
15 in those papers because I, for whatever reasons, you
16 know, they say they don't have the financial
17 resources to afford dailies. Can -- can you comment
18 on that?
19

MS. KRIEG: We are not bound, but we

20 need to, you know, get the greatest bang for our
21 buck, so we need -- we advertise in the publications
22 that have the wider circulation, which for us is the
23 Maui News, the Honolulu Advertiser -- if we have
24 positions say on Lanai and Molokai, we would use
25 their publications.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank

1

2 you. Including our County offices, right, director?
3

MS. KRIEG: Correct.

4

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions,

5 Members?
6

Chair has two. Just a follow-up on

7 Mr. Molina. Thank you for that question.
8

Is recruitment considered a public service

9 announcement, that something on the radio could be
10 utilized? And if so, is that something you could
11 engage a discussion with owners of radio stations to
12 provide that service?
13

MS. KRIEG: That's something we can

14 look into. I also understand that there's something
15 on public TV.
16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Akaku.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Cable channel.

18

MS. KRIEG: Yeah, the cable channel.

19

CHAIR KANE: The other question I have

20 is -- and I get phone calls all the time about this
21 one -- is, Councilman, I put in my application, and I
22 don't know if, what. So I am reading here as through
23 your presentation, that acception/rejection notices
24 are sent out, and so anybody who applies to the
25 County for a job, do they have closure whether or not
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1 they are in -- they are on a track to have a chance
2 or no, you don't meet the minimum qualifications;
3 therefore, we are not going to be proceeding with
4 your application?
5

MS. KRIEG: Correct.

6

CHAIR KANE: So they do get rejection

7 notices if they are not able to get that job?
MS. KRIEG: Correct. For all the

8

9 competitive recruitments that have or require
10 examination -- well, first of all, all the
11 recruitments that -- except for the labor, what we
12 call the Labor Registration List, the applications
13 will be screened and the applicants will be notified
14 as to whether or not they meet the minimum
15 qualification requirements.
16

CHAIR KANE: Okay.

17

MS. KRIEG: Those are the -- what we

18 call the accept/reject notices.
19

CHAIR KANE: Okay.

20

MS. KRIEG: Along with the

21 accept/reject notices, if their application is
22 accepted, they will be notified as to when the
23 examination is.
24

Now, for the labor registration ones, those

25 are for all of the classes of work that do not
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1 require an examination. These are your laborers,
2 your park caretakers, your grounds keepers, your
3 janitors. They will just receive a card that tells
4 them that their application was received, and how
5 long it's good for.
6

Now, they may be the people who are calling

7 that are telling you, I haven't heard anything yet
8 because the application just sits and it's good for a
9 year.
10

CHAIR KANE: Okay. And just so you

11 know, Members, those are a majority of the phone
12 calls, those who applied for those types of jobs,
13 primarily park caretaker, et cetera.
14

So thank you for that response. It helps

15 me to respond to the calls, and hopefully it helps
16 you folks.
17

Member Tavares, before I -- I recognize

18 you, the Chair is aware of the time. There is only
19 one small component. Whether we get into extensive
20 discussion, that's, you know, the body's choice, and
21 the Chair does intend to make adjustments to our
22 afternoon schedule based on this discussion.
23
24

So Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I just wanted

25 to ask Ms. Krieg, have you folks considered going to
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1 a sales and marketing firm or public relations firm
2 to help with the recruitment for police? And if
3 that's something you are open to, can you give us a
4 number of what that might cost, I mean, not today but
5 sometime?
6

MS. KRIEG: We haven't considered it.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because I

8 believe that, I know about Las Vegas because, you
9 know, I go there a lot, and my brother lives in that
10 area. That their police recruitment, they had the
11 same problem that we are having now is they couldn't
12 find police recruits. And heaven forbid, I would
13 never want to be a police officer in Las Vegas, but
14 they -- I believe they hired a public relations firm
15 or marketing firm to put on a campaign or put out a
16 campaign to recruit police officers, and from what I
17 understand it was pretty successful.
18

So we may be at that stage now because we

19 are continuing to see, yeah, 35 to 40 vacancies a
20 year, and a recruitment -- and I just saw an officer
21 down at Borders on the weekend at a table with an
22 information about becoming a police officer.
23

And you know, so I am wondering if maybe

24 there's some other things we can do to help with the
25 recruitment because it is a public safety issue for
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1 us.
2

CHAIR KANE: We will send the request

3 in writing to the department so she can respond.
4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I -- I will

5 write it, Mr. Chair.
6

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very

7 much.
8

Any further questions? And on a final

9 note, I think Member Molina's, the limitation or I
10 guess there isn't a limitation of utilizing the main
11 papers on the other islands, on Hawaii, and Hilo and
12 Kona as well as on Kauai. There's papers there. Is
13 that something that you folks have considered, and
14 that's Maui first, but retention of Hawaii residents
15 to -- to -- to function within the islands and have
16 that opportunity posed to them?
17

Anyway, I leave that open-ended in how you

18 folks apply that, if it helps.
19

Finally Members, real brief comment, it

20 seems like this whole process, that the Director has
21 stated that she has discretion on waiving, and so it
22 doesn't seem like there's a legislative approach to
23 helping with recruiting because there seems to be
24 enough tools available to the administration to -- to
25 move forward and -- and create the necessary areas
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1 for assistance right there within the administration
2 via the department. So, just so -- an observation.
3

Finally, hiring. Department -- excuse me,

4 hiring -- excuse me. Hiring department, Ms. Krieg.
5

MS. KRIEG: Okay. Finally, the hiring

6 department does the interview and selection. The
7 department has 60 days to convene the interview panel
8 to interview all applicants and make a selection, or
9 the certified list of eligibles expires. Departments
10 may request for extension or recertification of the
11 list. Some departments may have additional screening
12 requirements, for example, police have polygraph,
13 psychological test, personal history questionnaire,
14 and these are all pre-offer tests. These are all
15 done before they offer the job.
16

Drug testing and pre-employment physicals

17 are done after a job offer is given.
18
19
20
21

CHAIR KANE: Members, quick questions?
Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Very quickly, are all the departments

22 required to convene a panel regarding interviews,
23 Director?
24

MS. KRIEG: We strongly suggest that

25 interviews are done by more than one person.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And is -- is there

2 some kind of policy to establish consistency and
3 fairness regardless of department that you are aware
4 of? Let's say, a minimum three people need to be on
5 a -6

MS. KRIEG: We recommend there be --

7 that three is a good number. And we also advise
8 departments that they be consistent, that it be the
9 same panel members interviewing every, you know,
10 person on the eligible list, that it not be all
11 different people.
12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And the

13 last one is on the last bullet point, regarding the
14 police, has it ever been questioned, whether it be
15 constitutionally or a matter of privacy regarding the
16 polygraph/psychological test, pre-offering
17 requirements? Has that been an issue or brought up
18 to the department, whether it be the police or your
19 department, or through the Commission, or to the
20 Civil Service Commission?
21

MS. KRIEG: It hasn't been done

22 locally, but I think it has nationally. I think
23 there are -- there is information as to the -- if
24 there are any legal questions, whether these tests
25 have been challenged or not, and they have passed
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1 muster.
2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So statewide, are

3 all our sister counties -4

MS. KRIEG: Right.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- are consistent

6 in applying this pre-offer condition?
7

MS. KRIEG: Right.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you

9 very much.
10

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further

11 questions in this area?
12
13
14

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
The interview and selection process, does

15 DPS get involved with the department as far as being
16 one of the panelists?
17

MS. KRIEG: No. We -- we try to

18 assist the department in advising them as far as, you
19 know, how to set up their questions, making sure that
20 the questions are work-related, so that they, you
21 know, are not subject to any kind of grievances or
22 things like that. But we try to stay out of the
23 process itself because if there are grievances, we
24 are going to be involved in hearing the third-step
25 grievance.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.

2

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further

3 questions in this area?
4
5

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can I just

6 follow up on Mr. Pontanilla's question.
7

CHAIR KANE: Proceed.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ms. Krieg,

9 when you say you assist the departments, is it a
10 policy that perhaps the interview questions are
11 forwarded to you to determine whether or not they
12 are -- are unallowable kinds of questions in their
13 interview?
14

MS. KRIEG: They have been.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: They have

16 been. Okay. Great. Thank you.
17

MS. KRIEG: I need to make a

18 correction. The police polygraph is post-offer.
19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

20

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

21
22

Any additional questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One quick one,

23 Mr. Chair, please.
24

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Since
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1 we do have the director.
2

We have heard the term redescribed

3 positions. Okay. And normally, that is for someone
4 who may not be minimum qualifications, or MQ's, so
5 they redescribe it so that that person can requalify
6 for the job. How does this fit within the personnel
7 structure regarding definitions? It is not part of
8 the language of personnel as understood?
9

MS. KRIEG: No. If you look at the

10 manpower, our manpower request, the form, the actual
11 form that the position -- request for position
12 action, one of the actions that's being requested is
13 a redescription review. Okay. And basically, it
14 is -- it is a review of the duties and
15 responsibilities, because those duties and
16 responsibilities are being redescribed. Okay. Now,
17 based on that redescription, we will make a
18 classification determination as to whether or not the
19 position will be reallocated.
20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As well as the

21 proper salary range?
22

MS. KRIEG: As well as the proper

23 salary range.
24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that

25 would also be part of the same process where we make
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1 a determination whether or not that position becomes
2 more of a management/supervisory position or
3 continues to fall within the normal understanding of
4 us as collective bargaining positions?
5

MS. KRIEG: Right.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you

7 very much.
8

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further

9 questions, Members?
10

Hearing none, Ms. Krieg, thank you very

11 much. I am hoping that the Committee has -12

MS. KRIEG: You are welcome.

13

CHAIR KANE: -- gained a lot from this

14 session this morning with your -- with your points on
15 definitions and the hiring process.
16

Members, if you do have any further

17 questions in this area, please feel free to forward
18 your questions to the Staff, and we will get those
19 questions out and responses back from Director Krieg.
20

Ms. Krieg, thank you for being here today.

21

MS. KRIEG: You are welcome.

22

CHAIR KANE: Members, time now is

23 12:20, and the Chair's intent, without objection, is
24 to recess this meeting until two o'clock.
25 COUNCIL MEMBER VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
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CHAIR KANE: Two o'clock. Okay. And

2 I know my staff is probably going, "oh." Okay. So
3 this afternoon, with -- with the understanding that
4 this afternoon, when we start up, we need to be very
5 focussed on our questions and not -- and not to stray
6 off onto tangents that we can take at other times
7 during your, you know -- in other words, let's try to
8 limit to questions in our back-and-forth and not get
9 into more statement-oriented participation. So the
10 Chair just asks for that, and I will give you -- we
11 will go ahead with two o'clock as our reconvening
12 time.
13
14

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And -- and

15 what are we taking up when we reconvene?
16

CHAIR KANE: This afternoon, we're

17 going to be -- looks like we are going to talk with
18 Ms. Lee, if that's -- we have that -- and that's for
19 the -- for the Kaunoa Wellness Center. We also have
20 OED grants, Housing Human Concern grants, and other
21 grants, Planning, et cetera. So we are going to get
22 into the grant field to have a discussion this
23 afternoon. Members?
24

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Koller.
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MS. KOLLER: Since we're starting a

2 little bit later, I think we can move the Kaunoa to
3 next week with the CIP and just do the grants this
4 afternoon.
5

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Very good. So

6 we'll go at two o'clock when we will talk about
7 grants this afternoon. So please, if you can be
8 prepared.
Thank you very much. Ms. Morrison,

9

10 anything? Hearing none, we are in recess until two
11
12

o'clock.

(Gavel.)

RECESS: 12:20 p.m.

13 RECONVENE: 2:05 p.m.
14

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, let's

15 reconvene. This is the Budget and Finance Committee
16 meeting for March 31, 2005. Members, the Budget and
17 Finance Committee staff has provided each of you
18 with, hopefully, some workable material for this
19 afternoon's session. You have a comparison of
20 grants, excluding Human Concerns appropriations for
21 '03, '4, '5, and the proposal '6, a couple of
22 documents that are before you, and that hopefully
23 will help you on how we have dealt with these grants
24 over the past several years. And if you have any
25 questions, you can pose them any time during this
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1 afternoon's session.
2

The Chair would like to note, for the

3 public's benefit, because the Chair has been made
4 aware of a misunderstanding, public testimony is
5 closed this afternoon, and that we don't want to
6 discourage anybody from testifying; however, we are
7 open for testimony every time we have a meeting in
8 here. You have that opportunity to come in every day
9 that we are in here conducting the Budget and Finance
10 Committee's meetings to testify on any component of
11 the budget that's before us.
12

The Chair is -- the Chair would ask Members

13 that we do not reopen because there have been people
14 that have been notified that it is not going to be
15 open and therefore they are not here. So that makes
16 it more difficult for them. And so, on the question
17 of fairness, the Chair is going to rule that we are
18 not going to reopen public testimony, and that the
19 opportunities are very numerous for the public to
20 testify.
21

However, if there is certain questions that

22 you need help with, the Chair will be open and will
23 ask for your concurrence in allowing any resource
24 person, people here from the relative grants that are
25 before us, if they are available and they are able to
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1 respond to any questions that you may have, the Chair
2 will provide that discretion as well or that latitude
3 as well. So to try and make the best of a situation,
4 that's the way the Chair wants to approach it this
5 afternoon.
6

With that, we are going start off with

7 Director Lee, who is with us this afternoon to assist
8 us with any questions that Members may have. We are
9 going to start off with the Housing and Human
10 Concerns portion of the grant component of the budget
11 this afternoon, and before I hand over the floor to
12 Director Lee, are there any questions or comments to
13 get clear before we proceed?
14
15

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

16 Mr. Chair. I am just wondering if, since there are
17 so many people here to testify, how this
18 misunderstanding happened. Are you aware of how this
19 might have happened?
20

CHAIR KANE: Yes, I am aware of it

21 and -22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you

23 share that, please.
24

CHAIR KANE: To be blunt, it was told

25 to these folks that testimony is going to be provided
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1 for in the afternoon, and that's not the practice of
2 this body. This body has always taken their
3 testimony in the morning, and we have closed it on
4 around between 10:00 and 10:30 pretty much every
5 morning, and we are sticking to that protocol. And
6 it was just unfortunate that information was given
7 that it's going to be available for testimony in the
8 afternoon.
9

And because there were phone calls to Staff

10 and because we told them of how we run the meetings
11 every day, those people, several of those people are
12 not here this afternoon because they were notified of
13 all of the opportunities that are available for each
14 of the meetings that are held every day, including
15 the public hearing that will be in this chamber on
16 April 11th, which will again provide the public with
17 opportunity to express their thoughts on the proposed
18 budget.
19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it was a

20 matter of misinformation that got out.
21

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, just

23 everyone here is aware, when the -- when the
24 Committee convenes at 9:00 a.m, that's when we take
25 public testimony.
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1

CHAIR KANE: That is correct.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

3

CHAIR KANE: And that helps us,

4 Members, because we are on a clock and charter
5 requirements to finish our deliberations of this
6 proposed budget. The Chair feels that the best way
7 to proceed is to provide public testimony first thing
8 in the morning, and then we can have uninterrupted
9 progress with our deliberations on this budget. So
10 again, the Chair hopes that the body can concur with
11 that, and we will continue along that line.
12
13

Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair,

14 thank you. And I think I am part of the
15 misunderstanding. In the beginning, I thought we
16 were going to be doing 9:00 and 1:30 testimony, and
17 it wasn't so. I tried to call all the people that
18 had asked me about it, and I, you know, either ran
19 out of time or ran out of the list of what I said
20 what to.
21

But if there's anybody here because I said

22 come now, I apologize, and I think some folks have
23 come to the community meetings, and that actually is
24 a good place for them to be, but I told them you
25 could come here and listen to what is going on so
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1 that when questions are raised, they could be ready
2 to respond in writing or at a future meeting. So for
3 those of you who are here because I said come, I
4 really do apologize. Thank you.
5

CHAIR KANE: Yeah. And again, the

6 Chair -- you know, again, if I open it up this time,
7 then you know, then it just creates a snowball. So
8 for those of you who are here, if there are questions
9 that are asked regarding a specific grant that you
10 are interested or a directly involved with, and if
11 they are questions that you can respond to, we will
12 provide that opportunity to come forward and respond
13 to those questions.
14

Any further comments or questions before we

15 proceed?
16

Hearing none, good afternoon, Ms. Lee.

17 Thank you for being with us.
18

MS. LEE: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair

19 and Members.
20

We transmitted a letter to the Committee

21 dated today on the proposed additional grants for
22 Fiscal Year 2006, and it looks like it's being
23 distributed now. But in summary, we are only looking
24 at about five substantive changes, four added line
25 items and one increase in an existing fund. The four
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1 include Coalition for Drug- Free Lanai, 50,000 line
2 item; Community Work Day, $100,000 line item; Hui
3 Noeau, $150,000 line item; The Maui Farm, $150,000
4 line item; and an increase in the youth center
5 funding from 1.3 million to 1.5, so an addition of
6 $200,000. And attached to the transmittal are all
7 the justifications and explanations provided by the
8 agencies.
9

Our department strongly hopes that you will

10 consider these changes favorably because mainly most
11 of these agencies are fairly small agencies with
12 limited resources, yet they provide services that are
13 not duplicated by anyone else. So they provide
14 important services, and we feel that they should be
15 line itemed.
16

And in the case of the youth center, every

17 year, the youth centers come in for additional
18 funding, and this time we are recommending that they
19 receive at least $200,000 for their additional
20 operating costs. We haven't really increased their
21 funding for some time, and we believe that they all
22 do a very good job and deserve an increase in
23 funding. The $200,000 would be spread over all the
24 youth centers, as listed.
25

And that takes care of our changes for the
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1 grants. Are there any questions?
2
3

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director.
Members, without objections, we will -- I

4 think Ms. Lee has helped us set the pace that if we
5 can look at first the changes or the new things, and
6 then it will be opened up for any other questions
7 regarding the overall area that we are discussing in
8 the grants area. So I think with the specific
9 justifications that are attached, if any Members have
10 any questions on the -- on the five points that
11 Director Lee brings forward, the floor is open at
12 this time.
13

Questions? Comments?

14

Mr. Hokama -- I am sorry.

15

Ms. Tavares.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Ms. Lee,

17 if you could identify for us which of these are going
18 to be ongoing, you know, annual requests and which
19 ones are one-time requests, if you know.
20

MS. LEE: I believe they are all

21 ongoing.
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So the four

23 that you have listed there? Because my understanding
24 is The Maui Farm is a one-time request. That was
25 testified to I think last night.

152
1

MS. LEE: Oh, I wasn't aware of that,

2 but thank you for telling me.
3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Did you

4 want to go one by one, Mr. Chair, on these?
5

CHAIR KANE: I -- I will leave it open

6 for the Members to ask questions on any of the five
7 first, and we will try to get -- since we have we
8 have justification sheets and they seem to be new in
9 this area anyway -- I know CWD is not new, but
10 because it was here and it wasn't there last year
11 because of a different arrangement.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah,

13 Mr. Chair, I guess it's -- when I look at -- we have
14 been hearing from Hui Noeau at every budget meeting
15 that we have had, and I understand that, you know,
16 the reason for their request is because of the
17 capital campaign they have going on ongoing to buy
18 the property outright. And so that's one of the ones
19 that I am wondering if this is a one-time request or
20 an ongoing request.
21

The other question is because I believe or

22 I think that Hui Noeau has been supported in the past
23 through the culture and arts portion of the Human
24 Concerns area, and has that area gone down because
25 this is now going to be a line item?
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1

MS. LEE: The -- the amount that they

2 would normally get under culture and arts?
3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.

4

MS. LEE: Actually, no. One of the

5 reasons why -- and they are here today, so they can
6 answer probably more accurately than I can -- but my
7 understanding is because all of their major resources
8 are now being redirected to the purchase of the
9 property, they -- they really need more operational
10 support for their programs and probably for a very
11 long time to come, because, again, this -- this is a
12 fair -- fairly small agency needing to come up with
13 $10 million. And all their resources, their major
14 resources are going to be needed for the purchase.
15 But we do have representatives here, if you need more
16 clarification.
17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.

18

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. I am not

20 sure that this question was posed during any of the
21 budget meetings that we have had so far, and I for
22 one would be interested, but if it's not something
23 the Committee wants information on at this time, I
24 can put it in writing.
25

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Well, Members, as
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1 I stated when we opened up this afternoon's session
2 that the Chair would, you know, pose the question to
3 the body, if there's any objections; we have a
4 representative here, we can have them answer the
5 specific question, and we can move.
6

So at this time, the Chair will ask, is

7 there an objection to having that person come
8 forward? And before I do that, Mr. Hokama.
9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just to

10 share with the Members, I did meet with
11 representatives of Hui Noeau, and had requested them
12 to provide additional more detailed information, how
13 they arrived at their numbers to come up with this
14 total, what can we expect in performance, and that I,
15 for one, was not look at continuing costs.
16

And I believe they are doing their due

17 diligence in getting information not only for myself
18 but all Members of this Committee, and I think it
19 would be more beneficial to allow them and have them
20 submit it in writing to us, so that the Committee can
21 have that on the record as far as it pertains to the
22 request, Mr. Chair.
23

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I am fine with

25 that, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: So in light of that

1

2 comment, Members, I won't pose the question at this
3 time; however, I will ask that the representatives
4 feel free to adequately respond to -- you have heard
5 the questions, and again, we are open every morning
6 at 9:00, and you can pose the written testimony or
7 the documentation, and then you can summarize with -8 with oral testimony to provide clarity.
9

So at this time, Members, the Chair's

10 intent is to follow that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.

11

12
13

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Anything further, Mr. Hokama, at this time,

14 or to any member for questions regarding the five
15 items that Ms. Lee has highlighted?
16

Mr. Molina.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

18 Chairman. I have a question regarding the community
19 work day appropriation.
20

CHAIR KANE: Proceed.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I don't know if

22 there is a representative here from Community Work
23 Day but I -24

CHAIR KANE: I believe there is not.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Maybe I

156
1 could just submit that in writing, then, if the
2 representative is not here. I -- I have a question
3 that is more detailed as far as how the program
4 operates, so I don't know if Ms. Lee would care to
5 answer.
6

My question basically had to deal with is

7 the 100,000 sufficient for them to deal with both the
8 administrative aspects of the program as well as the
9 clean-up because as we all know, the demands for
10 keeping Maui County clean continue to escalate. So
11 that was my question because I am curious to see if
12 they can adequately address both sides,
13 administrative, I guess the paperwork as well as the
14 clean-up with $100,000, if that is sufficient enough
15 for them at this time.
16

MS. LEE: Councilmember, I think they

17 could answer that question better than me.
18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. Sure.

19

CHAIR KANE: And before I recognize

20 Director Morrison, I will recall that Ms. Dapitan did
21 testify in Kahului the other night, and she did state
22 her support for the -- the proposal that is in the
23 Mayor's budget of $100,000. So, but we can still,
24 you know, request additional information from
25 Ms. Dapitan.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure. I guess

2 I was sort of looking at it more in the long term, as
3 we deal with abandoned vehicles and refrigerators and
4 everything else. I'm sorry.
5

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison.

6

MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

7

In the revolving funds section of the

8 budget, proposed Budget Ordinance, there's a section
9 that lists Highway Beautification Funds. Last year,
10 during the Council's budget review, the Council
11 inserted a proviso putting $180,000 of that fund into
12 the hands of Community Work Day. That is still
13 there, in this proposed budget, as well as the
14 100,000 that's in the Department of Housing and Human
15 Concerns.
16

I believe there are restrictions on the use

17 of the funds in the Highway Beautification Funds. It
18 has to be related to highway beautification whereas
19 beach cleanups and other sorts of things could be
20 done, I assume, with this $100,000.
21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank

22 you. Thank you, chairman.
23
24

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Any further questions on these five

25 highlighted items, and we will open it up after that,
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1 Members.
2

Seeing no questions on the five highlighted

3 items, the Chair will open it up for questions on any
4 of the grants under the Human Concerns program, and I
5 believe on your details, Members, it starts somewhere
6 around 7 dash -- and forgive the Chair. I didn't
7 have that right in front of me. Staff? I think it
8 started on 7-14 -- excuse me. 7-13.
9

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, I also wanted

10 to point out that the Committee has been handed out a
11 couple of worksheets. And this is a comparison of
12 the appropriations for Fiscal Years 2003, 2004, 2005,
13 and the proposed for 2006.
14

The Human Concerns grants are put into

15 categories. I think these categories were developed
16 a couple of years ago by one of our Members, where we
17 designated ones that fit into the early childhood,
18 child care programs, ones that fit into the community
19 partnership grants. There's a line item that is
20 distributed out by the Grants Review Committee. And
21 then there's other categories in there that would fit
22 within the social services grants.
23

Then we have cultural and arts, homeless

24 programs; on the back side, self-sufficiency
25 programs. And then we have youth centers and youth
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1 programs.
2

CHAIR KANE: So Members, why don't we

3 go ahead and start first -- since nobody had
4 questions on the highlight items, we will start first
5 with the single page that has, on front and back,
6 that Ms. Koller just identified. Any questions on
7 any of the items that are categorized or
8 compartmentalized?
9
10

Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I am probably

11 going to be asking some basic questions since I am
12 new at this. But Item Number 33 just says homeless
13 program, 520,000. Could -- could you explain that to
14 me, what that's for, and who disburses the funds?
15

MS. LEE: Yes. And we could give you

16 a complete response in writing. There is a breakdown
17 and a lot -- most of that money goes to the Homeless
18 Resource Center.
19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I would

20 like to get the breakdown in writing.
21

CHAIR KANE: Sure. No problem. We

22 will make that request, Member Anderson.
23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one is that?

24

CHAIR KANE: This is the single item,

25 Members, and it's on the front page, under the
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1 number 33, Category Number 33, Homeless Program, and
2 there's a Mayor's FY '06 proposal of 520,000, and the
3 question is to -- to itemize that request as far as
4 the use of the funds. So we will that question
5 generated and sent to Director Lee for a full
6 response.
7

Ms. Anderson, anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Not at the

8

9 moment, Mr. Chair. Thank you. I am still reading.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. Any other

10

11 member at this time?
12

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may

13

14 ask Director Lee, one thing we heard during our
15 district meetings, and this is in the regards to the
16 community partnership grants, Director Lee, we were
17 told that there was a change in the approach whereby,
18 although we do annual budgets, the Grant Reviews
19 Committee has decided to go on a multi-year budgetary
20 format, and that if you were not part of those
21 agencies or programs that had affirmative
22 consideration in the current '05 budget, that they
23 were not able to request or participate in the '06
24 consideration.
25

And if that's a wrong understanding on our
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1 part, can you share -- share information, please?
2

MS. LEE: That is correct. We are on

3 a multi-year funding basis now subject to Council
4 appropriations.
5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So if I had an

6 agency, and I wasn't able to get funding last year,
7 then I need to wait until 2007 budget?
8

MS. LEE: For the CPG funding;

9 however, for other, people -- agencies still have the
10 option of coming directly to the Council for funding.
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell us

12 what prompted to go to this new version of
13 approaching partnership grants, please?
14

MS. LEE: For a long time, the

15 nonprofits themselves have asked for a multi-year
16 funding so they could have more stability and more
17 reliability in the system. They have asked for it,
18 and this is the first year we are implementing it.
19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So it's pretty

20 hard to judge the full results or the impacts from
21 this new, since it's just in the first year of a
22 two-year cycle, then?
23

MS. LEE: Yes.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I just

25 bring that up because we have had certain agencies
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1 that didn't make it last year asking us this year.
2 But when we talk about partnership grants, is it we
3 are not able to access that fund. And I just needed
4 for us to have a much more clear understanding. That
5 is done through a revision through your department
6 under the Administrative Procedures Act?
7

MS. LEE: Yes.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As a rule of now

9 that Grants Review Committee that has been authorized
10 by the Code through the Council action?
11

MS. LEE: They are the ones that voted

12 on it, yes.
13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So Corp.

14 Counsel, as you understand the creation of this
15 entity, they have the authority and powers to
16 promulgate and create such a policy?
17

Chairman, if Corp. Counsel needs time to

18 review the ordinance and go -19

CHAIR KANE: I was just going to say,

20 Corporation Counsel -21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- and check some

22 of the requirements -23

CHAIR KANE: If you need the time, let

24 us know, and then we can yield on the question and
25 bring it back for a response if you have had adequate
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1 time.
2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding,

3 Chairman, is through Hawaii Revised Statutes, there's
4 some qualifications on who can promulgate rules under
5 the Hawaii APA, Administrative Procedures Act, and I
6 just want to make sure that we are within the
7 parameters of authority.
8

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Okay. So the

9 question is whether the GRC has the authority to
10 promulgate rules?
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The type of rules

12 that is now a binding policy.
13

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I could look

14 that up really fast if you want to move on.
15

CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll --

16 Mr. Hokama, if you have further questions -17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you,

18 Chairman.
19

CHAIR KANE: -- and then we will

20 yield, and we'll come back to that.
21

Any further questions?

22

Ms. Tavares.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It is along

24 the same lines on the GRC. It is also our
25 understanding that the GRC has imposed a cap on the
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1 amount that any agency can receive in the partnership
2 grants, Community Partnership Grants. Is that also a
3 decision that -- I mean, how is that decision arrived
4 at? And do they have the authority to do such a
5 thing? I don't know if Ms. Lee has any -6

CHAIR KANE: Yeah, I was going to --

7 Ms. Lee, do you have any comments?
8

MS. LEE: I can just say -- I can just

9 verify it that it is a cap that they established.
10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Did you ask

11 them to establish a cap?
12

MS. LEE: No, we didn't ask them to

13 establish a cap. But actually, they have been doing
14 it for several years now.
15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think

16 we learned about it last year I think was the first
17 time that I realized that it was happening, and, you
18 know, we had a subcommittee on the grants review
19 process at one time. I forget how many years ago
20 that was. And I do recall that one of the
21 recommendations was to look at a multi-year funding
22 for the reasons that you stated.
23

And I guess, you know, if we need to do

24 something to codify that or whatever, and I guess
25 Corp. Counsel will clarify that for us. I am,
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1 personally, and just me, I am just speaking for
2 myself, I am concerned about this cap that has been
3 placed on the applications.
4

Because if you have an agency that is

5 requesting $50,000, and you have an agency that's
6 requesting, you know, $180,000, I don't think you can
7 put them in the same thing and say, okay, your cap
8 is, you know, 70 -- what is it, $76,000 was the cap
9 last year? Or do they have categories of caps? Do
10 you recall?
11

MS. LEE: My understanding is that

12 they use 100,000 as the number, the ceiling.
13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Regardless of

14 what the request was?
15

MS. LEE: Right.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So someone

17 could receive 100 percent of their funding, and
18 another agency could receive 30 percent?
19

MS. LEE: Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

21 you.
22

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Fujita

23 Villarosa.
24

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I

25 can respond now to that request my Councilmember
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1 Hokama.
2

Section 3.36.020 in the Maui County Code

3 does authorize the Grants Review Committee to
4 establish rules pursuant to Chapter 91. And these
5 rules would relate to four things: Conditions of
6 grants, procedures and a timetable for the submission
7 of requests, analysis required for requests, and
8 procedures and standards for monitoring and
9 evaluating grants.
10

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair.

12 And I am happy to know that that was authorized.
13

And I guess Ms. Director Lee can tell us if

14 they follow the process, because it does go through
15 the public review before you can establish such
16 policy. So, and I just bring it up because there
17 appears to have been agencies that were caught off
18 guard or was unaware of -- of the changes in the
19 approach, Director Lee. So I am just following up so
20 that we are confident that everything is within legal
21 standing.
22

MS. LEE: I -- I am somewhat surprised

23 that any of the agencies would be unaware of the
24 policy of the GRC because every year, except this
25 year, we do workshops throughout the County, on

167
1 Lanai, on Molokai, in Hana, in Central Maui. Every
2 year we do this, to go over the application process
3 in detail. And every agency is aware of -- of how
4 the grants application process is done. And for
5 people not to know about the multi-year funding which
6 the nonprofits association requested is -- is a
7 little puzzling.
8

But you know, if we -- if you can provide

9 us with the names of those agencies, we will be happy
10 to contact them, to let them know about the process.
11 And actually, I don't know that this multi-year
12 funding is -- is perpetual. It's more experimental
13 right now. And it's -- it's really subject to change
14 depending on a lot of things, depending on whether
15 the nonprofits want to continue having this type of
16 procedure or not.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your

18 comment.
19
20
21
22

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Member Anderson followed by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

23 Mr. Chair.
24
25 the GRC?

Could we ask for a copy of the rules for
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CHAIR KANE: No problem. We will get

2 that sent over to Ms. Lee, and she can assist in
3 getting that back to us.
4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

5

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, my

7 question was who is the Corp. Counsel that advises
8 the GRC.
9
10

MS. LEE: I believe it's Mr. Kushi.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And while it

11 was going through the process of developing these
12 rules or policies, was he involved in that?
13

MS. LEE: They already have admin

14 rules which they follow. I don't attend all the
15 meetings. It's our grants -- grants management
16 administrator that attends the meetings and the
17 grants management staff. But Corp. Counsel is well
18 aware of the changes, of especially the -- the
19 two-year -- the two-year funding cycle as well as the
20 cap.
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: As well as the

22 cap?
23

MS. LEE: Yeah. He is there

24 throughout all the meetings, yeah.
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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1 Mr. Chair, I am going to put the question in writing
2 to ask Corp. Counsel if the establishment of a cap is
3 within their purview and their jurisdiction and
4 authority.
5

Because you know, my understanding is the

6 GRC is an advisory body, and basically, they advise
7 the department, and the Mayor, regarding grant
8 distribution, and I also understand that at any time
9 that the Mayor can not follow what the Grants Review
10 Committee has recommended even though that hasn't
11 been the practice.
12

Now this is, you know, a number of very

13 dedicated community members who spend a lot of time
14 reviewing grants, and that's not the easiest thing in
15 the world to do; but at the same time, I don't think
16 they are an ultimate authority, such as the Planning
17 Commission, when it comes to SMA applications.
18

So I am going to ask for clarification

19 especially on the cap because I think it might
20 influence how we regard this request in the budget.
21 Because my other question, if we are going to go to
22 youth programs, I will ask that when we get to youth
23 programs, but that will be a question that I will
24 ask. Thank you.
25

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And the floor
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1 is open for your questions on youth programs, Member
2 Tavares. You can ask that right now if you would
3 like, because we are on this sheet, and it is
4 contained within the sheet. Proceed. Proceed.
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

6 you. Under the youth programs, thank you Mr. Chair.
7

CHAIR KANE: Members, Item 57 on that

8 sheet, which is the second page on the back.
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's actually

10 the youth centers, Number 55, that item. That's the
11 one that has an increase of $200,000. And I was
12 wondering, because you are on a two-year cycle, what
13 mechanism or formula is going to be used in order to
14 distribute this $200,000, and if you know what that
15 formula is, if you could share it with us, or if
16 that's open for discussion or something, you just
17 help us with that.
18

MS. LEE: I am going to have to get

19 back to you. Those moneys were already included in
20 the breakdown for each center. But I would have to
21 check with our staff on how they arrived on the
22 redistribution of the $200,000.
23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So what -- you

24 mean, this last go-round it was figured there was
25 going to be 1.5? Or was it based on 1.3?
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MS. LEE: No, initially it was based

2 on the 1.3, but then the Mayor -- the Mayor proposed
3 the 1.5, and the staff worked with the budget office
4 in redistributing the $200,000 in consultation with
5 the GRC.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I will

6

7 ask that question, too. How was it decided who was
8 going to get what portion of that 200,000, should it
9 be approved. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, then, just

10

11 for clarity, you are going to be posing the question
12 as an individual member?
13

Okay. Thank you.

14

Further questions, Members, on any of the

15 items that are on this sheet that Staff has provided?
16

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

17
18 Mr. Chairman.
19

On line 14, there's 1.224 million for

20 community partnership grants. Could you explain -21 well, maybe I should just ask for a breakdown of that
22 in writing.
23

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Lee.

24

MS. LEE: Councilmember, it's already

25 broken down in your program budget.
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CHAIR KANE: Details.

2

MS. LEE: Let's see. What page would

3 that be? Page 9 dash -4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 49, 50.

5

MS. LEE: 9-50.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

7 you.
8

CHAIR KANE: Questions, Members?

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.

10

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have a

12 question on line 15, the Maui Adult Day Care Center.
13 That basically is the only one that increased from
14 180,000 to 200,000. Do we know the reason for the
15 $20,000 increase?
16

MS. LEE: I would have to get back to

17 you. I apologize for not being able to answer some
18 of these questions, but for this -- for this item and
19 a couple of others, they weren't initiated by our
20 office.
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

22 you.
23

CHAIR KANE: So maybe you can close

24 the loop. It was initiated by who, then, Ms. Lee?
25

MS. LEE: The Mayor's office.
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1

2
3

CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I have a

4 note here in regards to the $20,000 increase for a
5 sundowning program. Do you know what it is?
6

MS. LEE: No, I don't. Is this on the

7 item 15?
8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, Maui

9 Adult Day Care Center.
10

MS. LEE: And, Mr. Pontanilla, as I

11 mentioned, this item was not initiated by our office.
12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, if

13 anybody from Maui Adult Day Care Center is here.
14

CHAIR KANE: I believe there is not.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

16 Thank you.
17

CHAIR KANE: Unless somebody will

18 speak up, but I don't see anybody from there. And
19 we -- and because it came from the Office of the
20 Mayor, I don't know if Ms. Regan, if you have any
21 indications on this?
22

Okay. So we will go ahead and do a

23 follow-up on the additional. And Ms. Lee, we will
24 direct that question to you for a response.
25

MS. LEE: Yes.
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CHAIR KANE: Any further questions,

2 Members, in this area? Ms. Anderson, as I see you
3 reach for that microphone.
4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks,

5 Mr. Chair.
6

You know, I am looking in the program

7 budget under 9-50, and the amounts don't correlate
8 from this spreadsheet. You have 1.224, and here it's
9 1.164. Can you explain the difference?
10

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.

11

MS. KOLLER: I believe if you look

12 in -- the book that you are looking at shows actuals.
13 I took the budget appropriations because I am
14 comparing what the Council did from one year to the
15 next.
16

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, if you could

17 just expound on that just a little bit.
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, because

19 I am looking at the '06, Mayor's Fiscal Year '06 on
20 this spreadsheet.
21

MS. KOLLER: I am sorry. Can you -- I

22 didn't have the page open. Can you just say it
23 again.
24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On the

25 spreadsheet here, under Column E, for Community
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1 Partnership Grants, it says 1.224 million. And then
2 I was told that the breakdown of that is on page 9-50
3 for community partnerships recipients, assuming
4 that's the same thing, grants, and the total on that
5 for Fiscal Year '06 is 1.164.
6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It doesn't

7 include the expansion.
8

MS. KOLLER: I will have to take a

9 look at this and get back with you.
10

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Anderson, we

11 will go ahead and yield on that for now.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

13

CHAIR KANE: Any other further

14 questions, Members, at this time for Ms. Lee?
15

Members, if there are any more questions,

16 again, feel free to pose your questions in writing to
17 the staff, and we will forward those questions to
18 Ms. Lee for a response.
19
20

Ms. Koller?
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On

21 page 9-49, if you look in the second line down -- the
22 first one is the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai, the
23 second line is community partnership grants. That's
24 the lump sum that goes -- that will go to the Grants
25 Review Committee for distribution.
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The breakdown, on the next page, was what

2 was presented by -- by the department as to what they
3 had given out. The amount that's in the actual
4 Budget Ordinance for that category is 1.224. So if
5 they have not expended, if -- it appears as if they
6 have kept some of the dollars and have not expended
7 those.
8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is a

9 $60,000 difference.
10

MS. KOLLER: Correct. And all -- all

11 I am saying is that the Council, when we review
12 these, we review it based upon what is in the Budget
13 Ordinance. And the Budget Ordinance has the line
14 item of 1.224. The breakdown in the budget -15 program budget does not match that number, and that's
16 something administration will have to reconcile for
17 us.
18

CHAIR KANE: Director Morrison, do you

19 have any comments in this area, no, at this time?
20

Ms. Lee, any comments in this area?

21

MS. LEE: No, Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we will do a

23 follow-up, Ms. Anderson, to -24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

25

CHAIR KANE: -- between Staff and
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1 Director Morrison on reconciling the difference
2 there, the approximate $60,000.
3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

4

CHAIR KANE: Are there any further

5 questions in this area because I would like to allow
6 Ms. Lee to get back to her business of the day?
7 Hearing none, Ms. Lee, thank you very much. Really
8 appreciate your presence here this afternoon.
MS. LEE: Okay. Thank you.

9

CHAIR KANE: Members, we are going to

10

11 keep going. We have Ms. Lynn Araki-Regan here this
12 afternoon. And if you can, again, the Chair will
13 reiterate, staff has provided us with a breakdown
14 sheet, stapled, four pages of information, two pages
15 front and back.
16

And Ms. Araki-Regan, before I recognize

17 you, Members, I will just take a moment, and we will
18 identify in your program as well as in your details,
19 what pages you can reference in this discussion.
20

Members, under the details, I believe your

21 information would start on 10-8. And I am sorry, I
22 am going to rely on Staff because I haven't tagged my
23 program book, so we will take a moment. Thank you.
24 12-18, Members, in your program.
25

Okay. Members, everybody to your reference
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1 points? With that, good afternoon, Ms.Araki-Regan.
2

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Good afternoon,

3 Chair Kane and Committee Members. As the Economic
4 Development Coordinator, I would like to take this
5 opportunity to explain some of the line items listed
6 in the Mayor's proposed Economic Development Grant
7 Summary found, as you know, on pages 12-18 and 12-19,
8 that are either new line items or different terms of
9 the amount as compared to Fiscal Year 2005's budget.
10

Also, if you have any specific questions, I

11 have members of my staff available to answer specific
12 questions that you may have which they may be more
13 familiar in answering.
14

Also, for the record, when I was scheduled

15 to appear before you today, I did let our grantees
16 know that I would be here to answer any questions
17 that you may have, and many of them who are in the
18 audience expressed an interest in being here to serve
19 as a resource. So there -- many of them are here
20 today, so thank you very much.
21

Anyway, starting off in looking at the

22 Fiscal Year 2006 request and comparing it with that
23 of Fiscal Year 2005, I would like to first start off
24 with a business research library, which we are
25 requesting a $10,000 increase.
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1

Ruth Corn is here today, and in talking

2 with Ms. Corn, you know, as you know, the Business
3 Research Library produces the Maui County data books
4 on an annual basis, and I believe the 2004 data books
5 were presented to you last week. With additional
6 funding, the Business Research Library is able to
7 hire a researcher they lost three years ago, and that
8 loss in that position is wearing them down. Also, as
9 a result of the Maui County Business Resource Center,
10 you know, and many groups such as MEO -- MEO Business
11 Micro Enterprise Organization, they have been serving
12 more and more people without adequate personnel.
13 They need that second research person restored so
14 that they can have a part-time presence at both
15 facilities and get research, market, and census
16 information out to our businesses.
17

Secondly, is the Centennial Celebration.

18 We are requesting for $20,000, which is a $30,000
19 decrease from last year. This is a one-time request.
20 As you know, Centennial is for 2005. This additional
21 request is for the Centennial Legacy project. As you
22 know, the Centennial Celebration covers four islands,
23 and is being produced by volunteers who are working
24 on one project each month to honor our centennial.
25

And the additional request for funding is
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1 for recordation and documentation for historical
2 preservation purposes. In addition, the County's
3 history, old photos, and interviews on DVDs are
4 needed to complete the document which will be given
5 to schools, public libraries, museums, historical,
6 and cultural societies in the County.
7

A $150,000 increase is being requested for

8 environmental protection, from 450 to $600,000. Our
9 office, along with the environmental coordinator, Rob
10 Parsons, we work closely with the Maui Invasive
11 Species Council or Committee as well as Tri-Isle RC&D
12 in fighting to protect Maui County from invasive
13 plants and animals that threaten our environment,
14 economy, and quality of life.
15

Although that 450,000 was generously

16 provided in last year's budget, we are requesting for
17 $600,000 this year to provide a greater response to
18 existing threats and to be ensured that we are able
19 to deal with new threats.
20

A $25,000 line item is being requested for

21 the Filipino Centennial Celebration. In 2002, the
22 state legislature enacted Act 159, creating the
23 Filipino Centennial Celebration Commission to
24 undertake and oversee a statewide celebration of the
25 100 years of Filipino presence in Hawaii. This
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1 year-long celebration will start December of this
2 year. The first Filipinos recruited to work in
3 Hawaii's plantation arrived in Hawaii on
4 December 20th, 1906. And they have requested for
5 $25,000, basically, to support their programs. And
6 some of these activities planned are a lecture
7 series, cultural and educational presentations, a
8 video presentations on our Filipinos, and their
9 contributions to the community at large, a parade,
10 and other types of activities like that.
11

A $95,000 request, a new budget line

12 item -- and this is a one-time request for Fiscal
13 Year 2006 only -- is implementation of the Market
14 Development Plan of the Maui Redeveloped Plan. As
15 many of you may be familiar, in 2000, December of
16 2000, the Maui Redevelopment Agency produced this -17 Wailuku Redevelopment Plan, which is a plan for the
18 economic revitalization of Maui County Civic Center.
19

And I am not sure if you have had an

20 opportunity to review my letter to each one of you,
21 dated March 9, 2005, but if you did not, you know, I
22 would be happy to answer any questions which provided
23 a detailed background as to the plan, and the fact
24 that in this plan, there is a marketing development
25 section of the plan, and it specifically, back in
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1 2000, directed our office to take on numerous tasks
2 to further market Wailuku, specifically the Wailuku
3 redevelopment area.
4

And as a result of our office being

5 directed to do all these tasks, the Maui
6 Redevelopment Agency, at each monthly meeting, has,
7 you know, requested an update each time, and many of
8 these tasks that we are tasked to do, you know,
9 require moneys. And so it's kind of frustrating to
10 be able to report, you know, on a monthly basis
11 without adequate funding.
12

And so what we did was the Mayor and I

13 formed a Wailuku Marketing Development Task Force,
14 some of whom are in the audience, Jocelyn Perreira
15 being one of them, and we have met on a monthly basis
16 for the past six months or so and determined that the
17 budget amount we need in order to implement all of
18 the various responsibilities outlined in the Market
19 Development Plan came out to be approximately 95,000.
20 And a breakdown of that 95,000 was provided in my
21 March 9th letter to you.
22

The Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, Lisa

23 Raymond is in the audience, and as she mentioned to
24 you this morning during her testimony, an additional
25 $50,000 is being requested to address additional
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1 maintenance needs of managing a larger collection and
2 having to deal with mostly insects, some disease,
3 threats to the collection. Lisa's current staff is
4 stretched out as far as it will go in keeping the
5 gardens going. I know they have done quite a bit of
6 maintenance, and it has taken them away from, you
7 know, especially Lisa's duties as an administrator
8 and fundraiser.
9

They recently lost a part-time maintenance

10 worker to work in enforcement for DLNR natural area
11 reserve. And they created two new part-time
12 positions and have hired two excellent workers, who
13 are students of MCC, but both have been through
14 internships with the Nature Conservancy, and one
15 worked for them previously as an AmeriCorps
16 volunteer. They are requesting for 50,000 to be able
17 to support their additional needs.
18

The MCC four-year degree program, which is

19 a new line item in our budget, that is for
20 $2 million. And as you know, Dr. Sakamoto came to
21 meek to you today.
22

Basically, our position, our office's

23 position is that work force development has become an
24 important issue in Hawaii. A skilled work force is
25 key to economic development, not only for today's
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1 jobs but for tomorrow's careers. In order to provide
2 a skilled work force for our business and industries,
3 and to provide employment and training opportunities
4 to our citizens, we believe support for a four-year
5 degree expansion program at MCC, including the
6 development of a new 400-room dormitory in Kahalui is
7 critical toward the diversification of our economic
8 base and an educated work force to support it.
9

Basically, our rationale in supporting it

10 is that MCC, with the $2 million, is able to leverage
11 dollars from other grant sources more successfully if
12 such grantors see that the County of Maui is
13 financially supporting this expansion. It also
14 addresses Maui's ever-widening socioeconomic
15 disparity. Many of our high school graduates are
16 financially unable to go to Oahu or elsewhere for
17 higher education. And, you know, we really like to,
18 I guess, you know, be able to limit this disparity
19 between the haves and haves nots -- have nots. So we
20 see that one -- we see that as a rationale.
21

It also addresses the brain drain problem

22 facing Maui County. Students who are forced to leave
23 Maui County to pursue higher education often never
24 return. We would like to also create an
25 education-based economy and encourage sustainable
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1 economic development, specifically central Kahului
2 revitalization.
3

Another new budget line item is the

4 traditional Hawaiian building at Armory Park in
5 Lahaina. This is, I believe, a one-time grant
6 request. And when the group approached Mayor, when
7 Mayor was contemplating and working on his budget,
8 Mayor was requested to budget $60,000 for materials
9 for the Hawaiian Hale, which is located, as I
10 mentioned, in the center of Armory Park. After the
11 budget was prepared, and we understand that there is
12 now a need for a sprinkler system, additional
13 materials, and need to rent the equipment. And
14 there -- my understanding, according to my
15 discussions with the group, is that the total request
16 is now $100,000, so just to let you know.
17

Being that the Hale would be located across

18 the Canoe Hale and across from the restoration of
19 Makaula, the Lahaina community, I believe, is in
20 support of this Hawaiian Hale for youth, for
21 visitors, and Kapuna to enjoy. The project is
22 also -- also strongly sported by 505 Front Street
23 businesses in Lahaina.
24

One additional change in our Fiscal Year

25 2006 budget request as compared to Fiscal Year 2005
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1 is the UH Maui Sea Grant Program, which is zeroed
2 out. We support this request; however, I believe
3 this line item has been transferred to the Planning
4 Department's grant portion.
5

And in talking with Wayne Boteilho today, I

6 believe, you know, the UH Maui Sea Grant Program,
7 along with Planning Department, thought it was a more
8 appropriate location for this UH Maui Sea Grant
9 Program to be located in the Planning Department's
10 budget, just because they deal with beach erosion
11 and, you know, various planning issues that OED
12 doesn't necessarily address.
13

So, that's it for now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Lynn

14

15 Araki-Regan. Ms. Regan, thank you very much.
16

Members, the Chair will open the floor for

17 questions on -- we will try to talk first about the
18 items that were highlighted and the changes, and then
19 we will go ahead and expand to any of the other items
20 that you may need additional information that
21 Ms. Regan can supply for us. Members, the floor is
22 open.
23

Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Tavares.

24
25 Mr. Chairman.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,
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1

Good afternoon, Ms. Araki-Regan. My

2 question deals with the item under environmental
3 protection, $150,000 increase from last Fiscal Year.
4 Can you elaborate a little bit more what that
5 $150,000 will go forwards? And I bring that up
6 because it was, you know, in FY03, it had -- it went
7 up from 200,000; then the next Fiscal Year 250; last
8 year 450; now we are looking at 600.
9

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yeah, we have major

10 invasive species problems. As you may know, Miconia,
11 fireweed, the coqui frog issue, banana bunchy top.
12 And it seems as if with the current 450,000, we are
13 merely putting Band-Aids on -- on major problems.
14 And I know Mayor, in his budget request to the State
15 Legislature, requested for considerable dollars for
16 the State to support our efforts. I am not sure
17 where it is right now.
18

But we strongly believe, especially in

19 talking with Mayor and Rob Parsons, who is the
20 environmental coordinator, that additional moneys are
21 needed in order to address this problem more head-on
22 rather than, you know, merely trying to prevent it
23 from -- from growing, you know.
24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And -- and that

25 was the specifics I wanted is how, with the 150,000,
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1 are they going to address it more head on?
2

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I guess maybe

4 what I can do, Mr. Chairman, I can forward, I guess,
5 the question in writing, get them to -6

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I don't have a

7 specific breakdown, but I would imagine most of the
8 $150,000 would be spread towards -- spread to Miconia
9 eradication, fireweed, and coqui frog. Also, this
10 banana bunchy top, you know, we -- we need moneys to
11 be able to continue spraying, educating the public,
12 and doing a survey.
13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And Mr. Molina, before I

16 recognize Ms. Tavares and then you, Ms. Anderson, the
17 Chair would like to have Staff forward a question and
18 get a response in writing to the itemization of the
19 $600,000 and how it's going to be broken down. And I
20 am sure that Ms. Araki-Regan can tap Mr. Parsons as a
21 resource to provide some detail to that response. So
22 we will get that forwarded to them.
23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,

24 Chairman.
25

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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1

Ms. Tavares, followed by Ms. Anderson.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the

3 number 17 -- I guess it works that we are going in
4 order here -- the Filipino Centennial Celebration,
5 and you had said that the State Legislature created
6 this Centennial Celebration thing? Did the State
7 also attach any money to this? Or are they expecting
8 that they are going to have another unfunded mandate?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Actually, you know,

9

10 I think -- okay. In -- in -- I have this letter that
11 I received from Tony Ramil just two days ago, and
12 basically it says that they are requesting for
13 25,000, but we in the Maui Coordinating Council
14 expect to get additional money through the statewide
15 commission. I am not sure exactly how much. That is
16 a good question.
17

However, the 25,000 is specifically to

18 conduct, you know, specific programs in the year
19 2006, specifically lecture series, cultural and
20 educational presentations, and a video presentation,
21 and a parade.
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So that --

23 those activities you just mentioned is not all of
24 what they are planning?
25

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Right. It is to
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1 supplement, I guess, additional activities the
2 statewide commission is planning, which will be
3 happening on all islands.
4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mm-hmm. Maybe

5 we can ask Mr. Ramil to be present at one of our
6 meetings to maybe further explain what the State
7 portion is and what the County portion is.
8

CHAIR KANE: And maybe,

9 Ms. Araki-Regan, maybe if you can assist us with
10 contacting him and, again, he can come to any of our
11 meetings in the morning, so, you know, if he can
12 coordinate his schedule to the meetings that are
13 scheduled for these discussions.
14

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I would be happy to,

15 Chair.
16
17
18

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
Member Tavares, anything further?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have lots of

19 further, but I will let others.
20
21
22

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

23 Mr. Chair. I just wanted to follow up on the
24 invasive species funding. Is this funding going to
25 be specific to the Maui Invasive Species Committee?
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I am hoping that

2 will be the case. At the present time and in the
3 past, moneys to the MISC, Maui Invasive Species
4 Committee, has been funneled -- because they are not
5 a 501(C)3 organization, we provide a grant to a
6 501(C)3 organization, specifically Tri-Isle RC&D.
7 And they work with MISC in providing the necessary
8 moneys to them. They -- they -- it is my
9 understanding, according to MISC, that they are
10 working on getting their nonprofit status, and if so,
11 moneys would be granted to MISC directly.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this total

13 600,000 is for MISC?
14

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Not necessarily.

15 It -- a portion may be, as in this year, going
16 towards educational programs that our office works
17 with Rob Parsons in putting on to educate the
18 community. It is not -- it is not one $600,000 grant
19 to MISC although most of the moneys go to MISC via
20 Tri-Isle RC&D.
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I am sorry,

22 but I forget exactly the question that -- that Member
23 Molina asked for an answer in writing. Do you guys
24 remember what it was?
25

CHAIR KANE: A breakdown. We are
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1 asking for a breakdown, an itemized breakdown of the
2

600,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A breakdown

3
4 of the 600.
5

Okay. Could we also ask at the same time

6 what the State is providing the County for invasive
7 species funding?
8

CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, as your

9 Chair, I have already posed that question weeks ago.
10 So we are following through with what coordinated
11 funds are available at the state level, and the
12 potential partnerships that are supposed to be
13 occurring.
14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So we'll know

15 what the State is going to be offering?
16

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because a lot

18 of this is on state land.
19

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.

21

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Also, if I may,

22 Chair, having looked into this Maui invasive species
23 expenditures, it's my understanding that at least
24 according to what Rob Parsons presented me today, the
25 total County funds dedicated to invasive species for
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1 Fiscal Year 2005 is totaling 850,000. And that
2 includes moneys that the Department of Water Supply
3 has provided to MISC to target -- to target various
4 other invasive species -5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In the

6 watershed.
7

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: -- in the

8 watershed -9

CHAIR KANE: Specific to the

10 watershed.
11

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: -- through the

12 Nature Conservancy. So just to let you know, the
13 total, not just what OED provides, but the total is
14 $850,000 for this Fiscal Year.
15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For this

16 Fiscal Year. Okay. Thank you.
17

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And, Members,

18 real brief, just to clarify, Ms. Araki-Regan, the
19 Cattlemen -- Maui Cattlemen's Association with
20 respects to the fireweed eradication, are they also a
21 recipient of funds to help their effort, or is that
22 something that's coordinated through MISC? Can you
23 have -- make some comment, please, on that?
24

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: The Cattlemen

25 Association, my -- according to, I believe -- they
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1 are not a nonprofit organization, right? Are they?
2

CHAIR KANE: I am not sure.

3

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Kenneth maybe --

4

Yeah, but they are also included in our

5 proposed budget under environmental protection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank

6
7 you very much.
8

Mr. Pontanilla, thank you for your

9 patience.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

10
11 Chair.
12

The question I was going to ask is almost

13 in relation to yours in regards to, you know, if they
14 do work with the East Maui as well as the West Maui
15 watershed teams, in eradicating Miconia. So they
16 work very closely?
17

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes.

18

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla, anything

19 further?
20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No. Thank

21 you, Chair.
22

CHAIR KANE: Questions, Mr. Hokama?

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if

24 there's no other questions regarding those areas, I
25 would like to move on to Number 22, please.
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1

CHAIR KANE: Oh, yeah. Proceed. It's

2 open.
3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding Maui

4 Redevelopment Plan. I am going to be real candid
5 with you, Ms. Araki-Regan. You know, at this time I
6 don't know even whether we should not consider
7 abolishing this agency. I am very displeased with
8 the efforts, including how Planning Department has
9 approached it, which you have no, of course,
10 jurisdiction over.
11

I know you have been tasked with a lot, and

12 during that time in '99, when Council was considering
13 the revised version, which we finally adopted in
14 2000, we had expectations of movement, and since
15 there was no Executive Director, basically no staff
16 involved, your office was tasked to do some of the
17 marketing development.
18

Well, here we are, five years later, on the

19 sixth budget, and this agency has still not moved off
20 where it was eight years ago -- six years ago. And
21 so, to be real blunt with you, I don't even know
22 whether I feel to even fund this $95,000.
23

You know, they have tried to approach it

24 from a bottom-up way, and I will not buy into that.
25 You know, part of the programs that are dependent on
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1 this marketing success is of course the redevelopment
2 of the municipal parking lot. Okay. And that has
3 gone nowhere. For decades, we have heard about this
4 project.
5

And so to be very candid with you, I am

6 going to be up front with you this afternoon and say
7 these are things I am willing to look at to eliminate
8 from the budget. Unless you can tell me if, through
9 your efforts, you see improvement not only for this
10 plan but for the agency itself to move forward.
11

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Councilmember

12 Hokama, I -- I totally understand your concern. You
13 know, having attended the MRA meetings over the past
14 year, you know, because I have been asked to, I am on
15 the agenda providing a monthly report as to my
16 efforts, I really see potential for Wailuku. You
17 know, there are various establishments that are
18 opening up, many developers interested in developing
19 in Wailuku, assuming that a parking structure is, you
20 know, in the -- can happen in the near future.
21 Lokahi Pacific is building their new building next to
22 Iao Theater. Iao Theater is another facility that,
23 you know, our office is actively doing a community
24 needs assessment on to be able to determine what is
25 best for the long-term future of this theater.
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1

Many developers, like I said, are very

2 excited and they attend the MRA meetings on a regular
3 basis to listen as to what's happening.
4

It's my understanding, according to John

5 Summers and his reports to the MRA on a monthly
6 basis, that they are starting this Wailuku Street
7 State Beautification Plan to further beautify
8 Wailuku.
9

In terms of the parking structure, you

10 know, because I am just as frustrated as you are in
11 terms of the structure not happening, I personally
12 went to Oahu on Monday, along with Joe Alueta of the
13 Planning Department, and met with potential
14 fundraisers to help us raise the necessary moneys to
15 obtain at least 3 to $4 million in paying -- in
16 getting Federal funds to be able to get the structure
17 to happen.
18

I know a plan -- a parking structure plan

19 hasn't even -- hasn't even been voted on by the
20 Council. But from my end, from our office's end, we
21 are very committed in seeing that Wailuku be
22 revitalized. It is our, you know, government seat,
23 and -- or seat of government. And especially in the
24 centennial, you know, I would really like to see
25 Wailuku revitalized.
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And so we are working hard. We may not be,

2 you know, really vocalizing our -- at least our
3 office's efforts, but if you were to review the
4 minutes of the MRA, which meets on a monthly basis,
5 you can see the progress that -- that is being -- you
6 know, that is happening for Wailuku.
7

And I would only ask that maybe members of

8 MRA, you know, come before the Council to -- to kind
9 of explain what is happening, and -- you know.
10

I don't know as much because I am not with

11 the Planning Department, but from our office's end,
12 we are working closely with MRA and doing our part in
13 trying to -- trying to revitalize Wailuku.
14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your

15 comments this afternoon, Ms. Araki-Regan. And of
16 course, you know, part of this, as I look at it, is
17 tied into the Mayor's $1 million bond consideration
18 that he is requesting us to consider. And I
19 appreciate your -- your efforts to look at additional
20 moneys, but you know, there are Members of this
21 Committee that have been made aware of also other
22 financing options, including an option to utilize no
23 County moneys and get this project built and
24 implemented.
25

And so I share that with you, and I would
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1 say, for this afternoon, you should be pleased you
2 are not with the Planning Department side of this
3 project because I have my strong concerns with that
4 agency and this redevelopment area.
5

So thank you for your comments. And again,

6 I feel, to be very candid and straightforward, and I
7 will take away any guessing on how I am going to be
8 viewing the redevelopment area, the agency, and all
9 departments that provide support for this agency.
10
11

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

12

Mr. Mateo, I am sorry? No?

13

Ms. Anderson followed by Ms. Tavares.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I

15 may be confused, Mr. Chair, but it's my understanding
16 that the Maui Redevelopment Agency is supposed to be
17 redeveloping Wailuku Town, and I don't see marketing,
18 spending money on marketing to get people to come
19 into the town as part of their function. I may be
20 wrong, but from what -- what I am reading in the
21 State statute and from the Code that was developed
22 for the Maui Redevelopment Agency in Wailuku, doesn't
23 talk about marketing the town through this agency.
24 So -- and I do have Ms. Araki-Regan's letter here,
25 and it looks like the breakdown for the 95,000 is
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1 strictly for marketing purposes. So that's just my
2 comment.
3

CHAIR KANE: Okay. And if I may,

4 Member Anderson, I will solicit a response to your
5 comments by Ms. Regan before we move on to the next
6 item.
7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.

8

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Regan.

9

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I understand your

10 concern, Councilmember Anderson. As I mentioned
11 before, long before I came on board -- I came on
12 board in January 2003. In December 2000, this
13 Wailuku Redevelopment Plan was prepared by the Maui
14 County Planning Department and prepared for the Maui
15 Redevelopment Agency.
16

And on page 40 of the Wailuku Redevelopment

17 Plan, which I can provide you a copy of maybe after
18 today's hearing, it specifically has an action chart,
19 market development, and the implementing/coordinating
20 agency is our office.
21

So I have no control over this, no input.

22 I didn't make any input. But our office is held
23 accountable to implement these various proposals for
24 action. And you know, being questioned about it on a
25 monthly basis, you know, by Maui Redevelopment Agency
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1 as to the status of these areas, our office is held
2 accountable as a result of this report.
3

So to be able to comply with this plan's,

4 basically, directive to our office, you know, I -- I
5 have to form this -- this task force to be able to
6 assist me in determining how we are going to go about
7 implementing these actions, and unfortunately, you
8 know, moneys are needed, and the breakdown is what I
9 have provided to you in my letter.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, we can move

10
11 forward, yeah?
12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, move

13 forward. No comment. Thank you.
14
15
16

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Another one of

17 my dreams. Did -- did we request the MRA to meet
18 with us?
19

CHAIR KANE: Yeah.

20

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, that's being

21 coordinated with the Budget Director. It will be the
22 week of the 11th.
23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I must be up

24 all the time, then, if these dreams that I think I
25 have are actual reality.
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CHAIR KANE: They are alive.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, just --

3 yeah, I -- I have the same concerns that my colleague
4 from Lanai has regarding the MRA, and I think we need
5 a coordinated approach or presentation from the MRA.
6 And it seems like they don't -- it seems like the
7 priorities are not clear about what they want to do
8 in what order.
9

And I feel for Ms. Araki-Regan sort of

10 being caught in one end or another, and I think one
11 of the first things that needs to be decided is under
12 whose purview is this MRA going to fall under. And
13 the -- you know, having two departments responsible
14 for one agency kind of, I think, leads to some
15 confusion, and perhaps just having one agency
16 responsible from the County's end would make more
17 sense than having it split into two. Even though
18 there are a lot of planning components, there's also
19 the whole reason for it is economic development. So
20 somewhere, this decision has to be made. Thank you.
21
22
23

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very

24 much.
25

I was -- since the question was just asked,
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1 I maybe would like to follow up and ask you how your
2 department took a look at or review this particular
3 requests for funds based on overlap. Because the
4 MRA, depending on what they should or should not be
5 doing versus, for example, Tri-Isle and the work that
6 they are doing. So there seems to be an overlap. So
7 at what point does your office take a look at overlap
8 in services in trying to accomplish the same
9 objectives?
10

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I personally attend

11 the monthly MRA meetings and serve as a member of the
12 Tri-Isle RC&D Board. And I, you know, I attend most
13 of their meetings, if not all of their meetings. And
14 so there are areas which, you know, may arise where
15 there may be some overlapping or double-dipping or -16 but I don't -- I don't see Tri-Isle doing market
17 development or marketing. I don't think -- I don't
18 think they necessarily overlap with MBA's efforts or
19 our office's efforts to revitalize Wailuku.
20

Or Tri-Isle meaning Tri-Isle Main Street?

21 Oh, okay. I am sorry. I thought it was Tri-Isle
22 RC&D. I am sorry.
23

We work closely with Jocelyn Perreira,

24 actually. We are very fortunate to be able to work
25 with her. She sits, I think, all of my Wailuku --
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2 For example, she sits on the Wailuku Marketing
3 Development Committee. She attends all the MRA
4 meetings. And you know, she -- she was the one who
5 gave considerable input as to our $95,000 budget line
6 item.
7

So I don't -- I don't think -- perhaps,

8 maybe, Ms. Perreira could offer more assistance, but,
9 you know, this -- this section of the Wailuku
10 Redevelopment Plan is specifically directed to the
11 Office of Economic Development, and we work in
12 partnership with Tri-Isle Main Street Association
13 along with MRA. That's basically -- I am sorry. I
14 thought you meant Tri-Isle RC&D.
15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I meant

16 Tri-Isle Main Street. And it just seems like instead
17 of continuation of separate entities trying to
18 essentially do the same thing, promote. Promote is
19 marketing, you know, because that's the end result,
20 yeah, in the promotion of. And you have got two
21 organizations that perhaps consolidation might be
22 something that your department can be taking a look
23 at so that you get the bigger bang for the limited
24 dollars.
25

If you have both organizations consolidate,
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1 you have, perhaps, the both from -- the best from
2 both minds, so to speak, coming together to develop
3 the same objective. And that's all I was saying.
4 The ability for your department to take a look at how
5 to -- how to get the best use of the limited funds we
6 have.
7

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I -- I totally

8 understand your question, Councilmember Mateo. I
9 guess what is difficult is that Planning Department
10 is separate from OED, and Planning Department
11 oversees the grant to Tri-Isle Main Street
12 Association. But when I first came on board in
13 January 2003, and having to deal with issues of
14 Wailuku revitalization, I had the same question. You
15 know, what does Tri-Isle Main Street resource do as
16 compared to MRA, and what is our function in
17 comparison to these two agencies?
18

And, you know, I have a comparison chart

19 which makes me get a clear understanding as to the
20 differences, difference in roles of MRA and Wailuku
21 Main Street, and their -- their areas of
22 responsibilities are very different. And perhaps
23 maybe, you know, I could provide you a chart, or
24 maybe Jocelyn and I could meet with you sometime.
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just provide me
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1 the chart. Thank you.
2

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you,

4 Chairman.
5

CHAIR KANE: And actually, the Chair

6 will ask that the chart be provided for all Members
7 of the Committee.
8

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Sure.

9

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, are

10 there any further questions? The Chair is aware of
11 the time, so the Chair will be calling a recess very
12 shortly, if not -- if you are ready for a break right
13 now. We've been going about an hour and a half.
14 Okay. Members, the Chair will call for a recess. We
15 will reconvene at 3:40. We are in recess. (Gavel.)
16

RECESS: 3:25 p.m.

17 RECONVENE: 3:45 p.m.
18

CHAIR KANE: (Gavel.) Members, let's

19 reconvene. Thanks for the break, Members. I think
20 everybody needed it. Recharge the battery.
21

So this is the tail stretch for this

22 afternoon's meeting. Members, the Chair's preference
23 is if you do have any further questions in this area,
24 unless there's something pressing that you need to
25 ask right now, Chair has no problem with that;
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1 however, again, I just want to keep it moving because
2 we do have a couple of more departments with a
3 smaller amount of grants, but still, I want to
4 provide them with adequate time for response from the
5 Members.
6
7

Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, under

8 the traditional Hawaiian building at Armory Park,
9 shouldn't this grant be better administered in the
10 Parks Department?
11

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Araki-Regan.

12

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I have no problem

13 with that.
14

ALL:

15

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: You know, when I saw

(Laughter.)

16 the Mayor's budget request, that was placed under our
17 budget, and I wasn't even in the initial discussion.
18 So I think the only reason why it was put in OED's
19 budget is because we do a lot of grants, so we are
20 familiar with the grant process. And secondly, is
21 there is an Economic Development component which is
22 the reason why we are supportive of the Hawaiian Hale
23 project.
24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Maybe, Chair,

25 when we have Parks, we could ask them if they felt --
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1 they feel -- because it is in their park, I mean,
2 basically.
3

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And was the

5 amount 60,000, or were you requesting more?
6

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Well, in Mayor's

7 budget, as I said, it was 60. They -- they now,
8 since the budget document was prepared, they are now
9 asking for 100. It's -- it's totally up to the
10 Council.
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We heard them

12 in Lahaina. They came to testify. Thank you.
13
14

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, just

15 additional comment from the Chair regarding the -16 that project, Zeke Kalua provided, I think, for the
17 Committee, dropped off some information, and I
18 believe there will be a proposal in there just
19 breaking down the proposed $100,000 figure, which I
20 think did include the sprinkler and additional
21 materials that Ms. Araki-Regan pointed out in her
22 opening remarks.
23

So I believe that's something that we have

24 or -- and will be distributed at some point, and
25 hopefully, we can get that to you soon.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.

2

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And also we

3 can provide a moment of reflection for Mr. Buck, our
4 Deputy from Parks, to respond to the anticipated
5 question.
6

Any further questions for Ms. Araki-Regan

7 on what we have before us?
8
9

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

10 Mr. Chairman. I have two questions.
11

CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I am just

13 trying to follow in line here so I won't be jumping
14 around. The $2 million for MCC, when you were
15 discussing that, Lynn, you mentioned -- you said
16 including a 400-room dormitory. Is this funding
17 going to be used to supplement that in any way?
18

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: No, it is just that

19 we are supportive of this, especially because of
20 their intention to increase the number of rooms at
21 the college. So it works hand in hand. You know, if
22 they are intending on building a 400-room dormitory,
23 the budget for which is not included in this
24 2 million, but if they -- if they are proceeding with
25 this project, we believe that the expansion program,
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1 expanding the MCC to offer baccalaureate programs,
2 is -- is something, you know, that we should support.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

3
4 you, Mr. Chair.
5

And I am just wondering, I haven't looked

6 it up yet, but do you have any idea, the Sea Grant
7 Program, you say it's been transferred to Planning.
8 Is it transferred in the same amount, 52?
9

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I believe so. I am

10 not -11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.

12

CHAIR KANE: We have that on that same

13 form, if you look under the Planning grants, it is
14 there, on Number 70.
15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, thank

16 you, Mr. Chair. Thank you very much.
17

CHAIR KANE: Okay. And just a, maybe

18 a clarification because I know that the Mayor on one
19 of his live shows used term 400 room, and
20 Ms. Araki-Regan, you are using it; but the Chair's
21 understanding it is not a 400 room, it's a 400-bed
22 facility, which is going to be privately funded. So
23 for the sake of impacts, that's probably going to be
24 a 200-room because there's probably going to be two
25 beds in one room. So having 200 rooms and 400 rooms
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1 is a considerable difference, and I wanted to point
2 out that.
3

And the handout that Dr. Sakamoto made this

4 morning for us, 400-bed facility, which would be
5 privately funded. So it is one of the bullet points
6 in the presentation that was given this morning. So
7 just a FYI, Members.
8

Any further questions on this particular

9 area, the Office of Economic Development before I
10 request that you have any further questions put in
11 writing to the Committee that will be forwarded to
12 Ms. Araki-Regan for response? Okay. Members?
13

Seeing no request at this time, if you do

14 have questions, please forward them to Staff.
15

Ms. Araki-Regan thank you very much for

16 your presence this afternoon.
17

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Thank you.

18

CHAIR KANE: Members, we are going to

19 ask, since I think we have here with us now, and he's
20 been given a moment to reflect on his anticipated
21 question, Director -- Deputy Director Buck from the
22 Parks Department to come forward, and we will go
23 ahead and proceed with his comments with respect to
24 the Park grants, which have been itemized for you on
25 the second page of your handout, or the back of the
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1 first page. It's noted as page 2.
2

And Mr. Buck, if you can give us some

3 general comments overall.
4

Members, just a note, everything is either

5 level or there has been a complete elimination,
6 because it was represented that the Binhi At Ani
7 Center was a one-time, the 325, so it is not there.
8 But other than that, Mr. Buck.
9
10

MR. BUCK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We like to spend money and not give it away

11 in grants -- no, I am only kidding.
12

We have on the budget this year or proposed

13 budget this year three grants. The first one is the
14 workline program, increase of 83,000. 124 to
15 207,000. The reason for that is we are asking for an
16 additional workline crew to be assigned to the
17 Department of Parks and Recreation. Over the last
18 few years, we have identified a problem in -- kind of
19 between Public Works and the Parks Department as far
20 as medial strip maintenance, parking lot maintenance,
21 and beach accesses.
22

You know, we don't really have resources,

23 Public Works doesn't have the resources, and with the
24 development that's coming up, we see an increase of
25 medial strips being planted in these new residential
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1 areas, and for some reason, they seem to be falling
2 under the purview of the Parks Department. So the
3 Parks Department took it upon themselves to put an
4 increase in the budget for upcoming years to get an
5 additional workline crew that their main focus would
6 be to do the medial strips on County-owned roads and
7 maintain parking lots.
8
9

The second grant is with YMCA -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, for

10 the sake of clarity, could we ask Deputy Director to
11 clarify that? Because we are looking at a sheet that
12 does not show an increase for -- for the workline.
13 It shows a flat line across.
14

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And Member

15 Mateo, what I was going to do was provide him just to
16 make his opening comments, and then we will go ahead
17 and pose that, and the Chair recognizes the
18 disparity. So we will give Staff a moment to
19 respond, since Staff is the one who prepared this
20 based off of the budget. So we will let him finish
21 and then we'll come and answer. And thank you for
22 pointing that out, though.
23

MR. BUCK: I've got 207.

24

CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Buck.

25

MR. BUCK: I must have got the wrong
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1 sheet, but I am basing it off of the worksheet that I
2 have. We can discuss it later unless I have the
3 wrong -- do I have the wrong paper, Sheri? So what
4 they have is wrong? Okay.
5

CHAIR KANE: Let's -- let's move on.

6

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.

7

CHAIR KANE: Let's move on and --

8

MR. BUCK: We have an $83,000 increase

9 in the workline program, and that's what the increase
10 is for.
11

Our second grant that we administer is to

12 the YMCA, is to oversee the skateboards parks, the
13 three skateboard parks that we have. They have asked
14 for an increase -- YMCA approached us -- but we felt
15 that with the other issues coming up, that we would
16 keep it flat.
17

The third grant that we do is the Lahaina

18 Restoration Foundation, and we are seeking 100 -- a
19 $20,000 increase, 100,000 from last year to 120,000
20 for the upcoming budget year. Basically, this is
21 just based to -- at the request of the Lahaina
22 Restoration Foundation, just basically due to the in
23 cost -- increase in cost of, you know, rubbish
24 disposal and a few other things.
25

Now, the answer to your question as far as
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1 the Hawaiian Hale, we would be more than willing to
2 oversee that project. We feel that because it's an
3 improvement in the park, that maybe it should be
4 coming under the jurisdiction of the Parks
5 Department.
6

It would be similar to what we did at Iao

7 Valley, the restoration of the one up there. Just
8 for everybody's information or just a little
9 background, that project was a $50,000 for that
10 project. And it wasn't a grant, it was a line item
11 in the CIP.
12

So if we are going to do something similar

13 to what we did with the Iao park -- Iao Valley
14 project, then it would be -- we would request maybe
15 it would be a line item in CIP, and basically do it
16 the same way we did for that project.
17

The one at Iao, that was $50,000. That

18 included the fire sprinklers that they are talking
19 about right now. And I think the reason why there's
20 maybe -- they are asking for more money than the
21 50,000, I think there's a little bit of site prep.
22 But I think, if I am not mistaken, that the one that
23 they are looking at Kamehameha Iki or Armory Park is
24 a lot larger than at one up at Iao, and that's why
25 the increase in cost.
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2

Any other questions?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And just to

3 clarify, Members, the number that's reflected on your
4 page 2, the 124,000, was taken out of the Budget
5 Ordinance. And so the number in the details, on page
6 11-7 of the details, shows 207,000, which Mr. Buck is
7 referencing; however, in the Budget Ordinance which
8 was submitted, the number is 124,000. So we will
9 work with Director Morrison to figure out which is
10 which.
11
12

And so at this time, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Buck, just

13 clarification on what you were saying about Lahaina
14 Restoration Foundation, what did you say their amount
15 was?
16

MR. BUCK: Last year, it was 100,000.

17 This year, we are looking at 120,000. $20,000
18 increase. And it's basically just the increase of
19 doing business with, you know, getting rid of the
20 rubbish, the trash, and tree trimming -21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So that might

22 be another case where the ordinance is difference
23 than the details.
24

CHAIR KANE: Yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, okay.
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CHAIR KANE: Because on 11-7, the same

2 thing. Lahaina Restoration Foundation, showing
3 120,000 in the details, but in your Budget Ordinance,
4 it's showing 100,000.
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 100. Okay.

6

CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and there seems to

7 be several, so we will be -8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

9

CHAIR KANE: -- collaborating with the

10 Budget Director, with Staff, to figure out those
11 disparities.
12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: A question I

13 have is about something that's not here. Where is
14 your Ka Lima 0 Maui grant?
15

MR. BUCK: I believe it's -- we have

16 it under rehabilitation services, a line item under
17 the recreation support services.
18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So it's

19 not a grant to an organization, it's just a -20

MR. BUCK: We have -- actually,

21 there's two organizations, Molokai Occupational
22 Center and Ka Lima 0 Maui.
23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

24

MR. BUCK: And we all -- they have

25 asked for an increase of 90,000 to offset some of
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1 their increasing costs; however, we are increasing
2 their -- some of their scope of work, too, to justify
3 the increase.
4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank

5 you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So to clarify that, the

6

7 proposal from the Mayor's budget includes the
8 increase, but you folks will increase scope of
9 service?
10

MR. BUCK: Correct, as far as Ka Lima

11 0 Maui, correct.
12
13

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Okay. Members, so we have these items in

14 front of us, and maybe Director Morrison, if you can
15 please come to the mic.
16

For the -- for the body's sake, what number

17 should -- if you are able to at this time, what
18 number should the body be considering for discussion
19 this afternoon?
20

MS. MORRISON: I believe $207,000

21 figure appears to be -- among the numbers that I am
22 looking at, there are several that I am going to
23 question and work out, but that appears to be the
24 correct number as far as this particular line item,
25 for the -- for the workline program.
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CHAIR KANE: And the Lahaina, then the

2 LRF, the Lahaina Restoration, we are going to be
3 working with the $120,000 figure?
4

MS. MORRISON: Yes, sir.

5

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, just so

6 you know, and for your discussion.
7

MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Koller.

9

MS. KOLLER: I just want to point out,

10 if we work with those numbers, then the budget is -11 is out of balance.
12

MS. MORRISON: Yes, we will to have

13 correct both sides. But in terms of what the grant
14 application for was, that is the amount.
15

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so we

16 proceed from there. These are the numbers that, for
17 the discussion this afternoon, that's what -- that's
18 the intent of administration. So we will go from
19 there.
20
21
22

Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
I would like to just ask some questions to

23 Mr. Buck regarding line 58, workline program, please.
24

CHAIR KANE: Please.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did I hear in your
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1 comments to us just briefly ago that is to add an
2 additional workline to assist you in restriping
3 and -- again, if you can restate it, please,
4 Mr. Buck.
5

MR. BUCK: We -- we have identified

6 that there has been a constant problem with
7 maintenance of medial strips, the planters in the
8 middle of the streets, like a lot of the new
9 subdivisions going up or the new roads. That was one
10 of the areas of -- that weren't being properly
11 maintained.
12

It was -- everybody was pointing fingers at

13 each other. We were saying it's Public Works'
14 responsibility because it is a public road. If you
15 read the ordinance, because there's a tree or two in
16 it, it becomes a Park's jurisdiction. Same thing
17 with the bike paths and the upcoming greenways that
18 they are proposing.
19

We felt that instead of trying to look for

20 an increase in staff to do it, we figure it might be
21 more appropriate to try to add another line with
22 MCCC.
23

Also, because there's trees in the parking

24 lots, our department right now is maintaining the
25 parking lots such as those in Paia. So that would be
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1 one of the other responsibilities we would be
2 shifting over to this workline. It will be a
3 dedicated workline.
4

We also have -- God, I don't know how many

5 numbers of beach right-of-ways, or beach accesses.
6 Kihei I think alone has about 37 that the people use.
7 And unfortunately, with the staff, a lot of times
8 they don't get maintained like, weed eating, and you
9 know, just cut down the weeds and stuff. So they
10 will be doing some of that work, too.
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I am one of

12 the councillors that have supported workline funding
13 in the past. But there comes a point when, you know,
14 the questions that come to my mind, in particular,
15 Mr. Buck, is is there a need to consult with the
16 union whose current members do very similar type of
17 work and whether or not it is a concern that maybe
18 through collective bargaining we are kind of getting
19 close to that line that might be crossed?
20

Because now we are not just talking about

21 one line, we are talking about -- I mean, this is
22 continuing to grow. So obviously, the amount of work
23 that needs to be done has grown, too.
24

MR. BUCK: Correct. And I am glad you

25 asked that -- that question. Yeah, that's a concern
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1 of the -- the bargaining unit in regards to the
2 Unit 1 work. We have been required by the UPW,
3 Unit 1, that any projects that we do, that we consult
4 with them and give them a list of projects on a
5 monthly basis, what we are planning to do.
6

As far as the medial strips, right now --

7 right now we are not doing the Unit 1 work at the
8 request of the union, because there's still an issue,
9 a grievance issue still out there. So we have taken
10 it upon ourselves -- I mean, we are still trying to
11 negotiate that, but right now the union has basically
12 told them that they didn't want their members, Parks
13 Department, especially Parks Department doing that
14 work. So they may or may not be supportive of that.
15 Again, they are the ones that requested us not to do
16 the work.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, I ask

18 that question because we already went through periods
19 of adjustment because of the Konno decision, for some
20 of us Members, we had to really ramp up once the
21 courts made a ruling on the Konno case. And
22 therefore, I am asking this to help us avert another
23 similar judicial situation.
24

Second, can MCCC provide what is being

25 requested on the -- at the level that is going to be
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1 expected in regards to performance by this Committee
2 and Members of the Council? Because I am sure
3 there's other requests for the use of the workline
4 besides the County.
5

MR. BUCK: Well, that's kind of one of

6 the problems is that, I mean, they are used a lot by
7 nonprofit agencies and other departments.
8

This -- our intention with this crew is

9 going to be dedicated for that type of work. And we
10 did talk to -- we did discuss with MCCC if they were
11 able to provide an additional crew, if we got the
12 funding, because we -- if they -- if they were not
13 going to be able to provide that additional manpower
14 and the -- what's required to have the additional
15 workline, we would not have been asking the request,
16 but we did work with them.
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you

18 must be reading my mind, Mr. Buck, as in regards to
19 nonprofit agencies that utilize the workline, has
20 payment come from this program to pay for workline
21 work given and provided to nonprofit agencies?
22

MR. BUCK: I can't really answer that

23 question offhand. I -- I believe not. That's -24 that's a good question, and right at this point, I
25 couldn't answer that question for you. And if --
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1 unless there was another department that is
2 offsetting that cost. I am not really sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chair, if we

3

4 can forward it so that we can have a definite
5 response for the record, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Staff, do you have

6

7 the question? Okay. Thank you very much.
8

Okay. Member Hokama, no problem.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very

9

10 much. I appreciate the comments from the Deputy
11 Director. Thank you.
12

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further

13 questions in this area, Members, with the Parks
14 Department?
15
16

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

17 Mr. Chair.
18

Mr. Buck, did I hear you say that this

19 additional workline would also be utilized in South
20 Maui for some of the parks?
21

MR. BUCK: One of the problems that

22 South Maui has right now is that there's a lot of
23 beach accesses, and because of the staff right now,
24 they are not able to do the beach accesses. And just
25 like in any other district, but because of just a lot
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1 of the tourism -- same thing on the west side, I
2 should put west side in there -- is that sometimes
3 the crew cannot go in there just to do the weed
4 eating or trim back the trees that are growing or
5 just the rubbish.
6

That's what they will be used for, is the

7 beach accesses that are not really parks, but they
8 are -- for example, Halama Street has about five, and
9 Uluniu has about three or four that are adjacent
10 between two houses. And a lot of times, it's not
11 maintained, so the grass gets really high.
12

That's the things they will be doing

13 besides the medial strips and the parking lots.
14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And will they

15 be helping out at Kamaole Point?
16

MR. BUCK: That -- if there's a

17 project like that, for the park, yes, that would be
18 one of the projects they will be doing or one of the
19 other workline, that will be doing that. And we are
20 scheduled to work on that soon.
21

Right now, that particular crew that does

22 that work, that's why we are asking for the
23 additional line. The line that normally will do
24 something like clear up the issue with Kamaole Point
25 right now is unavailable right now, and we are trying
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1 to schedule up -- we have -- for the year, we have
2 most of the workline tasks, what they are going to
3 do, prioritized, what projects we want to do, and
4 then when they are pulled away for another project by
5 another agency or whatever, sometimes it jams up our
6 priority. And like the landscaping right now, we are
7 not getting that often.
8

But this would help with the projects like

9 this. When all the medial strips are done, parking
10 lots are done, beach access, and if we have something
11 like Kamaole Point that needs to be cleaned up, you
12 know, a little extra TLC to be put into that area,
13 that's what they will be used for.
14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

15 you.
16

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

17

Further questions in this area, Members?

18

Hearing none, Members, if you have any

19 additional questions, please forward them in writing
20 to Staff, and we will get that over to the department
21 for a response. And again, Staff will be working
22 with Ms. Morrison to deal with the disparities of the
23 numbers between the ordinance and the details.
24
25

Mr. Hokama, final comments, questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you.
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Lahaina Restoration Foundation, does any

2 special funds go and assist the funding of their
3 program, or is this all general funds?
4

MR. BUCK: According -- as far as I

5 know, it's strictly what we are funding them for.
6 They maintain Front Street, and they do the -7 correct me if I'm wrong or right, Roxanne -- is that
8 they do the banyan tree, yeah. They maintain the
9 area around the banyan tree.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, I just

10

11 ask that because part of their -- my understanding of
12 part of the service they provide the County and the
13 West Maui community is, of course, taking care of the
14 trash and what not, and so does it make some sense on
15 our part to look at some refuse fees from the
16 district to help provide a percentage of the total
17 request, as well as you are well aware that when the
18 Council authorized the purchase of the JDI properties
19 to move forward, the debt service was the creation of
20 concessions to help pay for the debt, as well as, I
21 had hoped, additional revenue to pay for other things
22 within that area, which would be part of the banyan
23 tree complex.
24

And I don't know if you have any comments

25 for us this afternoon, but if you do, I would
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1 appreciate it, to help us make better decisions,
2 Mr. Buck.
3

MR. BUCK: I think right at this -- at

4 this time I do not have any comments in regards to -5 I guess, you brought up the JDI project and
6 unfortunately, I am not up on it.
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I just share

8 that because Members of the Council, various Members
9 of the Council -- I won't speak for all of the
10 Members -- but we have been made aware of potential
11 options on how to fund the program that Lahaina
12 Restoration provides us, besides just General Fund
13 requests, so I had -- and that is why I had offered
14 that question to you for comment. And if you do have
15 comment down the road, I would appreciate it, since I
16 consider your comments very helpful in our decision
17 making.
18

MR. BUCK: I will go back and see if

19 my staff has, if that's been brought up to them
20 before in the past, and if we have something, I will
21 forward it to you.
22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you,

23 Mr. Buck.
24
25

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very
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1 much.
2

Mr. Buck, thank you very much for your

3 presence this afternoon. We appreciate it.
4

And again, Members, any additional

5 questions, forward to Staff and we will get that out.
6

Okay. With that, I think we see our Deputy

7 Director, Mr. Boteilho, from the Planning Department.
8 He will be coming forward, Members, and we will be
9 referencing the planning grants.
10
11

12

Good afternoon, Mr. Boteilho.
MR. BOTEILHO: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: Why don't you go ahead

13 and provide us with some opening remarks to the
14 planning grants that are before us.
15

MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. Mr. Chair, the

16 Department of Planning has only four grants currently
17 active. And I am going to just go over it really
18 quickly, and I am going to go, I guess, in the order
19 of amount. Excuse me.
20

We -- we have proposed $20,000 for the

21 Molokai Main Street. This is the same amount as last
22 year. What they are looking at is trying to fund a
23 planning and design for a public restroom and public
24 gathering place in Kaunakakai Town.
25

The next grant we have is the -- excuse
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1 me -- it's called the UH Maui Sea Grant. This is
2 $52,200. This is not a new item or a new expense.
3 This was transferred to us from the Department of
4 Public Works. And -- and the reason is that the -5 this particular person does a lot of work in -- in
6 coastal erosion mitigation, helping -- helping the
7 community and helping the Planning Department, so
8 it's been transferred to us.
9

The third is the MRA, and that is $80,000.

10 That $80,000 is earmarked to prepare a study and
11 legislation to adopt a Wailuku Redevelopment Area
12 Business Improvement District Ordinance to provide a
13 vehicle for raising revenues to pay for ongoing
14 streetscape maintenance, parking improvements, and
15 security.
16

And then finally, we have $200,000 for the

17 Tri-Isle Main Street Association. This would
18 basically cover -- they have $90,000 for development
19 assistance for the Main Street areas, Wailuku, Paia,
20 Makawao, and -- and Haiku. I heard Lanai City is
21 now -- is now being a seedling. And they also
22 provide other support for non -- well, non-Main
23 Street Associations but eligible, Hana, and Keokea
24 areas in Kula.
25

This -- this particular $90,000 is to -- is
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1 to help existing, you know, community -- well, it is
2 to help the existing Main Street Associations. And
3 we -- we are in support because we feel that there
4 needs to be a catalyst. The Planning Department
5 supports these small-town efforts. I like to say,
6 you know, is that it's -- it's an effort to continue
7 small towns, and I think -- I think sometimes you
8 really need a leader or a central -- central
9 organization. So we are in support of this,
10 supporting the existing Main Street towns.
11

The second item is Community Business

12 Assistance and Recruitment Program. This is $45,000.
13 This is intended to assist businesses, both existing
14 and potential businesses. What they do is -15

CHAIR KANE: I am sorry.

16 Mr. Boteilho, you cited four grants and you are on
17 your fifth one, so if you can -18

MR. BOTEILHO: Oh, excuse me. I am

19 going over the specifics of the Wailuku.
20

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank

21 you for the clarification.
22

MR. BOTEILHO: So this Community

23 Business Assistance Program is basically to help
24 businesses. Businesses can call; they can have
25 consultation; they can get data; you know, they can
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1 get information about Planning rules and regulations.
2

And finally, for the Tri-Isle, they have --

3 they have $65,000 for a small town project
4 implementation. And this is the part that the
5 Planning Department really likes because they have
6 projects such as data collection -- data collection
7 on Wailuku Town vacancies, update business country
8 town guidelines, do a -- do a schematic plan for
9 Makawao Town Square, do a strategic plan for Haiku,
10 and develop plans for cruise ships small town tours.
11

And I guess just to end, the final

12 component is a $25,000 for an economic development
13 conference for small towns. On this particular item,
14 we would be in support. I mean, you know, they
15 haven't had such a conference in, like, you know
16 three years now, and it would help to bring all the
17 small towns together, and we could have it videoed,
18 and it could be on Akaku, and it could be further
19 public education.
20

However, with the general plan coming up, I

21 have -- I have talked to the Executive Director.
22 Maybe we should try to put more money into assisting
23 the small towns, especially in terms of discussing
24 the general plan update, and you know, things like
25 that. And if you can squeeze the conference in,
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1 fine. But -- but that -- that would conclude my
2 overview about our grants. Thank you.
3

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, and

4 before we open the floor, Mr. Boteilho, you cited
5 90,000, 45,000, 65,000, and finally 25,000; is that
6 correct?
7

MR. BOTEILHO: 90, 45 --

8

CHAIR KANE: 65.

9

MR. BOTEILHO: 65.

10

CHAIR KANE: And 25.

11

MR. BOTEILHO: And that should add up.

12

CHAIR KANE: So the $25,000 is over

13 and above the 200,000 that's reflected in the Budget
14 Ordinance as well as the details?
MR. BOTEILHO: No. No. If you add up

15

16 all those four, it should come up to 200,000.
CHAIR KANE: No, 90 and 45 is 135,

17

18 plus 65 is 200. And so now you have another $25,000
19 in there.
20

I am sorry, Members, if my math is off,

21 then just shout it out, and I am not going to be
22 embarrassed.
23

MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair, I stand -- I

24 stand corrected.
25

CHAIR KANE: Okay. So the 25,000 is
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1 not being reflected in the Mayor's proposed budget,
2 so what -- are you, as the Department's
3 representative here representing for the additional
4 funds, are you advocating for the additional funds to
5 be considered?
6

MR. BOTEILHO: Not -- not necessarily.

7 Okay. Yeah, in a case like this, I guess it's
8 $225,000 now that is being proposed. The $25,000
9 extra is the -- is the conference. Again, we would
10 be in support but we -- we could live with the
11 200,000.
12

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair

13 is going to open it up. Okay. Member Anderson, and
14 then we will move down.
15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you,

16 Mr. Chair.
17

CHAIR KANE: And before you proceed,

18 Ms. Perreira, I know you want to jump in, but I would
19 ask that you refrain from -- refrain from making
20 comments or gestures, please. It's very distracting.
21 So allow us to just proceed with our meeting, and I
22 would appreciate it.
23
24
25

Ms. Anderson, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
Mr. Chair, could I request that we get the
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1 description that Mr. Boteilho just gave us?
2

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Boteilho.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For the

4 225,000, give or take 25, grant, and also for the
5 $80,000 grant for Maui Redevelopment Agency, could we
6 get those descriptions in writing?
7

MR. BOTEILHO: Mr. Chair, yeah, I

8 believe it was passed out today by Tri-Isle. Well,
9 they are going to pass it out now, I guess. So you
10 have your copy now.
11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then,

12 does that include the 80,000 for Maui Redevelopment
13 Agency?
14

MR. BOTEILHO: No, because they are --

15 they are a separate grant.
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you

17 give us the description that you gave us for this
18 $80,000 in writing, please?
19

MR. BOTEILHO: Okay. Yeah, sure.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then, the

21 other question I had is you have -- and please,
22 Members, bear with me because this is my first shot
23 here, so -24

CHAIR KANE: You are doing fine.

25 Don't worry about it.

236
1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So I need

2 some historical background. Can you tell me what
3 happened to -- there was $20,000 appropriated in '03
4 for the Lahaina Historic District Update. Was that
5 completed?
6

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And was the

8 Maui Shoreline Study completed?
9
10

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank

11 you, Mr. Chairman.
12
13
14

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just needed

15 Mr. -- our Deputy Director to -- again, I am trying
16 to understand exactly what he said -- in your
17 comments regarding the MRA, please, Mr. Deputy
18 Director. 80,000 is for specifically what, now?
19

MR. BOTEILHO: Yeah, if I could back

20 up just a little bit, Mr. Chair.
21

They came to us with a list of projects

22 that they would like funded. We told them, well, you
23 know what, what is your top two? And the top two was
24 the staff, and then the -- and the number two was
25 $80,000 for -- for an Improvement District Ordinance
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1 in Wailuku -- well, yeah, in the -- in the
2 redevelopment area to pay for ongoing streetscape
3 maintenance, parking improvements, and security.
4

Basically this would be, like, we would

5 have an ordinance that would set forth how much
6 each -- each business would have to chip in, and then
7 those -- those moneys would be used for those
8 functions.
9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: $80,000 to develop

10 an ordinance, proposal?
11

MR. BOTEILHO: Well, yeah. Well, not

12 only the ordinance but also a study. I guess if you
13 are going to be assessing people money, you -- you
14 should be able to justify it.
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

16

Again, Mr. Boteilho, as I shared with you

17 and your director the other day, who knows if this
18 agency will even exist next year. They are a
19 creation by this County, through its Council, and
20 it's not a required agency. All State law provides
21 in Chapter 53 is that the counties may create a
22 redevelopment agency. We are not required to create
23 redevelopment agencies. Okay. And this agency has
24 been established for a long time with nothing to
25 show.
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80,000. You have the details of how they

2 want to approach the study?
MR. BOTEILHO: No, but we can provide

3
4 that.

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you want us

5

6 to pose the question and send it off?
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be

8 appreciated, chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just find it

10

11 interesting, we are continually asked for money and
12 yet they don't provide us with the rationale of how
13 they arrive at their requested amount.
14
15

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Staff. Thank you.
Mr. Hokama?

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I am done. I

17 think maybe my fireworks would be better with the
18 agency itself.
19

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And we are

20 coordinating that meeting with the Budget Director to
21 have that take place. I will note that the Chair
22 does not intend to have a full-blown presentation.
23 It will be more they can provide us with some
24 comments and then open it up for Q and A, but the
25 Chair at this time is not interested in taking up a
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1 half a day or a couple of hours for -- for a
2 presentation.
3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood, Chair.

4

CHAIR KANE: So unless you folks have

5 anything specific to add, the Chair will help in
6 providing responses from the agency.
7

Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank

8
9 you very much.
10

Mr. Boteilho, going back to the Tri-Isle

11 Main Street request for the 225, you referenced the
12 45,000 for a Community Business Assistance.
13

MR. BOTEILHO: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you tell me

15 how that differs from OED's, I guess, the County
16 Business Center in the Maui Mall insofar as the
17 services being provided? Is there a difference?
18

MR. BOTEILHO: I would say that the

19 difference is that the Tri-Isle efforts is
20 concentrated on the -- on the small town system. So
21 not only -- yeah, the small town system plus more on
22 the planning side, they would give out rules and
23 regulations, business consultations. Also, they do
24 meet with potential businesses to go over with their
25 plans. So I guess, one, yeah, so one -- more on the
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1 small town aspect, and two, more on the planning
2 aspect.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank

3
4 you.
5

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

6
7

Any further questions from the Members

8 regarding the Planning grants?
9

I have one. Did the Molokai Island Main

10 Street Association provide you with reports on the
11 previous $20,000 expenditure, on what they did with
12 that $20,000?
13

MR. BOTEILHO: Pardon me. No, no,

14 Mr. Chair. We are still continuing to work with them
15 to get their grant agreement. We still have time.
16 The -- I guess the delay was caused by they had a
17 change, change of leadership, and also I guess the -18 they had to gel -- gel their membership also.
19

But we are working with them now. And as

20 long as we get the grant, the scope of services in by
21 the end of May, then we can encumber those funds.
22

CHAIR KANE: I am sure you realize

23 that, for me anyway, it would help if we had an idea
24 of their performance in helping us determine the next
25 $20,000 request that you are making on behalf of the
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1 group. And right now, we have nothing regarding that
2 first $20,000.
3

So I would ask, Members, if there's no

4 objections, that you ask for a status in writing from
5 the group on the $20,000 and its intent on what it is
6 going to be used for, since it hasn't been encumbered
7 yet, so it's still sitting.
8

And if what they intended last year with

9 that $20,000 is not going to be able to get done in
10 this Fiscal Year, that perhaps we can consider
11 carrying this 20,000 over into the focus plan of the
12 planning and design for the restroom and public area
13 facility. So anyway, that's just a thought for us to
14 consider, and hopefully we can get a response back
15 from that group to justify their need for another
16 $20,000.
17

Okay. Mr. Pontanilla, followed by

18 Mr. Molina.
19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, in

20 regards to the spend-downs for all of these grants, I
21 know we haven't gotten the third quarter results yet,
22 and if you are asking this information, do you have
23 any privy as far as up-to-date information in regards
24 to this $20,000?
25

CHAIR KANE: Are you asking the Chair
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1 or are you asking Mr. -2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You, the

3 Chair.
4

CHAIR KANE: We -- we don't have any

5 information yet, but from the information given to us
6 by the Deputy, the money has not even been encumbered
7 yet.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Encumbered.

8
9 Okay. Fine.

CHAIR KANE: And that he intends to,

10

11 based on what status he's made available to us, that
12 encumbrance is not going to take place until May,
13 so -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.

14

15 Yeah, because I have noted, and I haven't even asked
16 the question in regards to spending down on some of
17 the activities because we don't have third quarter
18 report yet.
19

CHAIR KANE: Yes. Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you,

21 Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you,

22
23 Mr. Pontanilla.
24
25

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you,
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1 Chairman.
2

Mr. Boteilho, you mentioned the change in

3 leadership regarding the Molokai Main Street
4 Association. Who is the current leader -- leaders or
5 leader?
6

MR. BOTEILHO: Her name is Maria

7 Holmes. She's the owner of the Molokai Coffee Store.
8 And I believe number two is Chantal Dudoit. I have
9 met with both of them.
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And my

11 second question relates to the Haiku strategic plan,
12 how far along is the Haiku community along with the
13 formation of this plan? I can only guess that's
14 probably one reason why you are looking at an
15 increase for Tri-Isle because they have added Haiku
16 onto the list of responsibilities?
17

MR. BOTEILHO: If I could get back to

18 you on that.
19

CHAIR KANE: Okay. We will send the

20 question in writing and get a response.
21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank

22 you, Chairman.
23

CHAIR KANE: Any further questions,

24 Members, in this area? We do have one more
25 department to have a discussion with, or on. It's
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1 been requested. And I know we are watching the clock
2 and we are right around there. So, any further
3 questions for Mr. Boteilho at this time? Otherwise,
4 we will have any additional questions forwarded.
5

Hearing none, Mr. Boteilho thank you very

6 much for your presence here this afternoon.
7

MR. BOTEILHO: Thank you very much.

8

CHAIR KANE: Members, although I don't

9 see it on our list, and perhaps Ms. Koller can
10 provide us with some clarity, I think we have Ellen
11 Kraftsow here from the Water Department to have -- to
12 give us some discussion.
13

MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

14

In speaking with the Budget Director, I was

15 informed that Water did have some grants. They are
16 not line item in the budget. They are in the
17 professional services account on page 18-17 of the
18 budget details. The document that is one of the
19 documents handed out today under the Budget
20 Director's signature includes several pages. The
21 first, the -- the second -- the first page of the
22 handout to that letter has a listing of items under
23 that professional services account that total
24 $911,000.
25

If you turn, then, to the next two pages,
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1 or I guess it's three pages, those are the grants
2 that are in that $911,000. And perhaps Ms. Kraftsow
3 will be able to give some details.
4

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Before we go

5 there, Ms. Kraftsow, thank you for being here this
6 afternoon.
7

Members, the Chair apologizes. The Chair

8 did not anticipate this discussion. There's a lot of
9 information here. Quite frankly, the Chair would
10 prefer to have us defer on this. We have this
11 material for your perusal, and if necessary -- and
12 again, the Chair will entertain that -- if necessary,
13 we can call back Ms. Kraftsow to come back and answer
14 specific questions.
15

But I think the descriptions are quite

16 lengthy, and I want to provide you folks ample time
17 to review the professional services component of the
18 budget details with this handout.
19

Members, any comments to the Chair's

20 preference on how we proceed with this afternoon's
21 meeting?
22
23

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you

24 saying that we are going to forego this for now and
25 go on to something else?
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CHAIR KANE: No. What I am saying is

2 that I would prefer that we not enter into a
3 discussion with this because none of us have had the
4 opportunity to read through the pages and the
5 descriptions that are quite lengthy, as you have
6 seen.
7

So the Chair is preferring to adjourn the

8 meeting for today, provide you with the time
9 necessary to review the document, and if necessary,
10 if there's a request by specific Members for us to
11 entertain Ms. Kraftsow's verbal explanations or oral
12 explanations, we can do that, or we can, again,
13 forward specific questions to the department for a
14 written response, and then have her come forward for
15 clarification if necessary. And that's the preferred
16 approach to this particular item.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine

18 with me. Are we going to get a chance, though, to
19 discuss this with somebody in the future, rather than
20 just in writing?
21

CHAIR KANE: Yes, we will make -- if

22 you feel that it's something that needs specific
23 discussion, then we will make the time.
24
25 you.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank
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CHAIR KANE: Members? Any additional

1

2 comment on the Chair's proposal for disposition of
3 this item right now? Okay.
4 COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (Excused: Jo
Anne Johnson)
5
6

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

7

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Kraftsow, we thank

8 you for being here, genuinely. We sincerely mean
9 that. But thank you. It's a lot of pages for us to
10 look through, and we don't want to start shooting
11 from the hip in our questions to you.
12

So with that, Members, we will contact the

13 Department to come back if it's deemed necessary by
14 this body. With that, Members, are there any -- any
15 announcements or comments that you wish to make prior
16 to us adjourning for today?
17

The Chair has a couple of things. First,

18 we are not meeting tomorrow as a Committee. We have
19 our Council meeting scheduled for tomorrow, first
20 regularly scheduled of the April schedule, at nine
21 o'clock here.
22

Members, again, the reminder for the public

23 hearing for the Mayor's proposed budget, which is
24 required by charter, is going to be right here in
25 this chamber on April 11 at 6:30 p.m., and the
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1 Council Chair will be presiding over that meeting.
2

And other than that, Members, tomorrow --

3 excuse me -- next week our schedule is the Lanai
4 District Meeting, so all of you are aware of your
5 travel arrangements. And the anticipated schedule
6 for next week will be Tuesday, Wednesday, and
7 Thursday, we are going to be dealing with CIP, with
8 the various departments' requests. And just to give
9 you a head up, on Tuesday, we are going to be dealing
10 with Finance, Fire, Management, and Police, to start
11 off the week with our CIP.
12

So, Members, if you have any questions,

13 please feel free to contact the staff, and they will
14 help you, or provide you guidance as to what
15 direction we are going to be taking in the -- in the
16 upcoming weeks.
17
18

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think

19 Tamara wants to say something, and then I have a
20 question for her.
21

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Again, if there's

22 any announcements. If not, Ms. Koller.
23

MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I

24 do have a handout that I will be distributing to
25 Members. It lists the CIP projects by fund so that
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1 it will help you in reviewing those since we do have
2 to make sure that we don't mix up the different
3 funds, the special funds that we have.
4

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. So is that

5 going to be distributed now or to the Members'
6 offices?
7

MS. KOLLER: That -- that will be

8 distributed to your offices. You will have them
9 tomorrow.
10

CHAIR KANE: So Members, take note of

11 that, to expect that listing.
12
13

And then, finally, Ms. Morrison, please.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

14 I just wanted to say, in retrospect, actually the
15 correct answer to your question of which number rules
16 is whatever you want that number to be. The budget
17 is in your hands, and you will have the decision. In
18 discussions with the Parks Department, that's -- the
19 numbers that I recommended were those that they
20 recommended; however, obviously, it's your decision.
21

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for

22 that. We just wanted to make sure we are clear on
23 what's being presented by the Mayor's proposal when
24 there's two numbers. So we just want to get clear on
25 what are the numbers.
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1

Okay. Any further announcements, Members?

2

Time now is 4:39. This Budget and Finance

3 Committee meeting for March 31, 2005 is adjourned,
4 and don't be caught to be a fool tomorrow on
5 April 1st, April Fool's Day. (Gavel.)
6 ADJOURN: 4:39 p.m
7
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